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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

- CASE NO. 04-60573 CIV-MORENO
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,
Plaintiff,
V.
MUTUAL BENEFITS CORP., et. al,,
Defendants,
VIATICAL BENEFACTORS, LLC, et. al,

Relief Defendants.

CREDIT SUISSE SECURITIES (EUROPE) LIMITED’S OBJECTION
TO THE RECEIVER’S MOTION TO APPROVE SALES OF POLICIES
AND INCORPORATED MEMORANDUM OF LAW (Policy AP#99-0007778)]

Credit Suisse Securities (Europe) Limited (“Credit Suisse™), by and through its
counsel hereby files this objection (the “Objection”) to the Receiver’s Motion to Approve Sales
of Policy and Incorporated Memorandum of Law (Policy AP# 99-0007778) (the “Sale Approval
Motion™) [D.E. 2034]. In support of this Objection, Credit Suisse respectfully represents as
follo%vs: |
L PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Credit Suisse is ready, willing and able to make an all-cash bid (without
contingencies) of $9,500,000 for Policy #99-0007778 (the “Policy”) on the same terms and
conditions set forth in the proposed. asset purchase agreement (the “APA”) annexed to the Sale

Approval Motion. However, Roberto Martinez, the Court appointed receiver (the “Receiver”) to

Mutual Benefits Corporation, Viatical Benefactors, LLC, Viatical Services, Inc., and Anthony
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Livott, Jr. and Anthony Livoti Jr. P.A., solely in their capacity as trustees (collectively, the
“Receivership Entities™), has — for reasons unknown — determined to prejudice the creditors of
the Receivership Entities by failing to establish a fair and transparent bidding process that will
result in the highest price being realized for the Policy. For more ten months, Credit Suisse has
been an active participant in this case ever since receiving the Receiver’s solicitation of bids

letter, dated May 21, 2007 (the “May 21st Letter”). At the June 22, 2007 auction, Credit Suisse

was declared the bidder with the highest conforming bid for the totality of the Universal Life and
Term Plans of Insurance identified as Portfolio #3 in the May 21st Letter (“Portfolio #3™), which
contains the Policy. Subsequent to the Receiver’s determination not to proceed with its winning
bid for Portfolio # 3, Credit Suisse remained active by consistently affirming to the Receiver its
willingness and determination to purchase some or all of the policies in Portfolio #3. Yet, the
Receiver determined to re-market Portfolio #3 and the Policy out of view of Credit Suisse and
other potential bidders and now seeks to proceed with a sale with full knowledge that the Court
cannot find either that the Policy were fairly marketed or that the Receiver has received the

highest bid.

Credit Suisse simply asks that this Court afford it a full and fair opportunity to bid
on the Policy — something that the Receiver has failed to do. Only after full, fair and transparent
bidding process will the creditors of these Receivership Entities be assured that the Policy is

being sold for their maximum value.

IL RELEVANT FACTUAL BACKGROUND

1. On May 3, 2004, the Securities and Exchange Commission filed a complaint
against MBC and other defendants in this Court alleging, infer alia, that MBC had engaged in

widespread fraud against investors in life insurance contracts [D.E. 1]. On May 4, 2004, this
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Court entered an Order appointing Roberto Martinez as the Receiver for the Receivership

Entities [D.E. 26].

2. On September 14, 2005, this Court entered an Order on Disposition of Policies and
Proceeds [D.E. 1339] (the “Disposition Order”). On November 22, 2005, the Court entered an
Order Clarifying Disposition Order and Approving Form of Notice [D.E. 1368] (the “Clarifving
Order”). Pursuant to the Disposition Order and the Clarifying Order, the defrauded investors
conducted a vote as to whether certain policies should be sold at auction. As the result of the
vote, 3138 of the policies (the “Salable Policies™) were designated to be sold. Accordingly,

certain of these policies were included in the Sale Approval Motion.

3. OnMay 21, 2007, the Receiver sent out the May 21st Letter soliciting bids for four
portfolios of policies, defined as Portfolios #1-4. The bidding procedures attached to the May
21st Letter (the “Bidding Procedures™), set forth certain requirements for potential bidders to
follow in order to qualify them to participate at an open auction on June 22, 2007. A copy of the

Receiver’s May 21st Letter and Bidding Procedures are annexed hereto as Exhibit A.

4.  In conformity with the precise terms of the Bidding Procedures, Credit Suisse
entered into the confidentiality agreement, provided proof of financial capability, conducted due
diligence at its own expense, submitted an initial bid of $100,000 for Portfolio #3, and fulfilled
all other requirements set forth in the Bidding Procedures. A copy of Credit Suisse’s bid cover
letter, proof of financial capability, and executed asset purchase agreement is anmexed hereto as

Exhibit B. Accordingly, the Receiver invited Credit Suisse to participate in the Auction.

5. On June 22, 2007, the Receiver conducted an auction of Portfolios #1 — 4.
Immediately prior the commencement of the Auction, the Receiver unilaterally determined to
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make the first of several departures from the long-standing Bidding Procedures. Specifically, the
Receiver announced that he would auction Portfolio # 3 first because that portfolio had the
greatest amount of interest. In addition, the Receiver also announced that, with respect to
Portfolios #1, 2, and 4, after declaring a highest bid for all three of the portfolios, the Receiver
would then permit “non-conforming bids” for some or all of the three portfolios. Portfolio # 3,
however, was not to be subject to the non-conforming bid process. Shortly after the
commencement of the bidding on Portfolio # 3, one of the participants objected to the process on
the grounds that Portfolio # 3 should not be excluded from the newly announced non-conforming
bid process for Portfolios # 1, 2 and 4. The Receiver denied the request and continued with the

Auction with respect to Portfolio # 3 pursuant to the terms of the noticed Bidding Procedures.

6.  After an opening bid of $1.5 million and forty-seven {47) subsequent spirited offers
and counter-offers, Credit Suisse was ultimately declared to have subsmitted the highest and best
bid for Portfolio # 3 -- with a fully conforming bid of $ 4.6 million (representing a $3.1 million
increase from the opening bid). After being declared the highest bidder for Portfolio #3, Credit
Suisse executed a statement of intent to purchase Portfolio #3. A copy of the statement is
attached hereto as Exhibit C. Several hours later, Credit Suisse received a phone call from the
Receiver who advised that, despite his previous determination in full view of all participants, he
had received and may be willing to consider accepting a non-conforming bid for all four
portfolios (which included Portfolio # 3) — a bid in the amount of $16.0 million.! Faced with the
possibility of losing Portfolio # 3 to a non-confirming bid, Credit Suisse returned to the Auction.

After protesting that the Receiver should not entertain non-conforming bids under the Bidding

! The highest conforming bids for Portfolios #1, 2 and 4 totaled $11.0 million. Accordingly, the aggregate of

the fully conforming bids for all four portfolios was $15.6 million.
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Procedures, Credit Suisse determined to protect its investment by submitting its own non-
conforming bid which was made jointly with Silver Point Capital Fund, L.P. (“Silver Point™)2
The Receiver ultimately determined that the joint bid of Credit Suisse and Silver Point was the
highest non-conforming bid for all four portfolios in the amount of $16.1 million. After being
declared the highest bidders on a non-conforming basis for Portfolios #1 — 4, Credit Suisse and
Silver Point jointly executed a statement of intent to purchase Portfolios #1 —4. A copy ofthe
joint statement is annexed hereto as Exhibit D. Accordingly, as of the close of business on June
22 2007, the Receiver had declared Credit Suisse to be the highest and best bidder for Portfolio

# 3 on both a conforming and non-conforming basis.

7. In compliance with the Bidding Procedures, Credit Suisse remitted an additional
deposit equaling 10% of the purchase price in an amount sufficient to cover both the conforming
and non-conforming bid — 1.e. $945,000. A copy ofthe Receiver’s email, dated June 26, 2007, to

Credit Suisse confirming the receipt of the deposit is annexed hereto as Exhibit E.

8. By e-mail dated June 27, 2007, the Receiver advised that he determined not to seek
approval of Credit Suisse’s highest bid for Portfolio #3, but would instead “welcome further
discussion of proposals for the purchase of [Portfolio #3] that are higher and better than the
offers received at auction. Further information on the formal re-solicitation of additional bids on
[Portfolio #3] will be made available at the time the Receiver makes the determination of how
such further bidding will proceed.” A copy of the Receiver’s June 27th e-mail is annexed hereto

as Exhibit F.

2 Under the joint bid, Credit Suisse’s portion of the bid would only be for Portfolio # 3. Likewise, Silver

Point’s portion of the bid would only be for Portfolios # 1, 2 and 4.
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9. Despite his assurance to the contrary, the Receiver did not undertake a “formal re-
solicitation of additional bids” for Portfolio #3 or any part thereof, but instead appears to have
marketed Portfolio # 3 and the Policy out of view of interested parties and purposely prevented
Credit Suisse from having any opportunity to ensure that a fair playing field among potential

bidders was maintained at all times.

10. Credit Suisse made numerous written and oral requests of the Receiver to be
apprised of any bid that exceeded its winning bid made at the Auction. Copies of Credit Suisse’s

correspondence with the Receiver is annexed hereto as Exhibit G.

11.  Onorabout July 19, 2007, the Recetver advised by telephone that he was accepting
offers on individual policies in Portfolio #3 and that Credit Suisse should promptly make an
offer. That same day, in good faith Credit Suisse made an all-cash bid of $4.5 million for the
Policy. Having nor heard a response from the Receiver, by letter dated July 27, 2007, Credit
Suisse requested that the Receiver advise it of any competing bids and provide an opportunity to

make higher bids. A copy of the July 27, 2008 letter is annexed hereto as Exhibit H.

12.  From October 17 to 19, 2007, Credit Suisse and the Receiver exchanged several e-
mails whereby the Receiver advised that he was preparing to accept a bid on several of the
policies in Portfolio #3 and asked that Credit Suisse confirm its interest in making competing
bids. In response, Credit Suisse immediately reaffirmed its willingness to make a bid(s) and
asked to be advised of the current bid on Portfolio #3 or any part thereof so that Credit Suisse
could make a counter offer. However, the Receiver declined to provide any information and
instead asked Credit Suisse to “make its best offer.” The Receiver further threatened that if

Credit Suisse did not make an offer it could not complain if the Receiver were to proceed with
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another bidder. Copies of the e-mails between Credit Suisse and the Receiver from October 17

to October 19 are annexed hereto as Exhibit L

13.  On October 22, 2007, Credit Suisse sent the Receiver a letter reiterating its
willingness to bid for the Policy and Portfolio #3 and gave notice that Credit Suisse would file a
formal objection to any application made by the Receiver to approve a bid for the Policy if the
Receiver did not provide Credit Suisse with sufficient information to make an offer for the

Policy. A copy of Credit Suisse’s October 22, 2007 letter is annexed hereto as Exhibit J.

14. Having not received a response to its October 22nd letter, by e-mail dated October
29, 2007, Credit Suisse requested that the Receiver advise whether he intended to either proceed
with an application to approve a bid on the Policy or provide Credit Suisse with an opportunity

to make abid. A copy of Credit Suisse’s October 29th e-mail is annexed hereto as Exhibit K.

15.  After several weeks of silence from the Receiver and no indication as to the
amount of any formal bid made by other parties on Portfolio #3 or the Policy, on November 27,
2007, Credit Suisse again sent a letter to the Receiver. A copy of Credit Suisse’s November 27th
letter is annexed hereto as Exhibit L. Based upon informal discussions between counsels for the
Receiver and Credit Suisse, Credit Suisse submitted an improved bid of $5,000,000 for the
Policy. However, despite its improved bid, Credit Suisse reaffirmed its: (a) request to be advised
whether or not its bid was the highest and best bid; and (b) opposition to the Receiver’s private
marketing process which Credit Suisse believes would not yield the highest and best result for

the receivership entities.

16. It would not be until January 10, 2008 before Credit Suisse would hear from the
Receiver. On that date, the Receiver telephonically advised counsel that he had accepted a bid

7



__ ______Qase 0:04-cv-80573-FAM  Document 2045  Entered on FLSD Docket 03/24/2008  Page 8 of 11

for Portfolio #3 that “almost doubled” Credit Suisse’s current bid. Without disclosure of the
identity of the bidder or the terms and amount of the bid, Credit Suisse declined to accept the

Receiver’s invitation to make a counter offer.

17. Thereafter, Credit Suisse communicated several times with the Receiver regarding
the Policy, but was provided no further information as to the identity of the bidder the sale to

whom the Receiver would seek to approve or the terms and the amount of the bid.

18. Upon the inquiry of Credit Suisse, on February 4, 2008, the Receiver told Credit
Suisse to expect a motion to approve the sale of the Policy “within the week.” No such motion
was filed for the entire month of February. On March 3, 2008, the Receiver once again informed
Credit Suisse that it would likely move to approve the sale of the Policy within the week. On

March 11, 2008, the Receiver filed the Sale Approval Motion.
. ARGUMENT

19.  Credit Suisse’s objection to the Motion is simple — it has not been afforded a fair
opportunity to bid on the Policy. However, Credit Suisse’s objection can be easily remedied -
by the Court affording Credit Suisse the opportunity to make a bid on the Policy in a forum
where the playing field for all potential participants is level. In the absence of such an
opportunity, the Receiver’s proposed sale of the Policy is deeply and fatally flawed and cannot

be approved.

20.  The Receiver has marketed the Policy both publicly and privately. After rejecting
Credit Suisse’s good-faith and arms-length offers made in broad daylight, the Receiver now

stands ready to go forward with a sale of the Policy that was undertaken in shadows. Because



Credit Suisse has been excluded both from the re-marketing process and has not been provided
with an opportunity to bid, the Receiver has failed to maximize value of the Policy for the benefit
of the creditors of these Receivership Entities. Indeed, by failing to pursue Credit Suisse’s
interest after he was on full notice that Credit Suisse was ready, willing and able to make an all-

cash bid for the Policy, the Receiver runs the risk of breaching his fiduciary duty to creditors.

71 Ttis axiomatic that a receiver is a fiduciary of the receivership estate. See Crites
Inc. v. Prudential Ins. Co., 322 U.S. 408 (1944) (holding that receiver violated its duty by failing
to disclose a potentially higher bid prior to seeking approval of sale of receivership property for a

lower price); Jackson v. Smith, 254 U.S. 586 (1921) (receiver liable to the receivership estate

where the receiver’s collusion with buyer of receivership property was an act “which a fiduciary

could not legally pursue”); In re Sundance Corp., 149 B.R. 641, 650 (Bankr. E.D. Wash, 1993)

(finding that “claims arise when a receiver breaches its fiduciary duties by mismanaging the
receivership.”). In the present context, the duty of the Receiver is to protect the creditors of the
Receivership Entities by maximizing the value of the Salable Policies. See Order Appointing
Receiver [DE 26] (noting that the SEC filed its emergency motion seeking appointment of the
Receiver to “take whatever actions are necessary for the protection of the investors™); Inre
CADA Inv, Inc., 664 F.2d 1158 (9th Cir. 1981) (affirming lower court order setting aside an
order confirming a sale of receivership property when the receiver neglected to pursue a
potentially higher bid prior to seeking approval of the sale). Moreover, as an officer or arm of
the court, the Receiver is “bound to act fairly and openly with respect to every aspect of the
proceedings before the court.” Crites, 322 U.S. at 414: see also Sundance, 149 B.R. 641, 654
(“When a receiver accepts appointment to its office, it undertakes duties to the court and to the

estate.”). Clearly, the Receiver has failed to discharge these obligations.

~ _g_as_g_(_)__:__(ing:gy-_qg_)_&_';zg-ff_ﬁ_\yl_ __Q_ocument 2045 Entered on FLSD Docket 03/24/2008 Page 9 of 11



Q_a_s__e_Q:Qgpy_—_@@{i_@fﬁ[\{lﬁ B Qgc_t_;_ment 2045 Entered on FLSD Docket 03/24/2008  Page 10 of 11

79 The Receiver’s decision to carry out a secretive re-marketing process rather than a
formal one harms the investors in the Receivership Entities. It is generally recognized that an
open competitive bidding process fetches the best return for the sellers because it encourages
serious bidders to expend their own resources to participate in the process by allowing the
bidders to rely on the fairness of the competition. Moreover, open bidding reduces the risk of
subsequent litigation and cost to the estate by verifying that no party intends to make a higher
bid. Notwithstanding the benefits of an open competitive process, the Recelver has refused to
provide any degree of transparency and fairness. After parties expended their own resources to
conduct extensive due diligence, the Receiver repeatedly changed the rules of bidding and later
aullified the result of the auction, Thereafter, the Receiver promised “formal re-solicitation” and
later abandoned any pretense of any intention to fulfill his promise after months of delay. The
Receiver has made it clear to potential buyers that their good faith participation at their own

expense will buy them only delay, misinformation, and litigation.

23 The Receiver’s conduct to date has not maximized the recovery to the creditors of
the Receivership Fstates. An open an fair auction process that includes Credit Suisse should

ensure that the Policy will be sold for maximum value.

IV. CONCLUSION

24. For the forgoing reasons, Credit Suisse respectfully requests that the Court: (a)(i)
provide Credit Suisse with an opportunity fora hearing on the Sale Approval Motion to submit
higher and better bids for the Policy or, (i) in the alternative, deny the Sale Approval Motion and

direct the Receiver to conduct an open an fair auction process for the Policy that includes a
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minimum bid by which the Receiver will be bound to go forward with and (b) grant Credit

Suisse such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

Dated: March 24, 2008

By:___s/Andrew Hellinger
HELLINGER & PENABAD, P.A.
Andrew B. Hellinger
235 Altara Avenue
Coral Gables, Florida 33146
Tel: (305) 567-2869
Fax: (305) 447-2294

-and -

SIDLEY AUSTIN LLP
Geoffrey T. Raicht (pro hac vice)
787 Seventh Ave.

New York, NY 10019

Tel: (212) 839-5300

Fax: (212) 839-5599

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of the foregoing was served upon all counsel
of record via the Court’s ECF system this 20" day of March, 2008.

HELLINGER & PENABAD, P.A.

235 Altara Avenue

Coral Gables, Florida 33146

Tel: (305) 567-2869; Fax: (305) 447-2294

By: ___s/Andrew Hellinger
Andrew B. Hellinger, Esq.
Florida Bar No: 861553
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KOZYAK - TROPIN
THROCKMORTON

ATTORNEYS AT LAW

David L. Rosendorf, Bsq.
dir@kitlaw.com | 3053770651

May 21, 2007

MUEUAL BENEFITS CORP. SOLICITATION OF BIDS

Dear Potential Bidder:

Roberto Maritinez (“Recefver”), as the Couri-appointed receiver for Mutual
Benefits Corp., Viatical Services, Twe, and Viatical Benefactors LLC (“Receivership
Entities”), mvites interested parties to submit offers to bid on ihe purchase of four
portfolins of viatical fnsurance policics. The four portfolios collectively vonsist of
approximately 1,942 policies with a face value of approximately $241,218.185, The
v Receiver seeks offers to parchase these fonr portfolios consistent with the Bidding
Procedures attached to this Jetter. This letter and the attached Bidding Procedures sef
forth information on the process and requirerents to gualify as a Potential Bidder and 1o
participate in the Auction of these four portfolios.

e et ¢ —

Please note that to be considered ag a qualified Potential Bidder, you muast satiely
certain qualifying requirements and submit a qualifying Bid by June 18, 2007 as described
in the attached Bidding Procedures, I multiple gualified Bids are submitied, an Auction
will be conducted in accordance with the Bidding Procedures on June 22, 2067,

Background

i On May 4, 2004, Mr. Martinez was eppointed as Receiver for the Receivership Emtities in
connection with an action filed by the Securities and Exchange Commission against the
: Receivership Entities in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Floxida (the
wCpurt™) styled SEC v. Muiugl Benefits Corp., et al., Case No. 04-60573-CIV-MORENOQ,
Pyrsuant to the Order Appointing Receiver (“Receivership Qrder™, the Receiver was given fall
and exclusive power, duty and authority to administer and manage the business affairs and assets
of the Receivership Entities. You may find the Receivership Order and other related court
documents on the Receiver’s website at www.mbereceiver.com.

The Receivership Entities were in the business of entering into and soliciting investments
in viatical or life settlement transactions. A viatical settlement is 2 transaction in which a
terminally ill owner of a life insurance policy scils the policy for an amount greater (han the cash
surrender value of the policy, but 1ower than the face amount, to an investor, who then receives a

EXHIBIT
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approximate aggregate face amount of these policies is $ 57,187,090 Portfolio #2 is comprised
of plans of insurance that are Universal Life and Whole Life with face amounts ranging from
$1,000 to $3,000,000. The approXimats net-cash surrender valie of Portfolio #2 is $3,010,226.

Porifolio # 3

Portfolio #3 is comprised of six (6) policies insuring the lives of individuals that are Non-HIV or
Life Settlements. The aggregate face amount of thoso policies is $64,547,500.00. Of these six
: policies in Portfolio #3, five (5) are Universal Life and one (1) is Tetmn (this term policy is within
i its conversion period) with face amounts ranging from $500,000 to $50,000,000. The
approximate net cash surrender value of Portfolio #3 is $577,481. :

! Porifolio # 4

Portfolio #4 is comprised of 749 policies; 726 of which insure the lves of individuals with HIV
and 23 of which insure the lives of individoals that are Non-HIV or Life Settlements. The
approximate aggregate face amount of these policies is $63,698,123. Portfolio #4 is comprised
of plans of insurance that are Term, Bmployer Group (including Federal Employees Group Life

; insurance “FEGLI”) and Asscciation Group Term with face amounts ranging from $2,000 to
$1.,000,000.

IMORTANT NOTICE: These fignres arc approximate as of Wlay 18, 2007 based on
information in the VS database ag of that date. Policies are subject to removal from a
Portfolio prior to sale in aceordance with the Asset Purchase Agreoment, Notification of
any removead policies will be provided in the course of due diligence and prior to Closing.

Bidding Process & Auction

The Bidding Prooess is set forth in the attached Bidding Procedures. ‘Without modifying
the attached Bidding Procedures (which any Potential Bidder should review in detail), in order to
participate in the Bidding Process, a Potential Bidder must first submit: (i) an exeeuted
confidentiality agreement; (i) current financial statements demonstrating the Potential Bidder’s
financial capacity; and (iif) an executed Affidavit of Non-Affiliation attesting that the Potential
Bidder has no relation to any of the Receivership Entities, named Defendants and Relief
Defendants end has never been officors, agents, employees, successors, or otherwise wers in
active or inactive concert or participation with any of them. Within two (2) Business Days after
receipt of these items, the Receiver will determine if such materials are satisfactory and upon
aceeptance thereof, will provide due diligence materials to the Potential Bidder.

Due diligence ‘materials will consist of a chart of the Palicies in each Portfolio with
relevant information as to each policy, together with other information available to the Receiver
selating to the Policies, and a copy of the Asset Purchase Agreement to be executed in
connection with the purchase and sale of the Policies. In addition, Potential Bidders may make
arrangements to conduct on-site due diligence at MBCs office,

3208/101/276422-1 }
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The deadline for submitting a Bid is 5:00 p.m. (prevailing Eastern time) on June 18,
2007. The requirements for & qualified Bid are set forth in the Bidding Procedures. Any
Poterttial Bidder may submit & Bid for any one, semg, or all of the four Portfolios presently
offered by the Receiver, however, a separate Bid must be submitted for each Portfolio for which
a Potential Bidder intends to make a Bid. Bach Bid should identify the Portfolio as to which
such Bid is submitted, '

If the Receiver has received more than one qualified Bid with respect {0 a particular
Portfolie, the Receiver will conduct en Auction at 10:00 a.m. {(prevailing Eastern time) on
Jrme 22, 2007 at the offices of the Receiver's counsel, Kozyak Tropin & Throckmorton, PA,
2525 Ponce de Leon Bounlevard, ot Bloor, Caral Gables, Florida, or such other time and place as
{he Receiver shall notify each Qualified Bidder. The procedures for the Auction are set forth in

the Bidding Progedures,

Additional information regarding the process for acceptance of Bids and Court approval,
the consequences of a Successful Biddex's ailure to consummate the sale, and the procedures for
return of deposits are set forth in the aitached Bidding Procedures.

If you have any questions regerding the Bidding Process, please direct them 1o the
undersigned. Thank you. ' '

Sipcerely,

David Rosehdorf, Bsq.
Counsel to Roberto Martinez, Receiver
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Exhibit A
BIDDING PROCEDURES

Set forth below are the bidding procedures (the “Bidding Procedures™ to be
employed with respect to the sale of the Acquired Assets identified in the Asset Purchase
Agresment by and between Roberto Martinez, as the Receiver (in such capacity, “Seller”)
appointed by the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida (the
“Court”) for Mutual Benefits Carp. (“MBC™, Viatical Services, Tno. (“VSI") and
Viatical Benefactors, LLC (“VBLLC") (the “Receivership Entities”} and Buyer, Unless
otherwise defined hersin, all capitalized terms have the meanings ascribed to them in the
Agreement.

The sale of the Acguired Assets under the Agreement (the “Sale™} is subject to
competitive bidding upon the terms and conditions set forth in these Bidding Procedwres,
and approval by the Court, Seller shail (i) determine whether any person is a Qualified
Bidder; (ii) cocrdinate the efforts of Qualified Bidders in conducting their due diligence
regarding the Acquired Assets; (iif) receive Bids from Qualified Bidders; and (iv)
negotiate any Bid made to purchase the Acquired Assets (the “Bidding Process”). No
person other than a Quzlified Bidder will be allowed o participate in the Bidding Process
and. Seller shall not supply any information regarding the Acquired Assets to any person
who is not a Qualified Bidder.

Participation Requircments

In order to participate in the Bidding Provess, each interested person {the
“Potential Bidder'™) must dsliver to Seller; ‘

(i an executed confidentiality agreement in the form attached hereto;

(li)  current financial statements {audited if available) of (A) the Potential
Bidder, or (B) if the Potential Bidder is an entity formed for the purpose of acquiring the
Acquired Assets, curtent financiul statement (audited if available) of the equity holder(s)
of the Potential Bidder who shall guarantes the obligations of the Potential Bidder, or
provide such other form of financial disclosure or credit-quality support information or
enhancement acceptable to Seller in Seller’s business judgment; and

(i) an executed Affidavit of Non-Affiliation attesting that they have no
relation to-any of the Receivership Entities, named Defendants and Relief Defendants and
have never been officers, agenis, employees, successors, Or otherwise weve in active or
inactive concert or participation with any of them, in the form aitached hereto,

Within two (2) Business Days after a Potential Bidder delivers sl the materials
set farth above to Seller, Seller shall determine and shall notify the Potenttal Bidder if
such materials are satisfactory to Scller based on Seller’s business judgment.
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Due Diligence

Upon Seller’s acceptance and approval of the materials set forth above,

eller shall deliver to each such Potertial Bidder a chart of the Policies included in the

Acquired Assets in Microsoft Excel format, which wil! contain relevant information as to

each policy. The chart will include, for each policy, the date of birth of the ingsured, the

last date of contact, the carrier, the type of policy, whether the policy was converted, the

face value, the gross and net cash valus, the last dividend (if any), the date values were

last updated, the due date of cagh value gusranteed rates, whether the policy is on

premium waiver, the date premium waiver needs to be recertified, the due date of the

premium, the mode of premium payment, the amount of the premiom, the date the policy

was issued, and whether the insured is HIV-positive. Each Potential Bidder will also

: receive a2 DVD of scanned Vesification of Coverage (“*vOC») forms in Portable

' - Document Format (“PDF™), which have been completed by the cartior as to sach Policy,

when provided by the carrier. In addition, Potential Bidders will receive a copy of the

Asset Purchase Agreement to be execuied in connection with the purchase and sale of the
Acguired Assels,

All Potential Bidders who have been approved by Seller may contact Stephen
Fernstrom {contact information below) to schedule an on-site viewing of the mctual
bidding package files. All bidding packages will be available on a DYVD and in paper
hard-copy format, The on-site viewing will be held at the MBC office in Pompano
Beach, Floride during regular business houts. No alternative atrangements will be made.
Approved Potential Bidders are invited, urged and cautioned ‘o inspect all available
information prior to submitting a bid.

Initial Bid Deadline

A Potential Bidder that desires to make a Bid shall deliver written copies of its
Bid to Seller no later than 5:00 p.m. (prevailing Eastern time) on June 18, 2007 (the
“Rid Deadline™). Bids shall be delivered to Seller’s counsel at:

Kozyak Tropin & Threckmorton, PA
2575 Ponce de Leon Boulevard, 9™ Floor
Coral Gables, FL 33134

Attention; David L. Rosendorf, Esg.
Telefacsimile: (305) 372-3508

Email: drosendorfi@kttlaw.com

with a copy 10!

; Stephen Fernstrom

i VSI/MBC

! 43 South Pompano Parleway, #112

: Pompano Beach, FL 33069

| Tel:  (954) 582-0220 Ext 244

| Fax: (954) 582-0223

\ Email: S.Fernstrom@vsi-services.com
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Bid Requirements

A bid (“Bid™ is a letter from an approved Potential Bidder stating that: (i) the
approved Potential Bidder offers to purchase the Acquired Assets on the terms set forth in
the Agreement, and setting forth the amount of the Tnitial Bid; and (i) the Potential
Bidder's offer is ivevocable until 48 hours after closing of the Sale to the Successful
Bidder. A Bid must be accompanied by: (i) the Initial Deposit of $100,000 required by
the Agreement; and (ii) written evidence of an ynconditional commitment for financing
or other evidence of financial ability to consummate the fransaction, acceptable to Seller
in his sole discretion. Each Bid shall specify the Porifolio as to which the Bid is made. If
a Potential Bidder seeks to make a Bid on multiple portfolios, a separate Bid (satisfying
all of the foregoing requirements including an Initial Deposit with respect to each such
Bid) shall be submitted as to each Portfolio.

Seller will consider a Potential Bidder to be a “Qualified Bidder” only if in
Seller’s business judgment the Potential Bidder’s Bid meets all of the following
reguiraments:

(i the Bid is all cash and does not contain any form of contingent
consideration ot consideration that is dependent an the mafurity of the Policies;

§1)} the Bid ig in the form of the Agresment;
(i)  the Bid is not subject to a financing or dus diligenoce contingency; and

'(iv} the Bid is accompenied by such other information as is reasonably
requested by Seller.

Within two (2) Business Days after receipt of a Bid, Seller shall advise the
Patential Bidder if they are a Qualified Bidder.

Auction

¥ Seller has received more than one Bid from a Qualified Bidder with respecitoa
particular Portfolio, Seller will conduct an auction (the “Auction™. The Auction shall
take place at 10:00_s.m, (orevailing Eastern fime) on June 22, 2007 (the “Auction
Date™), at the offices of Kozyak T ropin & Throckmorton, P.A., 2525 Ponce de lLeon
Boulevard, " Floor, Coral Gables, FI., or such other time and place as Seller shall notify
gach Qualified Bidder. -

Only Qualified Bidders shail be allowed to participate in the Auction. Within two
(2) Business Days after the Bid Deadline, Seller shall advise sach Qualified Bidder of the
highest Initial Bid received by Seller from a Qualified Bidder for the purchase of the
Acquired Assets, Each Qualified Bidder must inform Seller one (1) business day pricr to
the Auction Date of its intent to participate in the Auction. Seller may require & Qualified
Bidder o provide proof of its financlal ability to consummats a transaction in the amount
of the highest Initial Bid, if in Seller’s business judgment the information already
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provided by such Qualified Bidder is inadequate. Each Quelified Bidder who has timely
advised Seller of its intent to participate in the Auciion and who has, in Seller’s sole
discretion, demonstrated a financial ability to consumimate 2 {ransaction in the amount of
the highest [nitial Bid, shall be eligible to participate in the Auction (an “Aucijon

Participant™).

At the Auction (i) each Auction Participant will be permitted to increase its Bid;
and (ii) all Bids shall be made and received in one room, on an open basis, and all other
Auction Participants shall be entitled to be present for ali bidding with the understanding
that the true identity of each Auction Participant shall be fully disclosed to all other
Aunction Participants and thet all material terms of each Bid will be fully disclosed to all
other Auction Participants throughout the entire Bidding Process, Bidding shall be
insrements of at least 1% of the highest [nitial Bid and shall be on an all cash basis and
shall not contain any form of contingent consideration or consideration that is dependent
upon the maturity of the Acquired Assets,

The Auction shall continue until such time as each Auction Participant has
indicated its unwillingness to increass its Bid in accordance with these Bidding
Procedures. Upon conclusion of the Auction, Seller shall identify the Bid that in its
business judgment based on the requirements of these Bidding Procedures is the highest
and best Bid (the “Highest Bid™). Seller shall notify all Auction Participanis, prior to the
adjournnent of the Auction, of the Highest Bid, and of the next highest and best Bid (the

- “Baclup Bid™),

Within one (1} Business Day after the conclusion of the Auction, the Bidder who
submitted the Highest Bid (“Highest Bidder™) and the Bidder who submitted the Backup
Bid (“Backup Bidder™) shall each remit to Seller a second deposit equal to 10% of their
respective final Bids at Auction, less $100,000.00 (the “Second Deposit™), in
immediately available funds, such that each such Bidder’s Initial Deposit together with
their Second Deposit shall squal 10% of such Bidder’s final Bid at Auction.

In the event that the Highest Bidder fails to timely remit the Second Deposit, then
its Inttial Deposit shail be forfeited and Seller may in his business judgment proceed to
sell the Acquired Assets to the Backup Bidder as if the Backup Bidder were the Highest
Bidder in accordance with the procedures set forth below. In the event that the Backup
Ridder fails to timely remit the Second Deposit, then its Initial Deposit shall be forfeited.

Acceptance of Bid

Seller may (a) determine, ‘in its business judgment, which Bid, if any, if the
Highest Bid; and (b) reject, at any time before entry of the Sale Order, any Bid that (i) is
inadequate or Insufficient, (ii) not in conformity with these Bidding Procedures, any order
of the Court, or the terms and conditions of the Agreement, or (iii) contrary to the best
interests of Selter. If Seller detormines, in his sole discretion, that the Highest Bid
represents a transaction which is in the best interests of the Receivership Entities and
their creditors, then Seller shail notify the Highest Bidder of his aceeptance of such Bid,
subject to Court approval. If Seller determines, in his sole diseretion, that the Backup Bid
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represents a transaction which is in the best interests of the Reoeivership Entitics and
their creditors, then Seller shall notice the Backup Bidder of his acceptance of such Bid,
subject to Court approval and subject to the fajlure of the Highest Bidder to timely close -
on the Sale pursuant to and in accordance with the terms of the Agreement.

Promptly after the conclusion of the Auction and Seller’s determination that the
Highest Bid (and, if applicable, Backup Bid) represcnts a transaction which is in the best
interest of the Receivership Entities and their creditors, Seller shall file a motion with the
Court seeking the entry of a Sale Order approving the selection of the Highest Bidder as
the Successful Bidder and authorizing and approving the 3ale to the Successful Didder
! pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Agreement, and, if applicable, approving the
’ selection of the Backup Bidder. Upon the entry of such Sale Order, the Highest Bidder
shall be the “Successful Bidder”. Seller shall seek the entry of the Sale Order cn an
expedited basis as socn as reasonably possible following the conclusion of the Auction.
Seller shall have accepted a Bid only when such Bid has been approved by the Court
pursuant to the Sale Osder,

Subject to Court approval pursuant to the Sale Order, Seller shall effect the Sale
of the Acquired Assets to the Successful Bidder in accordance with the terms of the
Agreernent,

Failure to Consummate Sale

1f the Buccessful Bidder fails fo consummate the sale of the Acquired Assets
because of a breach or failure to perform on the part of such Suvcessful Bidder, Seller
shall be authorized to effect a sale to the Backup Bidder pursuant to the terms of the
Backup Bid, as approved pursuant to the Sale Order, without further order of the Court,
'The Successfnl Bidder's Initizl Deposit and Second Deposit shall be forfeited to Seller,
and except to the extent otherwise provided in the Agreement, Seller expressly reserves
all rights to seek damages or other relief from such Successful Bidder.

In the event that the Successful Bidder fails to Close by the Closing Date (which
is no later than three (3} Business Pays after the entry of the Sale Order), Seller, within
24 hours thereafler, shall notify the Backup Bidder of such failure and Backup Bidder
shall beecome the Successful Bidder, and the Closing Date with respect to the Backup
Bidder shall be within twa (2) Business Days after Seller's transmission of such notice 1o
ihe Backup Bidder.

Return of Deposits

The Initial Deposit 2nd Second Deposit of the Successful Bidder and the Backup
Bidder shall be held by Seller until the later of (i) two (2) Business Days after
consummation of the Sale of the Acquired Assets, or (i) the date upon which the
Agreement is terminated in agcordance with its terms, subject to the terms set forth in the
Agreememt.  All other Initia]l Deposits and Second Deposits of all other Auction
Participants shall be returned within two (2) Business Days after the conclusion of the
Auction,
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Contact Information

Far Bid Qualification Information Contacts

David Rosendorf, Esq.

Counsel to Ressiver Roberlo Martinez
Kozyak Tropin & Throckmeotton, P.A.
2525 Ponce De Leon, 9 Floor

Coral Gables, FL 33134

Tel:  {305)372-1800

Fax: (305)372-3508

emall: drosendorfl@ictlaw.com

For Due Dilipence Coordinafion Contacf:

Stephen Fernstrom

VYSI/MBC

43 South Pompano Parkway, #112 .
Pompano Beach, FL. 33069

Tel:  (954) 582-0220 Dixt 244

Fax: (954) 582-0223

Email: S.Fernstrom{@vsi-services.com
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CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT
EBIDDER FOR MUTUAL BENEFITS VIATICAL PORTFOLIOS

AGREEMENT dated __, 2007, by and among Roherto
Martinez, Recciver for Mutual Benefits Corp., Viatical Services, [ngc. Viatical
Benefactors, LLC, Petor Lombardi, Leslic Steinger a/ka/ Leslie. Steiner, and Anthony
Livoti, Ir,, P.A, and related entities {*MBC"), and
(the “Bidder").

WHEREAS, the Bidder wishes to undertake due diligence review of records
related to the insurance policies in which MBC holds or expects to be awarded beneficial
and/or ownership interests (the “Insurance Portfolios”), for the purpose of making an

_offer to purchase those interests;

" WHEREAS, the Bidder hes requested to underteke a due diligence review of the
Insurance Portfolios by viewing documents and records in the possession of the Receiver
and not otherwise subject to review;

WHBEREAS, the relevant records contaln information of a highly personal nature
that could encroach on the privacy rights of the individuals ("viators”) insured by the
policies that comprise the Ingurance Portfolios;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein the
parties agree as follows:

1. As used herein, “Confidential Information” means all information
regardless of the form, date or party from whom it is transmitted, related to any of the
insurance policies that comprise the Insurance Portfolios,

2, The Bidder shall only use the Confidential Information for the purpose of
evaluating a possible acquisition of the Insurance Portfolios. The Bidder shall not
disclose any Confidential Information it receives from any source to any person, firm or
corporation except employees of the Bidder and its affiliated companies who have a need
to know the Confidential Information in connection with the possible acquisition of the
Insurance Portfolios, and who have been informed of and agree to comply with the
Bidder’s oblipations hereunder,

3. Information shall not be deemed Confidential Information for purposes of
this Agreement, and the Bidder shall have no obligation with respect to any such
information, which: {a) is already known to the Bidder at the time of its disclosure; (b) is
ar becomes publicly known through no wrongful act of the Bidder, (e) is independently
developed by the Bidder; or (d) the Bidder is advised by counsel is lawfully required to
be disclosed to any government agency or is otherwise required to be disclosed by law,
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Confidential Information disclosed pursuant to this

~ Agreement shall remain confidential and subject to this agteement, notwithstanding that

such information later becomes publicly known through any other law({ul means,
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4, All Confidential Information disclosed by the Receiver to the Bidder
pursuant to this Agreement in tangible form (including, without Jimitation, information
incorporated in cornputer software) shall be and remain property of the Receiver, and all
such Confidential Information shail be promptly returned by the Bidder upon receipt ofa
written request from the Recelver,

5. The Bidder acknowledges that nothing herein shall render the Receiver
responsible for the acouracy of the Confidential Information,

6. This Agreement shal] be gaverned by the laws of the State of Florida.

7. The parties agree that any dispute with regard to this agreement will be
subject to the jurisdiction of the United States District Court, Southern District of Florida,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the
date first above written.

David Rosendorf, Esq. Name of Bidder
Attorney for Roberto Martinez, Recciver for

. Mutual Benefits Corp. et al.

| 2525 Ponce De Leon, 9" Floar A ddress/Phons
Coral Gables, Florida 33134

Tel: (305) 372-1800
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MBC — BIDDER AFFIDAVIT OF NON-AFFILIATION

STATE OF J
)58
COUNTY OF )]
Before me, the wmdersigned - authority, personally appeared

(“Affiant”}, who after being duly sworn, deposes and states:

1. Affignt, as authorized representative of {insert
company name} (“Potential Bidder™), desires to participate in the bidding for the austion of the
Mutual Benefits Corporation Viatical Portfolio to be conducted by Roberto Martinez, Receiver
for Mutual Benefits Corporation, Viatical Benefactors, LLC and Viaticel Services, Inc., et al.

2, Affiant represents that neither he nor Potential Bidder, nor any person acting in
concert with Potenfial Bidder or on Potential Bidder’s bahalf, including shareholders, directors,
officers, managers, employees, agents, pariners, or associates, s related to by blood or marriage
or iz in any manner affiliated in any respect with MUTUAL BENEFITS CORP., JOEL
STEINGER a‘i/a JOEL STEINER, LESLIE STEINGER a/k/a LESLTE STEINER, and PETER
LOMBARDL Defendants, VIATICAL BENEFACTORS, LLE, VIATICAL SERVICES, INC.,
KENSINGTON MANAGEMENT, INC.,, RAINY CONSULTING CORP., TWIN GROVES
INVESTMENTS, INC,, P.JL, CONSULTING, INC., SK& CONSULTING, INC., and
CAMDEN CONSULTING, INC., Relief Defendants (the “Receivership Entitics™), and have
never been officers, agents, employees, suscessors, nor any other persons in active or inactive
congert or participation with any of the Receivership Entities.

3. Affiamt further represents thai other than Roberio Martinez, as Receiver, no
person or entity in any manner affiliated with the Receivership Entities shall receive any money
or ather consideration in connection with this auction of the MBC Viatical Portfolic.

4, Affiant further l‘epresénts that none of the Receivership Entities, nor any pereon
acting in concert with, or on hehalf of them, is acquiring any interest in the Mutue] Benefits
Corporation Viatical Portfolio,

FURTHER AFFIANT BAYETH NAUGHT.

:  Signature:
Print Name & Title;

i The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me  this day of
» 2007, by who is personally known to
me/fwho has produced as identification and whe did/did not take an oath.

Notary Public, State of
Print Name;
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EXHIBIT B
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;

Rolvto Matfines, As theCourt-Appolsitod Reseiver (the “Réceivos™ :
for Mutua) Benofits Corp., Vistical Services, Inc. gad
Vitical Benefachpis, LLE (the “Recetvershiip Entigiay™)

This Bid Cover Sheet famads s 15% day ofune, 2007 @her"Bid Dine™) dhd it sttached to and
made a part of the offer letier {the “Dffer™} from: Credit Suisse Secunifins (Burope) Limited
(“Cinodit, Suisst™, 1o the Recaiver fr“thic purchase of those: eertaie Univesal Life and Term
plabs, of ingiwande identified as “Portfblia #3™ in the solictation of bid Ieker dard May 21,
2087, fromBPravid L, Rosesdert, colifsel to'the Reticiver {tic “Sulicitation Letipr). in boanection
‘with the reveivership procuedings undee Case Ne. 04-60573-GIV-MORENGIHSIMONTON (ihe
- “Regdivershiy Progeidings™) peoding in the United Stiss Distict Cougt forthiz Southem District
of Forida {the “EHiin™).

dDepislt,  Cicdit Sitisse Ly delivifed 10 Hhie Regéiver e suq of $100,000 9 its
depostt (the *Injlial BId") Bt the adsots in Portolio 3. The Inifial Bid was sent by
wiie transtepursisant to the following wirednstryctiony sypplisll by theRecelver's counsel:

“Total Bank i

Mifiii, Flgzida ' |

Asgpuny Weme: Kozyal Tragin & Throckihorton, P.A, MBE Trusf |
HorengtAl '

Azcownt Mo, %%64764%

ABA No. D66figh155 . }

SwittRet T L B ¥ USEM |

A8 priwided 31t o Bidding Procedues tivhich were anstiiced . the yibposalf Asset Purdhiise
Sgreciit and Solivitition Litter), I Credit Seitee is wit the Suctessfu] Bitkder-o¢ Bagkup
Bidder, fhe Jifisl Depsit shall be Setarnel fo Credit Suiste withih two {2) busiess days affer
thiecionchision oFfie Auefion.

Terms. Gredit Sidssels gffer loguathiago the assets in Pottfolio #3 4s: (%) all castiand does neit
contayy any form 4F contingent sonsiderition orconsideration. tha iy depandent o the matiiiy
of tha Relicls; (b) i the forin.of Hi propgsed Agset Pusiase Agrossitnt asicxed hispeto a3 Taly
1, plog any ailiitiond] teems thaf the paties wiay mifvally dgrogi dnd (o) npt subject to &
finaicing or due diligence gontingeticy. o

L S

drveyorability. Credlit Suiuse’s offer torpirchase fhe agsets inPortfoliv #3 is imevagableantil 48
hours after closing 6fhe sulato the'Successful Bidden

¥, On 6 about May 99, 2007, pursuanttaithe tems of the Bzﬁthng

Procedurds, Crédit Suiste defiVered to.1he Regeiver, amotg. othdr things, financial statements for
Crydit Sufose Seentrities fBurope) Limifted, in comection with Cyedit Snisse’s sequest o conduct
dug diligencs. Exidencs of Cregic Sfise’s Bnoodad abiiily to sonsuminate the transaction is
fourid in the fnunial stifamonty previisusly sitbmitied to the Risgéiver, For conversince, an
addifional capy of such fiaancial dtatemerits isannexed heréto at Tab 2. |

© et e e o
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CraditSnisse:

With 2 o DEE

Eredit Shisse Seourities. {Burope) Limited
ofo Credit Sulsse Securities (USA), LLC
Atggritions; M. Matthew ’\?‘a‘hdcm(;k
Bievon Madison Avsaue, 5® Floor

New Yo, NY 10010

Telephotie: (218y3250¢1%

Facsgmﬂt: {212) 322&“@52

Sidley Auitin LEP
Adtention: Geoffrey T. Raicht, E
it 'Smemh &Yenne *

Hame: ' “’@‘%f"}g SCoRES

Hﬁtﬁ Slgnghh: !Wcﬁi‘@;r
Name: T T
Titls:

Date: ﬁtgneé. BRALSHIEAN]
Menaing Dieslor
T OFIEL e,

Page3of115

et oamee
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CREDIT SLIISSE CREDIT SUISSE SECURITIES (EUROPE) UIMHED
C RE D! T S U 1S SE Ui Cabist Squara Fhone. -#44 (020 7883191,
Lontion E14.2Q4 Fax 444 (G*}QQ T888-D5 T

www. cregdi-suisseseam

June 18, 2007

By: Electronie Kail

Dewid L, Resendod, Esq Bteven Fernstrom

Cauiisel to-Reberts Marting?, VEI/MBE: -
Coutt-Bppainted Raceiver 48 South Pomparo Parlevay, #1172 |

Kazyak Teopin & Throtkeartany BLA. Porfpano Brch, FL 33069 s

9595 Pongs:De Lgon; Gt Floor Tel: (954) 5620090 %244 !

Caral Gables; FL 88134 Fac: (954) 589-0993

Tek {305) 372- 1800

Fak: (308} 872-3608

Eniail; drogendatfgicila,

Re:  Mutial Betiéfits Corp., Viaticsl Services, Inc. and 'Viatical Benefustors; 1.1.C,
In Recelvership Proceeditigs Under Case Ni. 04-60573-CTV-MORENG:
SIMONTONYS.D, Fla.): ,
Offer Leiter : ;

Dear M. Rosendorfy é
Ciedit Shisss Seciiriges (Eufepe) Limited (“Cradif Suisse”), s pleased to provide to you, iy
‘your capacity as.counsel to Roberto Martings, the couri-appointed racsiver frhie “Receiver™) for Mutuad:
Benisfits Corp, Viatical SprvicesyTne., aid Vigtical Benefictors, L (the "Régivéiship Brifities”), the
Tallowing -6ffer (the ) 1 #égnice. those dertain Universal Tife and Term plans of insuradee
identified as “Portiolio: #3" in your solicifaion of bid Jagter dated Way 21, 2007 (the: “Solicimtinn,
3 Letter™, Credit Snisse hag unpatalleled experfise, vesourzss and Tinsritial ¢apacity to cohplete-this
tdnsaction in o timsly fashibh. Morecyer, given our. outstanding sworld-wide reputation, we belfgve
fhiat a sale-of Portfolio#3 i i?reélft;{ﬁui_ssg{'wﬁlhﬁ‘ium@ best interssts of the Receivership Btities and
their creditors, This Jetter $6ts ont the basis of g Cffer i accordance With ihe Bidding Procedures,
witich yere aftaehed as Exhibit A fo the ‘proposed Assel Prrchuse: Agreement aind Solicitation Letter,
The Offer shallbe isrevorable until 48 fiotrs after Closing 6 the Sale to the Stceosshil Bitder ahd the
Otfer shall tefminaférupatithe eApiratiar of stih period.! |

; Prige. Credit Sifisse i prepared 16 purchase Portfolio #3-for an initiaf bid.of $1.‘f)a?oéa

* and, if necessary, any additiona] amerint offered by Credit Suisse’s représentative af the Jone
Z2, 2007 Auction (the. “Purchase Price™). The Purchase Brice assunies thit the gssets that
-¢omptise Portfolio #3 willbe codveyed free and clear of any Epearibrances,. ;

! Chpitalized termis ot défined Irbin.siid! havé-the feanings,ascribed to sueh terme in the B idding Procedures
arproposed Asset Burchasé Agregment, asapplicable, :
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Initia} Deposit {defined below), sud the'Biurchase Pyice will mot contais any form 8 confingent
Zonsiférationor comstderatinn thitis dependenton thenatiiity ofthe Policias. This Offer is not

subject 0.2 fancisg or due diligence contingengy.

Iuifial Deposit. As reqifred by the Bidding Procedures, Credit Sufsse hig deliveéred 1o the
Receiver s Initial Deposit of § 00,000 (the “Initial Desiosit™ by wire tmsisfes. To ¥ extont
Credit SuisSe iy the Snissessil Bidder for Pitfoliis #3, the Inttial Deposit will be-applied to the
Phirchasé Pricezs provided fndhe Bidding Procodurcs. s providediin the Bidding Progedurss; if
Ciredit Suisse is ot e Suocessful Brdderior Baskp Bidder; the loitinl Depbsit Shall b retutimod
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As the Receiver for Mutual Benefits Corp., Viatical Services, Inc.,
And Viatical Benefactors, LLC,
As Seller

And

CQEQIT Suisge -SECUR.J"HE_S' @UQOPE) L;M-ll.b

As Buyer

, 2007
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ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT

This ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT dated as of , 2007 is entered
.into by and betwcen Roberto Martinez, as the Receiver for Mutual Benefits Corp., a Florida
corporation (“MBC™), Viatical Services, Inc., a Florida corporation (“VSI”), and Viatical
Benefactors, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“VBLLC?”, and together with MBC and
VSI, the “Receivership Entities”) (in such capacity, “Seller”), and SZ€p (T SVISLE SEconiTibs

(“Buyer™). Seller, together with Buyer, may be referred to collectively as the “Partics”. ;gi"’g‘”’s)
YR TN

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Seller is the Receiver for the Receivership Entities under Case No. 04-
© 60573-CIV-MORENO-SIMONTON (the “Receivership Proceeding™) in the United States
District Court for the Southern District of Florida (the “Court™); and

WHEREAS, Seller was appointed as Receiver for the Receivership Entities pursuant to
the Order Appointing Receiver entered by the Court on May 4, 2004 (the “Receivership Order”);
and ‘

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Receivership Order, Seller was authorized to take possession
of all of the assets of the Receivership Entities, including the “Acquired Assets” (as defined
below), and was vested with all power and authority to, among other things, administer and
manage the assets and business affairs of the Receivership Entities; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Order on Disposition of Policies and Proceeds entered by the
Court on September 14, 2005 (*Disposition Order™), Seller has been vested with full power and
authority to sell the Acquired Assets; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Order Granting Receiver’s Motion to Authorize Procedures
for Re-Designation of Beneficial Interests in Insurance Policies entered by the Court on January
30, 2007 (“Re-Designation Order”), Seller hag been designated as the Policy Owner or Absolute
Assignee and Nominal Beneficiary with respect to- all Policies administered through the
Receivership Proceeding, including the Acquired Assets; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Order Regarding Future Administration of Certain Insurance
Policies Subject to this Proceeding entered by the Court on May 1, 2007 (“Future Administration
Order™), the Court has approved certain procedures applicable to specified Listed Insurers for,
among other things, the re-designation of ownership and beneficial interests in certain Policies
issues by the Listed Insurers upon the sale of such Policies by Seller; and

WHEREAS, Seller desires to, on behalf of Seller and each Receivership Entity, sell and
assign to Buyer, and Buyer desires to purchase from Seller and ecach Receivership Entity and
accept assignment from Seller and each Receivership Entity of the Acquired Assets, all upon the
terms and conditions set forth herein,

3298/101/276327-1 1
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NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, and in
consideration of the representations, warranties and covenants contained herein, the Parties,
intending to be legally bound thereby, agree as follows: :

ARTICLE 1
DEFINITIONS

“Acquired Assets” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1 of this Agreement.
“Agreement” means this Asset Purchase Agreement (together with all schedules and
exhibits attached hereto, which are deemed a part hereof), as may be amended, modified,

supplemented and/or restated from time to time in accordance with its terms,

“Assumed Liabilities” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.3 of this Agreement.

“Auction” means the auction of the Policies conducted by Seller in accordance with the
Bidding Procedures.

“Backup Bid” has the meaning set forth in the Biddiﬁg frocedures.

“Backup Bidder” has the meaning set forth in the Bidding Procedures.

“Bid” has the meaning set forth in the Bidding Procedures.

“Bidding Procedures” means the procedures to be followed by Seller for soliciting 1hé

highest and best offer for the Acquired Assets, and to conduct an auction sale of the Acquired
Assets, as set forth in Exhibit A hereto. .

“Business Day” means any day other than a Satufday, Sunday, or any other day
designated as a holiday by the Court,

“Buyer” has the meaning set forth in the preface above, -
“Closing” has the ﬁleaning set forth in Section 3.1 of this Agreement.
“Closing Date™ has the meaning set forth in Section 3.1 of this Agreement.

“Confidentiality Agreement” has the meaning set forth in the Bidding Procedures.

“Court” has the meaning set forth in the preface above.
“Disposition Order” has the meaning set forth in the preface above.

“Encumbrance” means any lien (statutory or otherwise), claim, Liability, interest,
beneficial interest, right, pledge, option, charge, hypothecation, security interest, right of first

3298/101/276327-1 2
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refusal, mortgage, deed of trust or other encumbrance of any kind or any right or interest of any
party.

“Excluded Assets” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.2 of this Agreement.

“Final Purchase Price™ has the meaning set forth in Section 2.5 of this Agreement.

“Future Administration Order” has the meaning set forth in the preface above.

“Highest Bid” has the meaning set forth in the Bidding Procedures.

“Highest Bidder” has the meaning set forth in the Bidding Procedures.

“Initial Bid” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.4 of this Agreement.

“Initial Deposit” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.4 of this Agreement.

“Liabilities” means any and all debts, indebtedness,. losses', claims, damages, costs,
expenses, demands, fines, judgments, penalties, liabilities, commitments, sales commissions,
contracts, responsibilities and obligations of any kind or nature whatsoever, direct or indirect,
absolute or contingent, known or unknown, fixed or unfixed, due or to become due.

“MBC” has the meaning set forth in the preface above.,

“Parties” has the meaning set forth in the preface above.

: “Person” means any individual, partnership, joint venture, association, corporation,
busihess trust, limited liability company, trust, proprietorship, unincorporated association,
instrumentality, business organization, enterprise, joint stock company, estate, governmental
authority or other entity. -

“Policies” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1(a) of this Agreement,

“Potential Bidder”’ has the meaning set forth in the Bidding Procedures.

“Prorated Premium Amount™ shall mean the amount of all prepaid premiums, expenses
and charges with respect to any Policy which were paid by Seller on Policies for coverage
periods after the Closing Date. '

“Provider” means an insurance company of, in the case of a group Policy, an employer or
third party administrator, which provides insurance coverage with respect to a Policy.

“Purchase Price” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.4 of this Agreement.

“Purchase Price Adjustments” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.5 of this Agreement.

3298/101/276327-1 3
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“Qualified Bidders” has the meaning set forth in the Bidding Procedures.

“Receivership Entities” has the meaning set forth in the preface above.

“Receivership Order” has the meaning set forth in the preface above.

“Receivership Proceeding” has the meaning set forth in the preface above.
“Re-DeSigﬁation Order” has the meaning set forth in the preface above.

“Qale Order” means an order of the Court approving and authorizing Seller to sell and
assign the Acquired Assets to Buyer in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

“Second Deposit” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.4 of this Agreement.
“Seller” has the meaning set forth in the preface above.

“Successful Bidder” has the meaning set forth in the Bidding Procedures,

“Taxes” means any federal, state, local or foreign met or gross income, mininum,
alternative minimum, sales, value added, use, excise, franchise, real or personal property,
transfer, conveyance, environmental, gross receipts, capital stock, production, business and
occupation, disability, employment, payroll, severance, withholding or other tax, assessment,
duty, fee, levy or charge of any nature whatsoever, whether disputed or not, imposed by any
governmental authority, and any interest, penalties (civil or criminal), additions to tax or
additional amounts related thereto or to the nonpayment thereof, including any obligations under

any agreement or other arrangement with respect to any of the foregoing.: ‘

“Transaction Documénts_” means collectively this Agreement, Bill of Sale, Assignment
and Assumption Agreement, and any other document executed by Seller or Buyer at the Closing
in commection with any of the foregoing. '

“YBLLC” has the meaning set forth in the preface above,
“Y8I” has the meaning set forth in the preface above.

ARTICLE 1 ‘
PURCHASE & SALE OF ASSETS

7.1  Purchase and Sale. On the terms and conditions set forth herein, Buyer agrees to
purchase from Seller, and Seller agrees to sell, transfer, assign, convey, and deliver to Buyer, all
of the Acquired Assets at the Closing for the consideration specified in this Section 2.1 of this
Agreement, such sale being pursuant to a Sale Order entered by the Court which shall authorize
the transfer the Acquired Assets to Buyer free and clear of any Encumbrances, containing in
substance the terms reflected in the attached Exhibit B. For purposes of this Agreement,
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“Acquired Assets” means all right, title and interest in and to the following items as in existence
on the Closing Date:

(a) the title (whether by ownership interests of individual policies or as group
certificate assignee) together with the beneficial interests of the life insurance policies as more
fully described in Schedule 2.1 attached hereto (the “Policies”);

(b) all files, records, documents, instruments, papers, correspondence,
communications, books and records evidencing or relating to the Policies, whether in physical,
electronic or other form or medium, including without limitation (i) the Policies and all
correspondence relating thereto; (if) all information and records with respect to the health status
and whereabouts of each insured under a Policy; (ili) all accounting records, including the
accounting and bookkeeping records incident to the ownership, premium payments, and receipts
and distributions of proceeds with respect to each Policy made to or received from the Provider
that issues the Policies, (iv) all documents and instruments executed and/or delivered by or to
Seller, a Receivership Entity, an insured, or viator in respect of Policy (collectively, the “Policy
Files™); provided that, Policy Files shall not include any confidential information relating to any
third party investor (i.e., a person that is not Seller, a Receivership Entity or any affiliate of a
Receivership Entity) owning an interest in the Policies, nor shall Policy Files include the
database utilized by VSI to service the Policies.

' {¢)  all death benefits, proceeds and other amounts paid or payable under or
otherwise in respect of any Policy on or after the Closing Date, with respect to the actual death of

the insured; .

(d)  all rights of recourse or recovery against any third party, and all other
claims, rights and causes of action, relating to or arising out of any of the foregoing.

2.2 Excluded Assets. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement,
Seller shall not sell, transfer, assign, convey or deliver to Buyer, and Buyer shall not purchase or
accept from Seller, any of the following: .

(a) any asset or property 6f Seller or any Receivership Entity that is not
specifically set forth in Section 2.1 hereof;

(b)  any Policy identified in Schedule 2.1 with respect to which Seller has
provided Buyer, prior to the Closing Date, documentation evidencing the death of the insured
under such Policy, including any death benefits, proceeds or amounts paid or payable under or
otherwise with respect to such Policy (as to which the Purchase Price shall be adjusted in
accordance with Section 2.5 hereof).

2.3  Assumption of Liabilities. At the Closing, Buyer shall assume from the
Receivership Entities, and thereafter pay, perform and discharge in accordance with their
respective terms, all obligations that arise under the Policies from and after the Closing Date,
including without limitation, all obligations to pay premiums thereunder which become due on
and after the Closing Date, and including without lirnitation reimbursement of premiums to an
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insured person under a Policy if the Policy is a group plan of insurance and premiums are paid by
the insured via payroil deductions (the “Assumed Liabilities™).

2.4 Purchase Price. Buyer agrees to purchase the Acquired Assets for an initial bid of
$ /oo, goo. ©o  (the “Initial Bid”), subject to higher and better offers in accordance with
the Bidding Procedures. Buyer shall remit to Seller an initial deposit of One Hundred Thousand
Dollars ($100,000.00) upon delivery of this Agreement (the “Initial Deposit™). Within one (1)
Business Day after the conclusion of the Auction, if Buyer’s final Bid at Auction is identified as
the Highest Bid or Backup Bid, Buyer shall remit to Seller a second deposit equal to 10% of its
final Bid at Auction, less $100,000.00 (the “Second Deposit”) in immediately available funds,
such that the Initial Deposit together with the Second Deposit shall equal 10% of its final Bid at
Auction, The Initial Deposit and Second Deposit shall be remitted by Buyer to Seller in the form
of a bank Cashier’s Check made payable to “Roberto Martinez, as Receiver” or by wire transfer
to the Kozyak Tropin & Throckmorton, P.A. MBC Trust Account, TotalBank, Miami, Florida,
Account No. 0716434306, ABA No, 0716434306, If Buyer is deemed to be the Successful
Bidder, the Purchase Price shall be adjusted to an amount equal to Buyer’s final Bid at the
Auction, if higher than the Injtial Bid (the “Purchase Price™), subject to the Purchase Price
Adjnstments. In the event that Buyer is deemed to be the Successful Bidder, the Initial Deposit
and Second Deposit shall be applied to the Final Purchase Price at Closing. The Initial Deposit
and Second Deposit shall be non-refundable if the Buyer is determined by the Court to be the
Successful Bidder and subsequently fails to timely close on the sale of the Acquired Assets
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.

2.5  Purchasg Price Adjustments. At the Closing Date, the following
adjustments shall be made to the Purchase Price, which after such adjustments shall be the “Final
Purchase Price™:

(a) in the event any Policy listed in Schedule 2.1 shall become an Excluded
Asset pursuant to Section 2.2 hercof prior to the Closing Date, the Purchase Price shall be
reduced pro rata based upon the ratio of the Purchase Price to the aggregate face value of the
Policies prior to the exclusion of such Policy from the Acquired Assets; i.e., if (i} a Policy with a
face value of §1,000,000 becomes an Excluded Asset, (ii) the Purchase Price is $10,000,000 and
(iii) the aggregate face value of the Policies, prior to the Policy becoming an Excluded Asset,
was $50,000,000, then the Purchase Price shall be reduced by $1,000,000 x
($10,000,000/850,000,000) = $200,000.

()  at the Closing Date, the Purchase Price shall be increased to include an
amount ecual to Prorated Premium Amount.

ARTICLE IfT
CLOSING

3.1  Closing. Unless this Agreement shall have been terminated pursuant to Section 8
hereof the closing of the transactions contemplated hereby shall take place on or before the third
(3") Business Day after the Court has entered the Sale Order (the “Closing Date”), unless
extended by mutual written agreement of the Parties. The Closing shall be held at the offices of
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Kozyak, Tfopin & Throckmorton, P.A., 2525 Ponce de Leon Boulevard, Miami, Florida 33134,
unless the Parties agree otherwise.

32 Deliveries by Seller, At the Closing, Seller shall deliver to Buyer: (i) the Bill of

Sale and Assignment and Assumption Agreement with respect to the Acquired Assets, executed

- by Seller; and (ii) a copy of the Sale Order approving the sale of the Acquired Assets to Buyer
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.

3.3 Deliveries by Buyer. At the Closing, Buyer shall deliver to Seller: (i) the Bill of
Sale and Assignment and Assumplion Agreement with respect to the Acquired Assets, executed
by Buyer; and (ii) the full amount of the Final Purchase Price, less the Initial Depaosit and Second
Deposit, in immediately available funds.

ARTICLE 1V
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF SELLER

Seller hereby represents and warrants to Buyer as of the date hereof and as of the Closing
Date as follows:

4.1 Status as Receiver. Seller is the duly appointing and acting Raceiver for the
Receivership Entities.

4.2 Authority, Power and Binding Effect. Subject to the entry of the Sale Order,
Seller has all requisite power and authority, pursuant to the Receivership Order, the Disposition
Order, and the Re-Designation Order, to execute and deliver this Agreement and to perform its
obligations under this Agreement and the Transaction Documents, including without limitation,
the power and authority to sell the Acquired Assets free and clear of all Encumbrances. Seller
has duly executed and delivered this Agreement and each other Transaction Document to which
Seller is a party, and when delivered by Seller in accordance with this Agreement, each other
Transaction Document to which Seller will be a party will be duly executed and delivered by
Seller. Upon entry of the Sale Order, this Agreement and each other Transaction Document when
duly executed ‘and delivered shall constitute a legal, valid and binding obligation of Seller,
enforceable against Seller in accordance with their terms.

43  Title to Acquired Assets. Seller has good and valid title to the Acquired Assets

and has all claims, options, privileges, right, title and interest in, to and under the Acquired

- Assets free and clear of any Encumbrances, Subject to the entry of the Sale Order, alt of Seller’s

and each Receivership Entity’s claims, options, privileges, right, title and interest in to, and .

wnder the Acquired Assets, including all beneficial interests in the Policies, will be sold,

conveyed, assigned, transferred and delivered to Buyer at Closing, free and clear of all
Encumbrances.

4.4, Asls, WhereIs. The sale of the Acquired Assets shall be made “as is, where is”
without any recourse whatsoever against the Seller, the Receivership Entities, or any of their
professionals, employees or agents, Neither the Seller, the Receivership Entities, or any of their
professionals, employees or agents shall be construed as having made any representations or
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warrarities as to title, merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose, express, implied, or
otherwise, unless specifically set forth in this Agresment,

4.5  Brokers and Finders. Seller has not engaged any broker, finder or financial
advisor, or incurred any liability for any fees or commissions to any broker, finder or financial
advisor, in connection with this Agreement or the transactions contempldted hereby for which
Buyer could be liable.

ARTICLE V
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF BUYER

Buyer hereby represents and warrants to Seller as of the date hereof and as of the Closing
Date as follows:

5.1  Existence and Standing. In the event Buyer is a corporation, partnership or
limited liability company, it is duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the
laws of the state of its organization with all the requisite power and authority to carry on its
business as presently conducted by it.

5.2 Authority, Power and Binding Effect. Buyer has all requisite power and authority
{0 execute and deliver this Agreement and to perform its obligations under this Apreement and
the Transaction Documents, Buyer has duly executed and delivered this Agreement and each
other Transaction Document to which Buyer is a party, and when delivered by Buyer in
accordance with this Agreement, each other Transaction Document to-which Buyer will be a

- party will be duly executed and delivered by Buyer. This Agreement and each other Transaction

Document when duly executed and delivered shall constitute a legal, valid and binding
obligation of Buyer, enforceable against Buyer in accordance with their terms,

53  No Violation; Consents. The execution, delivery and performance by Buyer of
this Agreement and each other Transaction Document to which Buyer is or will be a party and
the consummation by Buyer of ‘all of the tfransactions contemplated hereby and thereby,

‘including without limitation the purchase and acceptance of the -Acquired Assets and the

assumption of the Assumed Liabilities by Buyer (a) do not and will not violate any provision of
the organizational documents of Buyer; (b) do not and will not result in violation of any of the
terms, conditions or provisions of any agreement or instrument to which Buyer is a party or by
which Buyer or any of its assets or properties is bound; (c¢) do not and -will not result in a
viclation of any applicable law, ordinance, regulation, permit, authorization or decree or any
order of any court or other governmental agency applicable to Buyer or any of its assets or
properties; (d) do not and will not require any consent, waiver, approval, license, order,

designation or authorization of, notice to, or registration, fiting, qualification or declaration with
any governmental authority or other Person to which Buyer or any affiliate thereof, or any asset
or property of Buyer, is bound.

54 Disclaimer.
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(a) Buyer acknowledges that in making the decision to enter into this
Agreement and to consummate the transactions contemplated thereby, Buyer has relied solely on -
the basis of its own independent investigation of the Acquired Assets and upon the express
written representations, warranties and covenants in this Agréement. Buyer has carefully
considered and has, to the extent Buyer belicves such discussion necessary, has discussed with
Buyer’s professional, legal, tax and financial advisors, the suitability of an investment in the
Acquired Assets for Buyer’s particular tax and financial situation and Buyer has determined that
an investment in the Acquired Assets is suitable for Buyer.

(b) Buyer has been presented with the opportunity to ask questions of and
receive satisfactory answers from Seller relating to the terms and conditions of the purchase and
sale of the Acquired Assets and to obtain any additional information necessary to verify the
accuracy of information made available to Buyer, and to the extent Buyer has availed itself of
such opportunity, Buyer has received satisfactory answers to all such questions,

(¢)  Buyer assumes the risk that after Closing, a Provider will refuse to change
ownership or beneficial interests in a Policy or refuse to pay to Buyer or its designee the death
benefits or other amounts payable or otherwise due in respect of a Policy, notwithstanding the
entry of the Receivership Order, the Disposition Order, and the Re-Designation Order, and the
Sale Orxder. .

(d) The sale of the Acqmred Assets shall be subject to higher and better offers
‘pursuant to the Bidding Procedures.

35 . Financial Abiligj. ‘Buyer has access to sufficient unrestricted funds, and will
.at the time of the Closing have sufficient unrestricted funds, to consummate the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement.

5.6  DBrokers and Finders. Buyer has not engaged any broker, finder or financial
advisor, or incurred any liability for any fees or commissions to any broker, finder or financial |
advisor, in connection with this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby for which
Seller could be liable. [ :

5.7  No Collusion. Buyer has not entered into any agreements, oral or written, with
any other Potential Bidder concerning the purchase and sale of the Acquired Assets at the
* Auction and has disclosed to Seller all parties to any joint venture, partnership or joint bid.

ARTICLE VI
COVENANTS OF THE PARTIES

6.1  General. Seller and Buyer shall use their commercially reasonable efforts to

cooperate, assist and consult with each other to consummate the transactions coniemplated by
this Agreement as promptly as practicable.

6.2 Access to Policy Files,
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() Prior to the Closing, Seller shall allow Buyer, during regular business
bours, to make reasonable investigation and inquiry related to the Purchased Assets, including by
providing access to the Policy Files and furnishing information as promptly as practicable to
Buyer thaf is reasonably requested by Buyer,

(b) Buyer acknowiedges that the Policy Files contain information of a highly
personal nature. Buyer agrees that it shall be bound by and shall comply with the terms of the
Confidentiality Agreement, and that both before and after the Closing Date, it shall comply in all
material respects with all privacy, confidentiality and other similar laws and regulations
governing the use and disclosure of the Policy Files and all other information relating to the
Policies or any insured thersunder.

6.3 Policy Notices.

(2) Not later than twenty (20) days after the Closing Date, Buyer shall deliver,
with respect to each Policy, written instructions to each Provider designating Buyer as the owner
of the Policy or assignee of any Policy that is & group Policy, and providing each such insurance
company with its mailing address for purposes of receiving all fiture notices of premium
payments due and other written communications from the insurance company respecting the
Policy.

(b}  Buyer shall be responsible for delivering to the Providers that issued the
Policies any instructions to change ownership and beneficiaries of such Policies, With respect to
any Providers which are designated as Listed Insurers in the Future Administration Order, such
instructions shall be provided by Buyer consistent with the terms of the Future Administration

Order,

(c) Without limiting or modifying anything else in this Section 6.3, Seller
shall reasonably cooperate and assist as requested by Buyer in obtaining Providers’ compliance
with instructions to Providers given by Buyer in accordance with and pursuant to this Section
6.3. :

64  Post-Closing Policy Proceeds and Communications.

(@ Any ‘proceeds or other amounts in respect of any Acquired Assets,
including without limitation any death benefits, received by Seller or any Receivership Entity
after the Closing Date shall be held by Seller in constructive trust for the benefit of Buyer, and

“Seller shall promptly notify Buyer in writing of the receipt of any such amount. All such

amounts so received by Seller or any Receivership Entity shall be remitted to Buyer within three
(3) Business Days of Seller’s or any Receivership Entity’s receipt thereof,

(b)  Seller shall promptly forward to Buyer any written correspondence, notice '
or other communication relating to the Acquired Assets that is received by Seller or any
Receivership Entity on or after the Closing Date,
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(© To the extent any party other than Buyer or Seller receives any proceeds
or other amounts in respect of any Policy which is an Acquired Asset, Seller shall, upon request
of Buyer, reasonable cooperate with Buyer’s efforts to recover such proceeds.

6.5 Transaction Costs; Taxes.

(a) Except as otherwise expressly provided for herein, Seller and Buyer will
bear their own costs and expenses (including any legal, accounting and other professional fees
and expenses) that are incurred in connection with the negotiation, execution and performance of
this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby.

(b)  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, all Taxes and other fees

- and charges incurred in connection with the consummation of the transactions contemplated

hereby, including the transfer to Buyer of the Acquired Assets, shall be paid by Buyer. Seller
and Buyer shall each be responsible for preparing and filing each tax return required by law to be
filed by it, and Seller and Buyer shall cooperate with each other in the preparation, execution and
filing of all tax returns regarding any taxes which become payable as a result of the transactions
contemplated hereby.

(c)  Subject to Section 6.5(b) Hereof, Seller shall be responsible for and pay or
cause to be paid when due all Taxps applicable to the Acquired Assets atiributable to any Tax
period {or portion thereof) ending prior to the Closing Date, and Buyer shall be responsible for

~ and pay or cause to be paid when due all Taxes applicable to the Acquired Assets attributable to

any Tax period (or portion thereof) on or after the Closing Date. For purposes of this section,
any period beginning before and ending after the Closing Date shall be treated as two separate
Tax periods, one ending on the day before the Closing Daie and the other beginning on the
Closing Date, except that Taxes imposed on a periodic basis (such as property Taxes) shall be
allocated on a daily basis.

ARTICLE VII
CONDITIONS PRECEDENT

7.1 Condltlons Precedent to Obligations of Buxer T_he ‘obligation of Buyer to

purchase and accept the Acquucd Assets and to assume the Assumed Liabilities from Seller
pursuant to this Agreement is subject to the satisfaction (or waiver by Buyer) at or prior to

Closing of cach of the following conditions:

(2) Seller shall have in all material respects performed and complied with
each of the covenants, obligations and agreements contained in this Agreement required to be
performed or complied with by Seller prior to or at the Closing;

(b)  Seller shall have delivered to Buyer all of the items specified to be
delivered by Seller in Section 3.2 hereof;

(¢)  No preliminary or permanent injunction or other order issued by any caurt
or governmental authority nor any law promulgated or enacted by any governmental authority
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shall be in effect which restrains, enfoins or otherwise prohibits the transactions contemplated
hereby;

i (d)  The Court shall have entered the Sale Ordetr approving Buyer as the
i Successful Bidder and such Sale Order shall not have been reversed, stayed, modified or
amended in any manner materially adverse to Buyer.

7.2 Conditions Precedent to Obligations of Seller. The obligation of Seller to sell and
assign the Acquired Assets to Buyer pursuant to this Agreement is subject to the satisfaction (or
waiver by Seller) at or prior to the Closing of each of the following conditions:

(a) Buyer shall have in all material respects performed and complied with
each of the covenants, obligations and agreements contained in this Agreement required to be
performed or complied with by Buyer prior to or at the Closing;

(b}  Buyer shall have delivered to Seller the full amount of the Final Purchase
Price and all other items specified to be delivered by Buyer in Section 3.3 hereof;

{c}  No preliminary or permanent injunction or other order issued by any court
or governmental authority nor any law promulgated or enacted by any governmental authority
shall be in effect which restrains, enjoins or otherwise prohibits the transactions contemplated
hereby;

(d) The Court shall have entered the Sale Ordcr approving Buyer as the
Successﬁﬂ Bidder and such Sale Order shall not have been reversed, stayed, modified or
amended in any manner materially adverse to Seller.

| o -
g - ARTICLE VIII
‘ TERMINATION
[ 8.1  Termination of Agreement. This Agreement may be terminated as follows and in
no other manneér; !

| _ " (a) by mutual written agreement of Buyer and Seller at any time prior to the
! Closing; » ‘

|
- . . . |
(b) by Buyer andfor Seller if the Court fails to find that Buyer is the

Successful Bidder or Backup Bidder; l

{¢)  if Seller shall have materially breached or failed to perform or comply
with any covenant, obligation or agreement contained in this Agreement, and such breach or :
failure shall have not been cured within five (5) Business Days after written notice of such [
breach or failure shall have been provided by Buyer to Seller, then by written notice of Buyer to !
Seller at any time thereafter; provided, however, that Buyer shall not be entitled to so terminate |
this Agreement if Buyer shall have materially breached or failed to perform or comply with any l
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covenant, obligation or agreement contained in this Agreement, and such breach or failure shall
have not then been cured;

(d)  if Buyer shall have been approved by the Court as the Successful Bidder
(including a Backup Bidder who becomes a Successful Bidder) and failed to close the transaction
by the Closing Date, and all conditions precedent to Buyer’s obligations set forth in Section 7.1
have been satisfied, then by written notice of Seller to Buyer at any time thereafter;

(e)  except as set forth in Section 8.1(d) above, if Buyer shall have materially
breached or failed to perform or comply with any covenant, obligation or agreement contained in
this Agreement, and such breach or failure shall have not been cured within five (5) Business
Days after written notice of such breach or failure shall have been provided by Seller to Buyer,
then by written notice of Seller to Buyer at any time thereafter; provided, however, that Seller
shall not be entitled to so terminate this Agreement if Seller shall have materially breached or
failed to perform or comply with any covenant, obligation or agreement contained in this
Agreement, and such breach or failure shall have not then been cured. ‘

8.2  Effect of Termination. If this Agreement is terminated pursuant to and in
accordance with Section 8.1 hereof, there will be no further liability or obligation on the part of
the Parties hereto in connection with this Agreement except as set forth in this Section 8.2. If
this Agreement is terininated pursuant to and in accordance with Section 8.1(a), (b), or (c)
hereof, Seller shall remit to Buyer the Initial Deposit and the Second Deposit within three (3)
Business Days thercafter. If this Agreement is terminated pursuant to and in accordance with
Section 8.1(d) or (¢) hereof, then Buyer’s Initial Deposit and Second Deposit shall be forfeited to
Seller and Seller expressly reserves all rights to seck any and all rélief to which Selier may be
¢ntitled, including, without limitation, damages and/or specific performance,

ARTICLE IX
'MISCELLANEOUS

9.1  Survival. Al of the representations, warranties, covenants and obligations of the
Parties contained in this Agreement and the Transaction Documents shall survive the Closing,

92 Buccessors and Assigns; No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement shall be

. binding upon and imuwe to the benefit of the Parties named herein and their respective successors
I and permitted assigns; provided, however, that except as cxpressly set forth herein, no party shall
i assign any of its rights or delegate any of its obligations created under this Agresment withont
the prior written consent of the other party hereto, and any such purported assignment or
delegation without such consent shall be void. Buyer shall be permitted to assign its rights, and
delegate its obligations under this Agreement, in whole or in part, to one or more affiliates of
Buyer, without prior written approval of Seller. Nothing in this Agreement shall confer upon
any person (including any creditor of a Receivership Entity) other than a Party to this
Agreement, or a party’s permitted successors and assigns, any right or remedy of any nature or
kind whatsoever under or by reason of this Agreement.
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9.3  Notices. Unless otherwise provided herein, any notice, demand or
communication required or permitted to be given by any provision of this Agreement shall be in
writing and shall be deemed to have been given when delivered personally, by telefacsimile or
electronic mail (with a confirming copy sent within one (1) Business Day by any other means
described in this section) to the party designated to receive such notice, demand or
communication, or on the Business Day following the day sent by a nationally recognized
overnight courier, or on the third (3'%) Business Day after the same is sent by certified mail,
return receipt requested, postage and charges prepaid, directed to the following addresses or to
such other or additional addresses as any Party might designate by written notice to each other

Pal't}' . . QED T Su18sE .S-}E-cun.:'rr‘.f

If to Seller: Roberto Martinez, Receiver cf::t;‘:‘: 51.:. :;_ Z‘L..,.Jf,“ (osadieg
Colson Hicks Eidson At Merricw VANDES AeK
235 Aragon Avenue freve, Macises Ave S fioen
‘Second Floor e Yon¥, New Yok 1osis
Coral Gables, FL 33134 rer: Crn) 22572018
Telephore;  (305) 476-7400 \ '*%° 222851
Facsimile:  (305)476-7444 \P¥! (211) 3
Email: bob@colson.com Mot matthew vardevare £@

Credi- Svisse, Com

With a copy to: David L. Rosendorf, Esq. — Bp -
Kozyak Tropin & Throckmorton, P, Al .
2525 Ponce de Leon Boulevar Siorey Avsths Lep
9™ Floor : At Ceorrney T Naeht
Coral Gables, FL 33134 781 Sevesnt Avg
Telephone:  (305) 372-1800 NEL Yonk NEo 48l fonq
Facsimile:  (305) 372-3508 ThL (200 g9, sy
Email: drosendorfi@ktilaw.com Faye, (2 @y Y99

Ema 1 g calehy .
1f to Buyer: A ‘ ©s diey com

" Any rejection, refusal to accept or inability to deliver because of changed address of which no
notice was given shall be deemed to be receipt of the notice as of the date of such rejection,
refusal or inability to deliver.

9.4 Governing Law; Submission to Jurisdiction,

(8)  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance
with the laws of the Stdte of Florida, without regard to any choice of law rules thereof which
might apply the laws of any other jurisdiction.

(b) It is expressly agreed that the Court shall have continuing jurisdiction of all
matters related to the Receivership Proceeding and all actions with respect to this Agreement
shall be instituted in the Receivership Proceeding in the Court (but without limiting Section
9.4(a) hereof). In furtherance of the foregoing, Seller and Buyer each hereby irrevocably
consents and agrees that any legal action, suit or proceeding against it with respect to its
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obligations or Habilities or any other matter under or arising out of or in connection with this
Agreement or-any other Transaction Document shall be brought in the Receivership Proceeding,
unless the Receivership Proceeding shall not have subject matier jurisdiction thereot, in which
case such legal action, suit or proceeding, as the case may be, shall be brought in the United
States District Court for the Southern District of Florida or in the courts of the State of Florida,
sitting in Miami-Dade County. By execution and delivery of this Agreement, Seller and Buyer
each, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, hereby (i) irrevocably accepts and submits
to the exclusive jurisdiction of the Receivership Proceeding and such other courts in personam,
generally and unconditionally with respect to any such action, suit or proceeding, (ii) agrees not
-to commence any such action, suit or proceeding in any jurisdiction other than the Receivership
Proceeding, or if the Receivership Proceeding shall not have jurisdiction, such other courts as are

* specified in this Section 9.4(b), (iii) waives any objection to the laying of venue of any such
action, suit or proceeding therein, and {iv) agrees not to plead or claim that such action, suit or
proceeding has been brought in an inconvenient forum.

9.5  Entire Apreement. This Agreement, the Confidentiality Agreement, and the other
Transaction Documents (a) contain the entire agreement and understanding of the Parties with
respect to the subject matter hereof, and (b) supersede all ptrior negotiations, discussions,
comrespondence, communications, understandings, drafts and agreements between the Parties
relating to the subject matter hereof, all of which are merged into this Agreement,

96  Amendment; Waiver: Consent. This Agreement may be amended, modified,
supplemented or restated only by a written instrument executed by the Parties. The terms of this
Agreement may be waived only by a written instrument executed by the Party waiving
compliance. The waiver by any Party hercto of a breach of any provision of this Agreement
shall not operate or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent or other breach, whether or not
similar, and no such waiver shall operate or be construed as a continuing waiver unless so
provided. No delay on the part of any party hereto in exercising any right, power or privilege
hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, and no single or partial exercise of any right, power
or privilege hereunder shall preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any
other right, power or privilege hereunder. '

9.7  Severability. ‘Any provision hereof which is prohibited or unenforceable in any
jurisdiction shall, as to such jurisdiction, be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition! or
unenforceability without invalidating the remaining provisions hereof, and any such prohibition
or unenforceability in any jurisdiction shall not invalidate or render unenforceable such provision
in any other jurisdiction. To the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, the Parties hel;{:},:)y
waive any provision of law which may render any provision hereof prohibited or unenforceable

in any respect.

9.8  Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed by the Parties hereto in separate
counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be an original, but all sych
counterparts shall together constitute one and the same agreement, and all signatures need not
appear on any one counterpart.
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9.9  Headings. The headings and captions in this Agreement are for convenience of
reference only and shall not define, limit or otherwise affect any of the terms or provisions
hereof.

9.10 Fiduciary Status of Recejver. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, it
is expressly acknowledged and agreed that Roberto Martinez is executing this Agreement and
each other Transaction Document in his fiduciary capacity only and neither he nor any of his
personal assets or business interests will have any liability hereunder or in connection with the
transactions contemplated hereby,

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Asset Purchase Apreement has been duly executed and
delivered by Seller and Buyer as of the date first above written.

ROBERTO MARTINEZ,

Not in his individual capacity, but solely as
Receivet for Mutnal Benefits Corp., Viatical
Services, Inc. and Viatical Benefactors, LLC

ROBERTO MARTINEZ

it SR, .
e eo1ssE SEcomTies (EOROPED Lintg,

By:

Name & Title

(Y
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Exhibit A
BIDDING PROCEDURES

Set forth below are the bidding procedures (the “Bidding Procedures™) to be employed
with respect to the sale of the Acquired Assets identified in the Asset Purchase Agreement by
and between Roberto Martinez, as the Receiver (in such capacity, “Seller”) appointed by the
United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida (the “Court™ for Mutual
Benefits Corp. (“MBC”), Viatical Services, Inc. (“VSI") and Viatical Benefactors, LLC
("VBLLC™) (the “Receivership Entitics”) and Buyer. Unless otherwise defined herein, all
capitalized terms have the meanings ascribed to them in the Agreement,

" The sale of the Acquired Assets under the Apgreement (the “Sale™) is subject to
competitive bidding upon the terms and conditions set forth in these Bidding Procedures, and
approval by the Court. Seller shall (i) determine whether any person is a Qualified Bidder; (ii)
coordinate the efforts of Qualified Bidders in conducting their due diligence regarding the
Acquired Assets; (iii) receive Bids from Qualified Bidders; and (iv) negotiate any Bid made to
purchase the Acquired Assets (the “Bidding Process™). No person other than a Qualified Bidder
will be allowed to participate in the Bidding Process and Seller shall not supply any information
regarding the Acquired Assets to any person who is not a Qualified Bidder.

Participation Reguirements

In order to participate in the Bidding Process, each interested person (the “Potential
Bidder”) must deliver to Seller:

(i) an executed confidentiality agreement in the form attached hereto;

(ii)  current financial statements (audited if available) of (A) the Potential Bidder, or
(B) if the Potential Bidder is an entity formed for the purpose of acquiring the Acquired Assets,
current financial statement (audited if available) of the equity holder(s) of the Potential Bidder
who shall guarantee the obligations of the Potential Bidder, or provide such other form of
financial disclosure or credit-quality support 1nforrnat10n ot enhancement acceptable to Seller in
Seller’s business judgment; and

(iii) an executed Affidavit of Non-Affiliation attesting that they have no relation to
any of the Receivership Entities, named Defendants and Relief Defendants and have never been
officers, agents, employees, successors, or otherwise were in active or 1nact1ve concert or
participation with any of them, in the form attached hereto.

Within two (2) Business Days after a Potential Bidder delivers all the materials set forth
above to Seller, Seller shall determine and shall notify the Potential Bidder if such materials are
satisfactory to Seller based on Seller’s business judgment.
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Due Diligence

Upon Seller’s acceptance and approval of the materials set forth above, Seller
shall deliver to each such Potential Bidder a chart of the Policies included in the Acquired Assets
in Microsoft Excel format, which will contain relevant information as to each policy. The chart
will include, for each policy, the date of birth of the insured, the last date of contact, the carrier,
the type of policy, whether the policy was converted, the face value, the gross and net cash value,
the last dividend (if any), the date values were last updated, the due date of cash value
guaranteed rates, whether the policy is on premium waiver, the date premium waiver needs to be
recertified, the due date of the premium, the mode of premiwm payment, the amount of the
premium, the date the policy was issued, and whether the insured is HIV-positive. Each
Potential Bidder will also receive a DVD of scanned Verification of Coverage (“VOC™) forms in
Portable Document Format (“PDF"), which have been completed by the carrier as to each Policy,
when provided by the carrier. In addition, Potential Bidders will receive a copy of the Asset
Purchase Agreement to be executed in connection with the purchase and sale of the Acquired
Assets,

All Potential Bidders who have been approved by Seller may contact Stephen Fernstrom
(contact information below) to schedule an on-site viewing of the actual bidding package files.
All bidding packages will be available on'a DVD and in paper hard-copy format. The on-site
viewing will be held at the MBC office in Pompano Beach, Florida during regular business
hours. No alternative arrangements will be made. Approved Potential Bidders are invited, urged
and cautioned to inspect all.available information prior to submitting a bid. :

Initial Bid Deadline

A Potential Bidder that desires to make a Bid shall deliver written capies of its Bid to
Seller no later than 5:00 p.m. (prevailing Fastern time) on Jung 18, 2007 (the “Bid Deadline”).
Bids shall be delivered to Seller’s couqsel at: '

Kozyak Tropin & Throckmorton, P.A.
2525 Ponce de Leon Boulevard, 9™ Floor
Coral Gables, FL 33134

Attention: David L. Rosendorf, Esq.
Telefacsimile: (305) 372-3508

Email; drosendorfi@kitlaw.com

with a copy to:

Stephen Fernstrom
VSI/MBC _
43 South Pompano Parkway, #112
Pompano Beach, FL 33069

. Tel:  (954) 582-0220 Ext 244
Fax: (954) 582-0223

Email: §.Fernstrom@yvsi-services.com

3298/101/276327-1 Exhibit A- 2




Bid Requirements

A bid (“Bid™) is a letter from an approved Potential Bidder stating that: (i) the approved
Potential Bidder offers to purchase the Acquired Assets on the terms set forth in the Agreement,
and setting forth the amount of the Initial Bid; and (ii) the Potential Bidder’s offer is irrevocable
until 48 hours after closing of the Sale to the Successful Bidder, A Bid must be accompanied by:
(i) the Initial Deposit of $100,000 required by the Agreement; and (ii) written evidence of an
unconditional commitment for financing or other evidence of financial ability to consummate the
transaction, acceptable to Seller in his sole discretion. Each Bid shall specify the Portfolio as to
which the Bid is made. If a Potential Bidder seeks to make a Bid on multiple Portfolios, a
separate Bid (satisfying all of the foregoing requirements including an Initial Deposit with
respect to each such Bid) shall be submitted as to each Portfolio.

Seller will consider a Potential Bidder to be a “Qualified Bidder” only if in Seller’s
business judgment the Potential Bidder’s Bid meets all of the following requirements:

(i) the Bid is all cash and does not contain any form of contingent consideration or
consideration that is dependent on the maturity of the Policies;

(ii) the Bid 15 in the form of the Agreement;l ‘
(iii)  the Bid is not subject to a financing or due diligence contingency; and

{iv)  the Bid is accompanied by such other information as is reasonably requested by
Seller.

Within two (2) Business Days after recelpt of a Bid, Seller shall advise the Potential
Bidder if they are a Qualified Bidder, .

Aunetion

i
i
3
i
1

If Seller has received more than one Bid from a Qualified Bidder with respect to a
partictifar Portfolio, Seller will conduct an auction (the “Auction™). The Auction shall take place
at 10:00 a.m. {prevailing Eastern time) on June 22, 2007 (the “Auction Date™), at the offices
of Kozyak Tropin & Throckmorton, P.A., 2525 Ponce de Leon Boulevard, 9 Floor, Coral
Gables, FL, or such other time and place as Seller shall notify each Qualified Bidder.

Only Qualified Bidders shall be allowed to participate in the Auction. Within two (2)
: Business Days after the Bid Deadline, Seller shall advise each Qualified Bidder of the highest
' Initial Bid received by Seller from a Qualified Bidder for the purchase of the Acquired Assets.
; Each Qualified Bidder must inform Seller one (1) business day prior to the Auction Date of its
intent to participate in the Auction. Seller may reqmre a Qualified Bidder to provide proof of its
financial ability t0 consummate a transaction in the amount of the highest Initial Bid, if in
Seller’s business judgment the information already provided by such Qualified Bidder is
inadequate. Each Qualified Bidder who has timely advised Seller of its intent to participate in
the Auction and who has, in Seller’s sole discretion, demonstrated a financial ability to
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consummate a transaction in the amount of the highest Initia] Bid, shall be eligible to participate
in the Auction (an “Auction Participant”).

At the Auction (i) each Auction Participant will be permitted to increase its Bid; and (ii)
all Bids shall be made and received in one room, on an open basis, and all other Auction
i; Participants shall be entitled to be present for all bidding with the understanding that the true
: identity of each Auction Participant shall be fully disclesed to all other Auction Participants and
i that all material terms of each Bid will be fully disclosed to all other Auction Participants
throughout the entire Bidding Process. Bidding shall be increments of at least 1% of the highest
Initial Bid and shall be on an all cash basis and shall not contain any form of contingent
consideration or consideration that is dependent upon the maturity of the Acquired Assets.

The Auction shall continue until such time as each Auction Participant has indicated its
unwillingness to increase its Bid in accordance with these Bidding Procedures. Upon conclusion
of the Auction, Seller shall identify the Bid that in jts business judgment based on the
: requirements of these Bidding Procedures is the highest and best Bid (the “Highest Bid™). Seller
] shall notify all Auction Participants, prior to the adjournment of the Auction, of the Highest Bid,
; and of the next highest and best Bid (the “Backup Bid™). :

Within one (1) Business Day after the conclusion of the Auction, the Bidder who
submitted the Highest Bid (“Highest Bidder”) and the Bidder who submitted the Backup Bid
(“Backup Bidder™) shall each remit to Seller a second deposit equal to 10% of their respective
final Bids at Auction, less $100,000.00 (the “Second Deposit™), in immediately available funds,

such that cach such Bidder’s Initial Deposit together with their Second Deposit shall equal 10%
of such Bidder’s final Bid at Auction.

In the event that the Highest Bidder fails to timely remit the Second Deposit, then its

Initial Deposit shall be forfeited and Seller may in his business judgment proceed to sell the

- Acquired Assets to the Backup Bidder as if the Backup Bidder were the Highest Bidder in

accordance with the procedures sct forth below. In the event that the Backup Bidder fails to
timely rernit the Second Deposit, then its Initial Deposit shall be forfeited.

Acceptance of Bid

Seller may (a) determine, in its business judgment, which Bid, if any, if the Highest Bid;
-and (b) reject, at any time before entry of the Sale Order, any Bid that (i) is inadequate or i
" insufficient, (if} not in conformity with these Bidding Procedures, any order of the Cowtt, or the
terms and conditions of the Agreement, or (iii) contrary to the best interests of Seller. If Seller |
determines, in his sole discretion, that the Highest Bid represents a transaction which is in the
best interests of the Receivership Entities and their creditors, then Seller shall notify the Highest |
Bidder of his acceptance of such Bid, subject to Court approval. If Seller determines, in his sole ‘
" discretion, that the Backup Bid represents a transaction which is in the best interests of the |
Receivership Entities and their creditors, then Seller shall notice the Backup Bidder of his
aeceptance of such Bid, subject to Court approval and subject to the failure of the Highest Bidder i
to timely close on the Sale pursuant to and in accordance with the terms of the Agreement.
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Promptly after the conclusion of the Auction and Seller’s determination that the Highest
Bid (and, if applicable, Backup Bid) represents a transaction which is in the best interest of the
Receivership Entities and their creditors, Seller shall file a motion with the Court seeking the
entry of a Sale Order approving the selection of the Highest Bidder as the Successful Bidder and
authorizing and approving the Sale to the Successful Bidder pursuant to the terms and conditions
of the Agreement, and, if applicable, approving the selection of the Backup Bidder. Upon the
entry of such Sale Order, the Highest Bidder shall be the “Successful Bidder”. Seller shall seek
the entry of the Sale Order on an expedited basis as soon as reasonably possible following the
conclusion of the Auction. Seller shall have accepted a Bid only when such Rid has been
approved by the Court pursuant to the Sale Order.

Subject to Court approval pursuant to the Sale Order, Seller shall effect the Sale of the
Acquired Assets to the Successful Bidder in accordance with the terms of the Agreement.

Failure to Consummate Sale

If the Successful Bidder fails to consummate the sale of the Acquired Assets because of a
breach or failure to perform on the part of such Successful Bidder, Seller shall be authorized to
effect a sale to the Backup Bidder pursuant to the terms of the Backup Bid, as approved pursuant
to the Sale Order, without further order of the Court. The Successful Bidder’s Initial Deposit and
Second Deposit shall be forfeited to Seller, and except to the extent otherwise provided in the
Agreement, Seller expressly reserves all rights to seek damages or other relief from such
Successful Bidder,

In the event that the Successful Bidder fails to Close by the Closing Date (which is no
later than three (3) Business Days after the entry of the Sale Order), Seller, within 24 hours
thereatter, shall notify the Backup Bidder of such failure and Backup Bidder shall become the
Successful Bidder, and the Closing Date with respect to the Backup Bidder shall be within two
(2) Business Days after Seller’s transmission of such notice to the Backup Bidder.

Return of Deposits

.The Initial Deposit and Second Deposit of the Successful Bidder and the Backup Bidder
shail be held by Seller until the later of (i) two (2) Business Days after consummation of the Sale
of the Acquired Assets, or (ii) the date upon which the Agreement is terminated in accordance
with its terms, subject to the terms sct forth in the Agreement. Afl other Initial Deposits and
Second Deposits of all other Auction Participants shall be returned within two (2) Business Days
after the conclusion of the Auction.
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Contact Information

For Bid Qualification Information Contact:

David Rosendorf, Esq,

Counsel to Receiver Roberto Martinez
Kozyak Tropin & Throckmorton, P.A.
2525 Ponce De Leon, 9% Floor

Coral Gables, FI. 33134

Tel: (305)372-1800

Fax: (305)372-3508

emajl: drosendorf@kttlaw.com

For Due Diligence Coordination Contact:

Stephen Fernstrom

VSI/MBC -

43 South Pomipano Parkway, #112
Pompane Beach, FL 33069

Tel:  (954) 582-0220 Ext 244

Fax; (954)582-0223

Email: §.Fernstrom@vsi-services.com

3298/101/276327-1 Exhibit A - &




CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT
BIDDER FOR INSURANCE PORTFOLIOS OF
VIATICAL SETTLEMENT INTERESTS

AGREEMENT dated as of May 29, 2007, by and among Roberto Martinez, Receiver for
Mutuval Benefits Corp., Viatical Services, Inc. Viatical Benefactors, LLC, Peter Lombardi, Leslie
Steinger a/ka/ Leslie Steiner, and Anthony Livoti, Jr., P.A. and related entities (“MBC”), and Credit
Suisse Securities (Europe) Limited {the “Bidder™).

WHEREAS, the Bidder wishes to undertake due diligence review of records related to the
insurance policies in which MBC holds or expects to be awarded beneficial and/or ownership
interests (the “Insurance Portfolios™), for the purpose of making an offer to purchase those interests;

WHEREAS, the Bidder has requested to undertake a due diligence review of the Insurance
Portfolios by viewing documents and records in the posscssion of the Receiver and not otherwise
subject to review;

WHEREAS, the relevant fecords contain information of a highly personal nature that could
encroach on the privacy rights of the individuals (“Viators™) insured by the policies that comprise the
Insurance Portfolios; -

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutnal covenants contained herein the parties
agree as follows:

1. As used herein, “Confidential Information™ means all information regardiess of the
form, date or party from whom it is transmitted, related to any of the insurance policies that comprise
the Insurance Portfolios.

: 2. The Bidder shall only use the Confidential Information for the purpose of evaluating a
i .possible acquisition of the Insurance Portfolios. The Bidder shall not disclose any Confidential

: Information it receives from any source to any person, firm or corporation except employcos of the
Bidder and its affiliated companies who have a need to know the Confidential Information in
connection with the possible acquisition of the Insurance Portfolios, and who have been informed of
and agree to comply with the Bidder’s obligations hereunder.

3. Information shall not be deemed Confidential Information for purposes of this
Agreement, and the Bidder shall have no obligation with respect to any such information, which: (a)
is alrcady known to the Bidder at the time of its disclosure; (b) is or bécomes publicly known
through no wrongfil act of the Bidder; (c) is independently developed by the Bidder; or (d) the
Bidder is advised by counsel is lawfully required to be disclosed to any government agency or is
otherwise required to be disclosed by law. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Confidential Information
disclosed pursuant to this Agreement shal] remain confidential and subject to this agrecment,
notwithstanding that such information later becomes publicly known through any other lawful
3208/101/269592-1 1
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mearns.

4. All Confidential Information disclosed by the Receiver to the Bidder pursuant to this
Agreement in tangible form (including, without limitation, information incorporated in computer
software) shall be and remain property of the Receiver, and all such Confidential Information shall
be promptty returned by the Bidder upon receipt of a written request from the Receiver; provided,
however, that such Confidential Information which is made part of any internal records required to
be maintained by Bidder in conmection with its underwriting and eredit evaluation process shall not
have to be returned. '

- 5. The Bidder acknowledges that nothing herein shall render the Receiver responsible
for the accuracy of the Confidential Information.

6. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida.

7. The parties agree that any dispute with regard to this hgrecmcnt will be subject to the
Jjurisdiction of the United States District Court, Southern District of Florida,

8. Except as olherwise provided in the Asset Purchase Agreement, notwithstanding
anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, the parties hereto agree that the Bidder’s
obligations hereunder regarding the Confidential Information with respect to any particular inserance
policy in the Insurance Portfolios shall terminate upon the closing of the purchase of such policy by
the Bidder from MBC.

3298/101/269592-1 2
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the partics have exccuted this Agreement as of the date first
above written.

David Rosendorf, Esq. . CREDIT SUISSE SECURITIES
Attorney for Roberto Martinez, Receiver for (EURQPE) LIMITED

Mutual Benefits Corp. et al.

2525 Ponce De Leon, 9 Floor By: C?ﬂ Sy C& —

Coral Gables, Florida 33134 Name: Chris Chapman

Tel: (305) 372-1800 ' Title: ifif_ Emsident
Name: i {
4T e isty Dahlbar
Title: Vics Presidentg
One Cabot Square ‘
London, E14 4Q7
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MBC — BIDDER AFFIDAVIT OF NON-AFFILIATION

STATE OF NEW YORK )
} ss: ‘
COUNTY OF NEW YORK }

Before me, the undersigned autherity, personally appeared Marcos Flores (“Affiaut™), who after
being duly sworn, deposes and states:

1. Affiant, as authorized representative of Credit Suisse Securities (Europe) Limited (the
"Potential Bidder"), desires to participate in the bidding for the auction of the Mutual Benefits
Corporation Viatical Portfolios, referenced in the Mutual Benefits Corp. Solicitation of Bids package
dated May 21, 2007, to be conducted by Roberto Martinez, Receiver (the "Receiver™) for Mutual Benefits
Corporation, Viatical Benefactors, LLC and Viatical Services, Inc. et al. (the "Auction").

2. Affiant represents that, to the best of his knowledge, neither he nor any individual
employed by the Life Finance Group of Credit Suisse who will be participating in the bidding for the
Auction ("Participating CS Personnel”) is related by blood or marriage to any of JOEL STEINGER a/k/a
JOEL STEINER, LESLIE STEINGER a/k/a LESLIE STEINER, PETER LOMBARDY, Defendants,
or any of their Relief Defendants in SEC v. Mutual Benefits Corp., et ai., Case No. 04-60573-CIV-
MORENQO (the "Individual Defendants"). Affiiant further represents that, to the best of his knowledge,
neither he nor any Participating CS Personnet has ever been an officer, agent or smployee of MUTUAL
BENEFITS CORP,, VIATICAL BENEFACTORS, LLC, VIATICAL SERVICES, INC., KENSINGTON
MANAGEMENT, INC., RAINY CONSULTING CORP., TWIN GROVES INVESTMENTS, INC,,
P.J.L. CONSULTING, INC., SKS CONSULTING, INC., CAMDEN CONSULTING, INC. or any of
their Relief Defendants (the "Entity Defendants" and, together with the "Individual Defendants”, the

-"Receivership Entities") or has ever worked for or on behalf of any of the Receivership Entities.

3. Affiant further represents that, to the biest of his knowledge, other than Roberto Martinez,
as Receiver, no person or entity in any manner affiliated with the Receivership Entities shall receive any
money or other consideration in connection with this auction of the MBC Viatical Portfolio.

i _ 4, Aifiant further represents that, to the best of his knowledge, none of the Receivership
' Entities, nor any person acting in concert with, or on behalf of them, is acquiring any interest in the
g Mutual Benefits Corporation Viatical Portfolio.

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NAUGHT. g é
Signature:

Print Name &yﬁcos Flores, o
The foregoing instrument was/Acknowledged before me this D? 5 day of Md(/ ,
2007, by ma’fcﬁs’ 70‘7 ares who is personally known to me/whe-hasproduesd—
-as-identification and who Za#did not take an oath.
Ay ‘\‘ S % f

o ‘.‘ o la", Nétary Pub, State &6f /' @p/ L r k- Cout 7 adDML{

LN

Print Name: Cﬁ/dyﬂos?m,%&

LY

Notry ok, 328 f ow Yk
.
Commissioa Explres October 11, 2009
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Exhibit B
CERTAIN TERMS OF SALE ORDER

The Sale Order shall approve and authorize Seller to sell and assign the Acquired Assets
to Buyer in accordance with the terms of the Asset Purchase Agreement and shall include,
without limitation, findings of fact and conclusions of law that:

(a)  based on the record presented to the Court and all pleadings in the Receivership
Proceeding and arguments by counsel and evidence and/or proffers presented and accepted,
Buyer has acted in good faith and is a good faith purchaser of the Acquired Assets;

(b)  Seller has the sole and absolute authority, on behalf of the Receivership Entities,
to convey all claims, options, privileges, right, title and intcrest in, to and under the Acquired
Assets;

©) the sale of the Acquired Assets in accordance with the terms of the Asset
Purchase Agreement is approved and Buyer and Seller are directed to consummate all of the
transactions contemplated thereby;

(d)  at Closing, Buyer will be vested with all claims, options, privileges, right, title and
interest in, to and under the Acquired Assets, free and clear of all Encumbrances;

(e}  Buyer shall have the right to from time to time obtain updated medical
information regarding the viator/insured under cach Policy, including (i) pursuant to 45 C.F.R. §
164.512(e)(1)(i), all health care providers who are served with a copy of the Sale Order and a
writien request by Buyer shall be authorized to immediately release copies to Buyer of all
records relative to the care, treatment and health of the insured/viator under such Policy so
requested by Buyer, for the purpose of predicting health and life expectancy; and (if) each
insured/viator under a Policy being required to provide Buyer with Health Insurance Portability
and Accountability Act of 1996 compliance medical authorizations and contact information for
all physicians and other medical providers who have treated such insured/viator since December
31, 2000, and any and all medical information generated since December 31, 2000 pertaining to
such insured/viator’s hcalth and medical condition, and Buyer shall be entitled to seek
enforcement of this provision as to any person.

63] the sale of the Acquired Assets is not precluded by or contrary to any prior Order
issued by the Court and no further consents by any person (including any governmental
authority) are required to convey the Acquired Assets to Buyer in accordance with the Asset
Purchase Agreement,

3298/101/276327-1 ExhibitB -1
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Schedule 2.1
POLICIES

[LIST TO BE INSERTED WITH BID]
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CREDIT SUISSE SECURITIES (EUROPE) LIMITED GROUP

ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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CREDIT SUISSE SECURITIES (EUROPE) LIMITED GROUP

Board of Diracters

Leonhard Fischer (Chairman and CEQ)
Osama Abbasi

Gael de Boissard

Stephen Dainton

Renato Fassbind (Non Executive)
Tobias Guldimann (Mon Execulive)
Fawzikyriakos-Saa;!

Hamish Lesle-Mealville

Merco G. Mazzucchelli
{Cogtas P. Michaelides

Simon D, Yatos

Company Secrelary

Paul Hare

COMPANY REGISTRATION NUMBER: 891554

2
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CREDIT SUISSE SECURITIES (EUROPE) LIMITED GROUP

DIRECTORS REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006

The directors present their Report and the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Detember 2008,

Business Review

Proilla

Credit Suisse Group (‘CSG'), a company domiciled in Switzedand, is the ullimate parent of 2 worldwide group of

companies {collectively referred to as the Credit Suisse group) specialising in Investment Banking, Private Banking and
Assat Management,

Credit Suisse Securlties {Europe) Lid (the *Company’) is an indirect whally owned subsidiary of C5G, It [s regulated in the
; United Kingdom by the Financial Services Authority and Is a listed money market instiution under the Financial Sesvices
: and Markets Act, 2000,

lts principal activities are the aranging of finance for clients In the intemational capltal markets, the provision of financlal
advisory services and acting as dealer In securities, derivatives and foreign exchangs on a principal and agency basis,

The Credit Sulsse Securities (Europe) Lid Group (the ‘Group') consists of the Company, s consolidated subsidiaries and
i special purpose entities ('SPESs'). The Company has branch operations in Frankfurt, Paris, Amsterdam, Milan and Seoul,
The Frankfunt, Paris, Amsterdam and Milan branches provide equity broking and Investment banking services. In addition
ta providing these activities, the Seoul branch received approval from South Korea's Financial Supervisory Commissicn to
engage in over-the-counter derivalives business and is a member of the Korean Securities Dealers Association. The
Company also maintalns representative offices in Turkey and Soulh Africa.

Principal Product Aroas

The Fixed Income Division ('FID') provides a range of derivative products including forward rate agreements, interest rate
and currency swaps, interest rate options, bond options, commodities and credit derivatives for the financing, risk
management and irvestment needs of s customers, FID alsg engages in underwrting, securitising, trading and
distributing a broad range of financial instruments in developed and emeiging markets including US Treasury and
government agency securities,- US and foreign investment-grade and high yield cerporate bonds, money market
instruments, foreign exchange and real astate related assets.

The Equity Division engages In 2 broad range of equity activities for investors including sales, trading, brokerage and
l market making fn infemational equity and equify related securities, options and futures. Additionally the Prime Services
‘ business piovides brokerage services to hedge funds.
|
|

The Investment Banking Division (107 activities incfude financial advisory services regarding mergers and acquisiions
and other matters, origination and distribution of equity and fixed Income securities, leveraged finance and private equity
investments and, in conjunction with the Equity and Fixed Income divisions, 1BD provides capital rmising services,

Performance

The net operating income for the Group for 2006 was US$H3,276M fQObS: US$H2,305M). The profit after tax, atiributable
to shareholders, for the year was US$168M compared with a loss of US$496M in 2005,

5 As at 31 December 2006, the Group had fotal assets of US$314,423M (2005: LS$051,464M) and 1otal aqully of
i US$1,920M (2006: USEE20M). As 2 regulated entily, the Company is required to ensure that it is adequately capitafised
{ at all times by maintaining an excess of Financial Resources over its Financial Resource Requirements, as defined by the
‘ regufations. As at 31 December 20086, the Company's capita! ratio was in excess of this minimum threshold,
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CREDIT SUISSE SECURITIES (EUROPE} LIMITED GROUP

DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

An analysis of the fotal operafing income by division is given balow:

2006 2005

US$M USHM

Fixed Income Division G02 809

Equity Division 1,865 1,260

Investment Barking Division 281 209

; Other 241 28
= 3,979 2,305

\ The Fixed Income Division's net operating income increased by 11% an the previous year, Significant contributions were
‘ gensrated by Emerging Market trading, Interest Rate trading, the Leveraged Finance business and the Structured
Products business. . -

The Equity Division's -net operating income increased by 47% on the prior year. A substantial portion of this movement
! related fo commission income from the Cash Equity business. Further Increases in net oparating income were generatad
by Equity Preprietary frading, Equity Convertibles trading, and the Prime Services business.

The Irvestment Banking division's net operaling income increased by 34% on the prior year, This was generated by the
M&A and Strategic Advisory business.

‘Other' reflects Private Barking and other operating income that is not specifically allecated to any business division,
ltems in this category are particulary sensitive to trading volumes and avaitable capital, both of which increased during
2008,

"The Group's cost base for the year was US$3,120M (2005:US$2,040M). The movement was mainly due to increased
bonus costs and higher salary cosls as a conssquence of headcount increases.

Subordinated loan capital

Buring the year the Group borowed US$E618M of additional subordinated iean capital from Credit Suisse First Boston
Finance BY (2005: borrowed US$15UM)

Capital Confribution

During the year the Group received US$1,248M addtional capital contributiens from Credit Suisse Investment Holdings
{UK) (2005: US$400M). ,

Dividends
No dividends were paid or are proposed far 2006 (20086 US$nil),

Risk Management

The Group's financial fisk management objectives and policies and the exposuie of the Group to price risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk and cash flow risk are outlined in rote 32,
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CREDIT SUISSE SECURITIES (EUROFE) LIMITED GROUP

DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006

Directors

The namas of the direclors as at the dale of this report are set out on page 2. Changes in the directorate since 31
Deacember 2006 and up o the date of this report are as follows;

Appaintments

Simon D, Yates 12 December 2006
Osarmna Abbas! 5 March 2007
Leanhard Fischer 5 March 2007
Fawzi Kyrizkos-Saed 13 March 2007
Resignations

David R, Mathers - " 12 Dacembar 2008
Jeremy J. Bennett 5 March 2007
Michael @, Phiipp - 5 March 9007

None of the directors who held office af the end of the financial yoar was beneficially interested, at any time during the
year, in the shares of the Group or had any disclosable interest in shargs of Credit Sulsse group companies.

Directors of the Group benefited from qualifying thisd party Indemnity provisions in placa rduﬂng the financial year and at
the date of this report.

Disclesure of Information to Auditors

The direclors who held affice =t the date of approval of this directors' repart confirm that, sc far as they are each aware,
there is ro relevant sudit information of which the Group's auditors are unaware; and each director has taken all the steps
that he ought to have taken as a ditector o make himself awars of any relevant audit infomation and to establish that the
Giroup's auditors are aware of that informadion. :

Employee Involvement and Employment of Disabled Persons

The Group has a forward strategy which supports its desire to become an emplover of choics for all including the disabled,
The Group gives full and falr consideration to disabled persons in employment applications, training and caresr
development Including those who become disabled during their period of empluyment.

Donations

During the year the Group made US$550,703 (2008: US$232,177) of charitable donafions. Thare werz no political
donations mads by the Group during the year (2005: US$nil).

Auditors
Pursuant to Section 385 of the Companies Act 1988, KPMG Audit Plc continues in office as the Group's auditor.
international Financlal Reporting Standards

The Group's 2008 annual accounts have heen prepared in aceordance with Intemational Financial Reparting Standards
(IFR5") as adopted for use in the EU. :
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CREDIT SUISSE SECURITIES (ELROPE) LIMITED GROUP

DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3.1 DECEMBER 2008

Subsequent Events

Since the end of 2006 the Group has borrowed additional subordinated loan capital of USS450M from Credit Suisse First
Bosten Finance BY.

By Order of the Board
" Paul Hare
Company Secretary
One Cabot Sguare
tondon E14 404
13 March 2007




CREDIT SUISSE SECURITIES (EUROPE) LIMITED GROUP

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBfLITIES

‘The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors' Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable taw and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare Group and parent Company financial staterments for sa

ch financial year,
Under that law they have elecled to prepare boih the Group and the parent Company financial statements in accordance
with IFRS as adopted by the EU and applicable laws.

‘ The Graup and parent Campany financial stztements are requited by law and IFRS as adoptad by the EU to present faly
i the financial positian of the Group and the parent Company ard the performance for that period; the Companies Act 1985
provides in relation to such financial statertients that references in the relevant part of that Act to financial statements
giving a trua and falr view ara referances to their achleving a fair presentation.

. In preparing each of the Group and parent Company finandial statements, the dirsciors are required fo;
* select suitable accounfing policies and then apply them consistently;

! * make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

i * state whether they have been preparad In accordance with IERS as adopted by the EU; and

. * prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless 1t is inappropriats to presume that the Group and the
parent Company will continue n business. '

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accaunting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
i financlal position of the parent Company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the

Companies Act 1885. They have a general responsibility for taking such steps as are ieasonably open to them to
safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other frragularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and infe
Company's website. Legislation in the UK

from legislation in other Jurisdictions.

grity of the corporate and financial information ieluded on the
goveming the preparation and dissernination of financlal statements may differ
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SECURITIES (EUROPE) LIMITED GROUP

We have audited the Group and parent Company finandial statements (the *financial staternents') of Credit Suisse Securities (Eurepe)
Lid for the year ended 31 December 2008 which comprise the Group Income Staterment, the Group and Parent Company Balance
Sheets, the Group and Parent Company Cash Flow Stetements, the Group and Parent Company Statements of Changes in Equity and
the related notes. These financlal statements have been preparad under the aceounting policies set out therein.

This rapert Is made solely o the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with the Comparies Act 1988, Cur audit work has
been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matlers we are required to stafe to them in an auditor's .
raport and for no other pumpose. To the fullest extant pammitied by law, we du not accept or assume rspansibility to anyone other than
the Company and the Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directars’ responsibilties for preparing the Directors’ Reporl and the financial statements In accordancs with applicable taw and
Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (FRS) as adopted by the EU are set out in the Statement of Direclors’ Responsibiities on
page 7.

Qur mspongibiiity is to audt the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and Intemationat
Standards on Audifing (UK and lreland).

; We report to you our opiion as to whather the financial statements give a tue and fair view and are properly prepered in accordance
i with the Companies Act 1885. We dsc report to you whether in our opinion the informations given in the Directors' Report is consistent
| with the financizl statements.

In addition we repett to yeu if, in our opinion, the Cempany has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not recelved sl the
] information and explanations we require for our audit, ar If information specitied by law regarding dirsctors' remuneration and other
i transactions i not disclosed.
i

I : We read the Directors' Report and consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements within it.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemationa) Standards on Audifing (UK and lreland) issued by the Audifing Practices
= Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence mlevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financigt statements.

It also includas an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the directors in the prepamtion of the financial

staternents, and of whether the accounting polides are appropriais to the Group's and Company's circumstances, consistently applied
and adequately disclosed,

We planned and parformed our audit so as to obtain &l the information and explanations which we considerad necessary In order fo
pravide us with sufficient evidence o give reasonable assurance that the financial stefements are free from materiat misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or other imegularity or ermr In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentationy
aof infarmation in the financial statements,

GOpinion

In aur apinion:

= the Group financial statements give a rue and fair view, in accordanca with IFRS as adopied by the EU, of the stats of the
Group's affairs as at 31 December 2006 and of its profit for the year then ended;

* the parent Company financial statements give a frue and fair view, in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU as appfied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companles Act 1985, of the state of the parert Company's affairs as af 31 December
2008;

» the financial statsments have been propetly prepansd in accordance with the Companies Act 1985; and

= the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the financial statements. .

g Aot e

KPMG Audit Ple
Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditar
Landon

13 March 2007
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CREDIT SUISSE SECURITIES (EUROPE) LIMITED GROUP

CONSOLIBATED INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006

Group Group

2006 2006

USHM USsm

Note

Interest income 4 6,376 4,993

Interest expense 4 8,107 (5,196)

Net interest expense 4 (1,231} (303)

Net comnmissions and fecs B 1,863 1,372

Net trading revenues 3] 2,652 1,880

Net oiher chaiges 5 {105) {54)

Net non-interest revenues 4,510 3,208

Net operating Income 3,279 2,365

Compensaticn and benefits B - {2,454) (2,275)

Other expenses : B _(685) {666)

Totat vperating expenses ) (3,129} (2,240)

Profit/(Loss) before tax 150 (635

Incame tax cradit 7 8 139

Profit/(Loss) after tax 158 (495)
Profit attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent 158 (408)

' 158 (496)

All profits and losses for both 2006 and 2005 are from Continving Operations.

The notes on pages 17 o 77 form an integral part of these financial statorments,
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CREDIT SUISSE SECURITIES (EUROPE) LIMITED GROUP

CONSQLIDATED BALANGE SHEET AS AT 31 I_DECEMBER 2008

Group Graup

2006 2005

USEM US$M

Note }
Assels . .
Cash and cash equivalents ) : 4,737 3,897
Interesi-bearing deposits with banks : 20 656
Securities purchasad under resale agreements and securities
borrowing transactions a +104,145 ) 165,097
Trading assets 6 71,334 59,362
Financial assets designated at fair value through proﬁt ar oss & 2,067 . 790
[Loans : <] - 15
Other investments : 10 9 9
Deferrad tax assets : 11 505 398
Other assets . 12 41,518 36,27
Gootwil C 18 7 B
Properiy, plant and equipment ' 16 90 . 64
Total assets ' 314,423 251,464
Liabilities ‘
Deposits 17 1,839 1,042
Securities sold under repurchase agreements and sacurities Jending _
fransactions 8 150,554 199,569
Trading labllities 6 52,131 48,329
Financial Tabilties designated 2t tair valua ﬂ'lmUQh profit ar Ioss 8 4,780 284
Short term borrowings : i 18 66,568 65,503
Current tax liabilifies. o 250 . 164
Lang term debt 19 2992 1,674
 Defered tax liabifittes " g 1

Cther liabilities A : ’ 20 33,607 93,430
Provisions ' 21 : 64 85
Total liabilities . 312,494 250,944
Sharehoiders’ equity
Called-up share capital . ! 4,523 3,076
Retained earnings (2,860) @718)
Other reserves (34) (a7
Total shareholders' aguily . 1,929 520
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 314,423 251,464

The notes on pages 17 to 77 form an integral part of these financial statements,

Approved by the Board of Directors onjch 2007 and signed on its behalf by

<0

Costas\P. Michaelides

10
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CREDIT SUISSE SECURITIES (EUROPE) LIMITED GROUP

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2005

Page 49 of 115

Company Company
2005 2005
USHM USEh
Note
Agsate
Cash and cash equivalents 4,727 3,897
Interest-bearlng deposits with banks 719 655
Securities purchased under resale agreements and securities
horrowing transactions 8 194,146 155,897
Trading assety 6 71,834 59,352
Financial assets designated at fair vaiue through profit or loss 8 1,898 780
Loans 9 - 15
Other invesiments 10 9 2]
Deferred fax assets 1 505 308
Cther assets 12 40,824 30,271
Investment in subsidiary undertakings 14 135 -
Goodwill 15 7 ]
Property, plani and equapment 18 90 64
Total assets 314,414 251,464
Liabilities
Deposits | 17 1,939 1,042
Securities sold under repurchase agreements and securliles lending
fransactions 8 150,564 122,559
Trading liabilities & 52,181 45,329
Financial liabiities designated at fair value through profit or foss 8 4,754 284
Short term borrowings 18 66,868 55,393
Current tax liabilities 250 164
Long term debt 19 2,292 1,674
Deferred tax liabilities n g 1
Other ligbiities 20 33,607 23,430
Provisicns 21 84 68
Total liabilities 312 488 250,944
Sharesholders’ equity
Called-up share capital ez 4,503 3,976
Retained earnings (2,553) (2,718)
Cther reserves {34) a7
Total shareholders® equity 1,898 6§20
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 314,414 251,464

Tha notes on pages 17 to 77 farm an integral part of these financial statements.

For the year ended 2006, US$H155M of profit attributable to sharsholdars (2006: US$4Q6M) has been dealt with In the accounts

of the Company.

Approved by the Board of D:rsctors on 18 March 2007 and signed on its behaif by

- T ———

COS‘Eas P, Michaeiides

11
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CREDIT SUISSE SECURITIES (EURCOPE) LIMITED GROUP

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006

Group Group
2006 2005
LUSsM UssM :

Operating activifies of operations
Profit/(Loss) before tax for the year ) 180 {635)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by/(used in)
operating activities
Non-cash ftems included in loss before tax and other adiustments:
tmpainnent, depreciation and dispasals of propery, plant and

equipment 1 8
Interest accrued on long ferm debt 111 68
Forelgn exchange {gaing)/losses . M &
Net (increase)/decrease in operating assets:
Interest bearing deposils with banks 635 (305)
Secuities purchased under resale agreements and seciiities
borrowing transactions (38,1499 {18,893)
Trading assets (11,872 {B,635)
Financial assets deslgnated at fair value through profit or loss (1,267 {790)
Loans ' 16 (15)
Other assets {11,247} {8100
Net increase/(decrense} in operating liabilities:
Securiiies sold under rasale agreements and securities lending 4
transactions 27896 19,962
Daposits : 8a7 780
Short term borowings 11,475 (4,567)
Trading liabilties 5,802 15,808 -
Financial liabilities designaled at falr value threugh profit or loss 4,476 284
Gther liabilities 10,192 5,038
Provisions 4) a0
Cash used ih operations (aa1). {253)
Income tax {paid)/received (3} i24
Net cash flow used in oparating sctiviies {884} (128)
' Investing activities ’
Purchase of other investments ‘ - (1)
Capital expenditure for property, plant and equipment (36} (5)
Met cash flow used In investing activities {36) {6)
Financing activities
Increases in long tem debt ’ 518 10
Increase in capital contribution : 1248 400
Interest paid on long term debt (106} (62)
Net cash flow from financing activitias 1,760 4688
Met increase In cash and cash equlvalents 840 354
" Gash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 3,897 3,543
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 4,737 3,597

The notes on pages 17 to 77 form an integral part of these financial statements,

15
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CREDIT SUISSE SECURITIES (EUROPE) LIMITED GROUP

COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DEGEMBER 2006

Company Comparny
2008 2005
USSM UseM

Operating activities of operations
Profit/(Loss) hefore tax for the year 147 (835)
Adjustments o regonclle net income to net cash provided by/{used in)
aperating activities
Non-cash items included In loss bafore tax and other adjustments:
Impaltment, depreciation and disposals of property, plant and

agquipment ‘ 1] 8
Interest accruad on long term debt 111 68
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses . () . {4)
Net (increase)/decrease in operating essets :

Interest bearing depasits with banks ' T (355)
Securilies purchased under resale agreements and securtifes

borrowing transactions (88,149 (18,893)
Trading assets . - ' {11,972 {8,685)
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss {1,108) 790
Loans ' 15 {15)
Other assets (10,683 - (8,108)

Net increase/(decreaso) in operating llabilities:
Securities sold under resale agreements and securflies lending

transactions ‘ 27,995 18,962
Deposits 8g7 . ‘780
Short term bomowings 11,475 (4,967)
Trading labilities 5,802 15,803
Financial liahilities designated at fair value through profit of loss 4470 o84
Gther liabilities 10,192 5,036
Provisions 4 20
Cash used In operations {736) (259)
Income Yax (paid)/Teceived ' ) 124
Net cash flow used in operating activities (739) (128)

Invasting activitles

Purchase of other investments - (1)
Investment In subsidiaty undertaking (1656) -
Capital expenditure for properly, plant and equipment (36) (5)
et cash flow used in investing activities (197} (6}
Financing activitles ‘ )
Increases in long term debt 618 160
Increase in capital contribution 1,248 00
Interest paid on long term debt : {106) (62
- Net cash flow from financing activities - 1,760 488
Netincrease In cash and cash equivalents 830 ) 354
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 3,887 3,543
Gash and cash equivalents at end of tha year 4,727 3,897

The notes on pages 17 to 77 form an integral pan of these financial statements.

16
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' CREDIT SUISSE SECURITIES (EUROFE) LIMITED GROUP
|
i NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
: 31 DECEMBER 2008 »

|
: 1. General

: : Credit Suisse Securiies {Europe) Limited is a Group domiciled in the Uniled Kingdom. The address of the Company's
' registered office is One Cabot Square, London, E14 404,

2. Significant Accounting Palicies
2} Statement of compliance

Following the adoption of Regulation EC 1606/2002 on the 18 July 2002 by the European Padiament, the Group is
required to prepare Consclidated Financial Statements in accordance with Inlemational Finencial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the EU ("adopted IFRS”), including the standards (Intemational Accounting Standards ("IAS")/IFRS), as well as
the inferpretations issued by both the Standing Imerprelations Committes (“SiC") and the Intemiational Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committes ('IFRICY) as appliceble to the Group for financial periods beginning 1 January 2008, The
financlel statements also cormply with the relevant provisions of Part Vil of the Companles Act 1980 (as amended by the
Compenies Act 1986 (ntemational Accounting Standards and other Accounting Amendments) Reguiations 2004).

Both the parent Company and the Group financial statements have been prepared and approved by the directors In
accordancs with adopled IFRS. On publishing the parent Company financial statoments here fogether with the Group
financial statements, the Company is taking advantage of the exemption in 5230 of the Companies Act 1885 not to
present its individual income statement and related notes that form a part of these approved financial statements,

b) Basls of preparation

The finangial statements are presented in United States dollars (US$), rounded to the nearest miilion. They are prepared
on the historical cost basis except that the following assets and liabifities are stated at thelr fair value: derivative financial
instruments, financial instruments held for trading and financial instruments designated by the Group as at falr value
through profit or loss,

The preparation of financlal statements in confomnity with adopted IFRS requires management 1o make judgements,
estimzates and assurnptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of asseis and liabifitiss, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various ather factors
thet axe believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgemsnts
abaut canying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources, Actual results may dlffer
from these estimates. a

The estirmates and underlying assumptions are reviewsd on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recagnised in the period in which the estimate iz revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision
and future periods if the revision has a slgnificant effect on both current and future perieds.

The Group adopted amendments to IAS 39 and [FRS 4 in refation 1o financlal guarantee contracts which apply to periods
commencing on ar after 1 January 2008, The amendments do not have any significant impact on the financial staternents
far the period commencing 1 January 2008,

The Group has elecied not to eary adopt the provisions of IFRS 7 'Financlal Instruments — Disclosures'. The new
standard is a pure disclosure standard and does not change the recognition and measurement of financlal nstruments.
Accordingly, it will have no effect on profit for the period and net assets of the Group. The new stendard requires entities
1o make ephanced quantitative and qualitative risk disclosures for all mejor categories of financial instruments in their
financial statements.

17
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CREDIT SUISSE SECURITIES (EUROPE) LIMITED GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2006

2, Sigrificant Accounting Policies (continued)

The Group has also elected not to early adopt, and i currently evaluating the potential impacts of, the following IFRICs

which are issued but not yet effective:

+ [FRIC 7 'Applying the Restatement Approach under IAS 28 *Financlal Reperting in Myperinflationary Economies”
(effective for annual perlods beginning on or after 1 March 2008);

» [FRIC 8 'Scope of IFRS 2' (offective for annual periods beginning on or afler 1 May 2008);

* IFRIC 9 'Reassessment of Embeddsd Derivatives' {effective for annual parieds beginning or or after 1 June 2008);

# |FRIC 10 'Interim Flinancial Reporfing and impaiment' (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 November
2006); and

. IFR[llgi 1 YIFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions' (effective for annual periods beginning on or after { March
2007}

The accounting policies set out below have been applied ronslstentl}f to all peficds presented in these financial

statements.

¢) Basis of consalidation

The Group's Financial Statements include the resulis and 'posilio‘ns of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries
including special purpose entities, The Group's Financial Statements include the jncome Statements, Belance Sheats,
Cash Flow Statements, Statements of Changes in Equity and the related notes.

A subsidiary is an entity which the Group conliols, Control s achieved where the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an invesies entity so as 1o obtain benefits from its actiities. The resutis of subsidlaries
arquired are included In the Financial Statements from the date that conirol commences untit the date that control ceases,
Investments in subsldiaties are accounted for at cost In accerdance with 1AS 27 in the Cempary standalone accounts.

The Company also consolidates SPEs when the substance of the relationshlp between the Company and the SPE
indicates that the SPE is controlled by the Company in accordance with the Slanding Interpretations Committee (SIC) 12,

The efiects of intercompany fransactions and balances have been eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial
staternents.

d) Foreign currency

Transactians denominated in curencies gther than the functional cumency (US$) of the Company are translated at the
foreign exchange rate ruling at the dafe of the transaction. Monetary assets and lisbiiies denominated in foreign
currencies at the balance sheet date are translated to US$ &t the foreign exchange rate wiling at hat date. Forelgn
exchange differences arising from franslation are recognised in the income statement. Nan-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated In foreign currencies at balance sheet date are not revalued for movements In foreign exchenge rates,

The assets and babiities of branch aperations with functiorial curencies other than US$ are translated into LUS$ at forelgn
gxchangs rates ruling at the balanca shest date. The revenues and expenses of these operations are franslated o US at
the average foreign exchange rate for the perind, The resuling translation differences are recognised directly in a
"Translation reserse”, On disposal, these transhation differences are reclassified to the Income statement as part of gain or
loss on disposal,

) Cash and cash equivalants
For the plrpose of preparation and presentation of the balance sheet and cash flow siatement, cash and cash equivalerts

are defined as shori=term, highly liquid instruments wnh original matuties of three months or less and that are held for
cash management pUrpOses. .

18
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CREDIT SUISSE SECURITIES (EUROPE) LIMITED GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2006

2. Significant Accounting Policles {continued)
I ) Secutities purchased or sold under resale or repurchase agreements

\ Securities purchased under agreaments to resell ('reverse repurchase agreements’} and securities sold under agresments
to repurchase ('repurchase agreements) are generally treated as collateralised financing transactions. In reverse
repurchase agreements, the cash advanced, including accmued interest, is recognised on the balance sheet as reverse
repurchase agresrments. In repurchase agreements, the cash received, including accrued interest, is recognised on the
balance sheet as repurchase agreements on a setilcment date basis,

Securities received under reverse repurchasa agreements and securities delfivered under repurchase agreements are not
transferred unless all or substeniially all the risks and rewards are obtained or relinquished. The Group monitors the market
! value of the securities recsived or delivered on a daily basis and provides or requests addilional collateral in accordance
| with the underlying agreements.

Forward starling repurchase agreermerts are reported off balance sheet between trade date and seftlement date. These
are recdrded at the amaunt of the future inifial cash exchange. After the initial exchange has faken place the reporting for .
the transactions faﬂows the policy shove.

Intarest camed on reverse repurchase agreements and Interest incurred on repurchase agreements is recognised-on an
sffective yieid basis and reporied as inferest income or inferest expense for agreements that are not classified 'as fair value
through profit and loss.

g) Securities borrowing and lending

Sscurities borowing and securities lending fransactions are generaily entered into on 2 collateralised basis. The transfer of
the securitfes themselves is not reflected on the balance sheet unless the risks and rewards of cwnership are ajso
transferred. H cash collatersl is advanced or received, securities borrowing and lending activilles are recorded at the
amount of cash collaterat advanced (cash collateral on securities borrowed) or recelved (cash collateral on securities lent),

The Group manitors the market value of the securities borrowed and lent on & daily basis and provides ot requests
additicnal collateral in accordance with the underlying agreements. Fees are recognised on an accrual basis and interest
received or paic are recognised on an effective yield basis and recorded as interest income or interest expense.

! X ) Trading assets and liabilities

Trading assels and liabiliies include mainly debt and equily securitfes, derivative instruments and loans. These assets and
liahilties are included a5 part of the irading portfolic bassd on management’s intention to selt the assets or purchase the

! liabilities in the near term, and are camied at fair value, Transactions with a nermal setflernent period are recorded on a |
P trade date basis.

Falr valus is defined as the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a liability setiled betwesn knowledgeable,
willing parties in an am's length fransaction other than an involuntary liquidation or distressed sale, Quated market prices
- are used when available to measure fair value, In cases where quoted market prices are not avaifable, fair value is
- estimated using valuation modsls consistent with the valuation of derivatives, as discussed in Note 2 ). Where the input
parameters cannot be validated using observable market data, adjustmenis are established for unrealised gaing evident at
the inception of the contracts so that no gain or loss is recorded at Inception. Such adjustments are amertised to Income
over the life of the Instrument or released into income when observable market data becomes available,

18




CREDIT SUISSE SECURITIES (EUROPE) LIMITED GROUP

NOTES TC THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2006

2. Significant Accounting Polisies {continued}
i} Derivative financlal instruments and hedging

All freestanding derivative contracts are canlad at fair value on the baiance sheet regardiess of whether these instruments
are held for trading or risk management puroses. When derivative features embedded in certain contracts that meet the
definifion of a derivative are not considerad clearly and closely refated to the host instrument, the embedded feature will he
accounted for separately at fair value with changas In fair value weordst in the income statement, unless, consistent with
the provisions of IAS &8, the fair value option is elacted (as described in Note 2 below), in which case the enfire
instrument s to be recorded at fair value with changes in fair value recorded in the income statement, Once separated, the
derivative is recorded in the same fine on the balance sheet as the hest instrument.

Derivatives classified as fracling assets and llabilties include those held for trading purposes and those used for risk
management puposes hat do not qualify for hedge accounting. Derivatives held for frading purposes afise from
proprietary teading activity and from customer-based activity, Changes in realised and unrealised gaing and losses and
interest flows are included in *Net trading revenues”. Derivative contracts designated and qualifying as cash flow hedges
or net investrnent hedges are reported as "Other assets™ or "Other liatilities” and hedge accounting Is applied,

Feir value recorded for dervalive instruments does not indicate future gains or losses, but rather the unrealised gains and
lesses from valuing alf derivatives at a parficular peint in time. The fair velue of exchange-fraded derivatives is typically
derived from observabie market prices and/cr observable market parameters. Fair values for over-the~counter (OTCY)
dervatives are determined on the hasis' of internally developed proprietary models using various input parameters, Whers
the input parameters cannot be validated using observeble market data, adjustments are established for unrealised gains
evident &t the inception of the contracts so that no gein is recorded at inception. Such adjustments are amertised 1o
income- over the [fe of the instrument or released into income when ohsstvable market data bocomes available.

Where hedge eccounting is applied, the Group formally dacuments all relafionships between hedging instruments and
hedged items, including the risk management objectives and strategy for undersking hedge fransactions. Al inceplion of &
hedge and on an angaing basis, the hedge relationship is formally assessed to determine whethsr the derivatives that are
used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetfing changes in fair values or cash flows of hadged items
attributable to the hedged risk on both 2 retrospective and prospeciive basis. The Group discontinues hedge accounting
prospectively in circumstances where:

¢ itis determined that the derivative is no fonger effeciive in offsetling changes in the fair value or cash flows of a hedged
item (including forecasted transactions); - .

+ the derivative expires or is sold, terminatad, or exerclsed;

» the derivative s no longer designated as a hedging instrument because it is unfikely that the forecasted transaction will
oceur; oF

* the Group otherwise determines that designation of ths derivative as a hedging instrument Is ne longer agpropriate.

20
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CREDIT SUISSE SECURITIES (EURQPE) LIMITED GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 20086

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Cash flow hedge accouniing

For hedges of the variability of cash flows from foracasted transactions and floating rate asssts or Habilities, the effsclive
portion of the change in the fair value of a designated dervativa is recorded In the statement of changes ih equity through
"Cash flow hedging resenve'. These amounts are reclassified into the income statement when the variable cash flow from
the hedged item Impacts eamings (e.g, when periodic seftlements on a variable rate asset or liability are recarded in the
income slalement or when the hedged item is disposed of). Hedge ineffectivenass s recorded in “Net trading revenues®,

When hedge accounting is discontinued on a cash flow hedge, the net gain or loss will remain in equity and be raclassified
into {he income statementt in the samo period o periods during which the formerly hedged transaction is reported in the
income statement.

When the Group discontinues haedge accounting because it is no longer probable that a foracasted transaction will occur
within the required time period, the derivetive will continue 1o be carded on the balance shest at its fair valus, and gains
and losses that were previously recorded In equity will be recognised immiediatsly in the income statement. When the
Group discontinues hedge accounting due to any other reason but it s still probable that the Torecasted transaction wil
onaur within the original required time period, the derivative wilf continue to be recorded at its fair value with all subsequent
chianges in valug recorded directly in the income staiement. Any geins or lesses recorded in equity prior to the date hedge
accounting is no longer apphed will be rectassified to net income when the forecasted transaction takes place.

Hedge of a net Investrent

For hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation, the change in the fair value of the hedging derivative is recorded in
the statement of changes in equity as “Translation reserve” fo the extent that the hedge is effective, The change In fair
value representing hedge ineffectiveness is transierred to the income statement through 'Net trading revenues®, The
Group uses the Torward methed of determining effectiveness for net investment hedges, which results in the fime value
porfion of a forsign currency forward being reported In equity, to the extent the hedgs is effactive.

D Financial instruments designated as held at fair value through profit and loss

The Group has adopted the EU endorsed Fair Valus Option amendment of 1AS 39 which allows an entity to designate
financial assets and fablliies as held at fair value through profit and loss elther at Iransition to IFRS on 1 January 2005 or
at the inception of the trade from that date forward. Financial assets and liabilities are only designaied as held at fair vale
through prafit and less ¥ the instruments contain a substantive embedded derivative, of when doing so results in mora
relgvant information, because either;

(i) it eliminates or significantly reduces en inconsistency in measurement or recognition (sometimes referred to as
an accounting mismatch') that would cthenwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gaing
and losses on them on different bases. This election is tsed for instruments that would otharwiss be accourtsd
for under an accrual method of accounting where their ecanomic risks are hedged with derivative insiruments that
require fair value accounting. This election efiminates or significantly reduces the measurement mismaich
between accrual acceunting and falr value ascounting;

(i) a group of finencial assets, financiat llabiiities or both is managed and its performance is evaluatad on a fair value
basls, in accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy, and infoimation about the
Group Is provided internally on that basis to the entily's key management personnsl. This election is used for
instments purchased or issusd by business units that manage their performance on a fair value basis. For gl
instruments elected under this coterion, the business maintains a documented shategy that states that these
instruments are risk managed on a fair value basis, Additionally, management rely upon the fair value of these
instruments in evaluating the parfermance of the business.
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CREDIT SUISSE SECURITIES (EUROPE) LIMITED GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2006

2. Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

The Fair Valug Option has been applied to certain debt instruments, equity sccurities and offer financial instruments and
the related assets and liabilties are presented in 2 separatz line on the face of the balance sheet. Once dasignated this
slection is irrevocable. All fair value changes related to financial instruments held at fair value through profit and loss ara
recognised in “Net Trading Revenues”.

k) Derecognition

The Grroup enters Inte ransactions where it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains stther ail risks
and-rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them. i all or substantially alf risks and rewards are retained, the
transferred assets are not derecognised from the balance sheet, In fransaclions whers the Group neither retaing nor
transfers substantially all the sisks and rewards of ownership of a financial asset, it derecognises the asset if control over
the assel is lost, The rights and obligations retained in the transfer are recognised separately as assets and lishilities as
appropriate. In transfers where control over the assst is retained, the Group continues to recognise the asset io the extent
of its continuing involvement, determined by the extent to which & is exposed to changes In the value of the fransferred
asset, .

The Group derecognises financial iabilitiss when they are extinguished, Where the Group has a financial dabllity funded by
anather entily and the instrument is exchanged for a new.instrument with that same entity that is substantially different, or
when an existing Instrument classified as a financial fiabiltty is substantially modified, the old Instrumén is deemad to be
extinguished and a new financial liabilify is recognised. Any gain or loss due to derecagnition of the extinguished
instrument is recorded In the income stalement, ‘

1} Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are recognised when cash is advanced to borrowers, They are Initizlly recorded at Tair value, which
is the cash given e originate the loan, and are subsequently carried at amortised cost net of deferred loan origination fees
and direct Inan origination costs on originated leans. Interest income Is accrued on the unpald principal balance, and net
deferred premiums/discounts and fees/casts are amorlised on an effective yleld basis on the resulting balance for all
loans and raceivables.

m} Netting

The Group only offsets financial assets and llabilifies and prasents the net amiount in the balance sheet whers i
* curranitly has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
+ intends efther io setfle on a net basis, or o realise the asset and fiablity simultanecusly.

In many instances the Group's net position on muitiple fransactions with the same counterparty is legally protected by
Master Netling Agresments, Such agresments ensure that the net position Is setiled in the event of default of either
counterparty and effectively mit credit risk on gross exposures. However, If the transastions themselves are not infended
to ba settled rot nor wib they settle simultaneously, it is not permissible under 1AS 32 to offset transactions falling under
Masier Netting Agreements,

m Dividend policy

Dividends are recognised when declared as @ raduction of equity along with the correspanding liablity equalling the
amount payable, .

22

© Case 0:04-cv-60573-FAM  Document 2045-3  Entered on FLSD Docket 03/24/2008 ~ Page 60 of 115




* Case 0:04-cv-60573-FAM  Document 2045-3  Entered on FLSD Docket 03/24/2008  Page 61 of 115
GREDIT SUISSE SECURITIES (EUROPE) LIMITED GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
- 31 DECEMBER 2008

2. Significant Accounting Palicies (continued)
a) Income taxes

Income tax an tha profit or loss for the year comprises cument and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the income
statement except 1o the extent that it refaies to lems recognised directly in equity, in which case the income tax is
recognised in equily. For ftems initially recognised in equity and subsequently recognised in the income statersent, the
refated incomne tax intlially recognised in equity is also subsequently recognised in the Income statement.

Curment tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year and includes any adjusiment to tax payable in
respect of previous years. Current fax is calculated using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet
date.

Defesred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences between the carying
amounts of assets and libilities for financtal reporting purposes and thelr {ax-base. The principal temporary differences
arise from the fellowing: pansion expense, depreciation of property, plant and equipment, revaluation of certain financial
zssets end llabilittes including derivative contracts and other employee compensation and benafits, The amount of deferred
tax provided is based on the amount at which it is expected to recovar or setfle the canying amount of assets and lisbilies
cn the balance sheet, using tax rates enacted or subsiantively enacted at the balancs sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only fo the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against .
which the asset can be utilised, Deferred tax assets are reduced te the extent that it is no longer probable that the related
fax benefit will ba realised,

Addlfional income taxes that arise from the distrbution of dividends are'recognised at the same time as the kability o pay
the related dividend arises, '

information as to the caleutation of income tax on the profit or loss for the periods presented is Included in Note 7.
p) Goodwill

Geadwlll rapresents the excessof the cost of acqulsition over the fair value of the net assets acquired at the date of
acquisition,

Goodwill Is stated ak cost less impairment losses.

" q) Property, plant and equipment

All properiy, plant and equipment are stated at historicat cost less depraciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items,

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's camying amount or are recognised as a separate assal, as appropriate, only
wher it is probabla that future economic bensfits associated with the Item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably, All other repalrs and mairtenance are charged to ihe income statement during the financiel
period in which they are Incurred, Deprecialion on other assets is calcutated using the straight-line method to aliocate their
cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Long leasehold buildings 50 years
Leasehold improvements 10 years
Camputer equipment 2-10 years
Office equipment B years
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I 2. Significant Accounting Policles (continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if approprate, at each balance shest dade, Assets
that are subject to amortisalion are reviewed for impairnent whenever events or changes in circumstances indicale that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable, An asset's canying armount is written down immediately to Its recoverable
amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than ifs estimated recoverable amouni. The recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s fair valus less costs to sell and value in use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carying amount. These ane Included in the
incoma statement,

r) Refirement benefit costs

The Group has beth defined cantribution and defined benefit pension plans, The defined benefit plans are group schemes,
in which the Company is tha sponsoring entily.

; Chiigations for contributions fo defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the income statement
: Bs incurred.

In accordance with the provisions of 1AS 19 for defined benefft pians that share rsks between various erfities under
: common control, the Company, as the sponsoring entity, accounts for the plan as a dafined benefit plan, which includes
i recording in its financial statements the entire net defined benefit cost fo itself and all of its affiliates, who are also covered
i by the plan.

The Group's expense refaling fo these plans is accrued over the employees' senvice periods based wpon the actuarially
determined cost for the period. Actuaral gaing and losses are recegnised as incame or expense when the net cumuiative
unrecognised actuarial gains and losses for each individual plan at the end of the previous reporting year exceed 10% of
the higher of the deflned benefit obligation and the fal value of plan assets at that date. These gains or lasses are
recognised over the expected average remaining working lives of the employess participating in the plans.

s} Long term debt
Debt issued by the Group is inifially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration received, net of

transaction costs Incurred. Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method to
amortise cost at inception to the redemplion value over the life of the debt.

. t) Contingent Nabilities

Contingent liabilities are not recognised because ther existence will be confirmed only by the occumence or non-
accurrence of one or Mors uncertain future events not wholly within the controf of the entity. A cortingent Jability s not
recognised as a liability but ray only be disclosed,

u) Provisions

Provisions are racognised {assuming that a refieble estimate can be made) if they are chligations and It Is probable that an
oulflow of resources embodying economic benafits will be required fo setfle the obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED i
341 DECEMBER 2006 '

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
v} Share-based payments

The Company has epplied the requiements of IFRS 2 Share-based Payments. In accordance with the transitional
provisions, IFRS 2 has been applied to 2ll grants of equily instruments after 7 November 2002 that were unvested as at 1
January 2005, of which the correspanding expense was recorded tn 2004,

The Company granis shares in its ultimate parent company, CSG, to certain employess. The Company purchases C5G
shares from Gredit Suisse Equity Based Compensation AG, another Cradit Suisse group company, upan settiement and
then transfers those shares 1o its smployees.

This amangement has besn classifled as a cash-seitied share-based payrent due to the Company's obligation fo settle
the liability by the delivary of an asset that is not an equity instrument of the Company. A liabilily equal to the perlon of the
services received is recognised at the cusrent market value determined at each belance sheet date. The expense for
share-based paymants is detormined by treating each tranche as a separale grant of share awards unless the empleyee is
eligible for eary retrement or retirement before the end of the vesting period, in which case racognition of the expense
would be: accelerated over the shorter perod.

w) Inferest income and expense ‘

Interest income and expense includes interast income and expsnse on the Greup's financlal instrurnents owned and
sinanclal instruments sald not yet purchased, short-term and long-term borrowings, reverse repurchase and repurchase
agreements and securities borrowed and securities lending transactions. Interest income and expense does not includs
interest fiows on the Group's trading derivatives (axcept for hedging relationships), irading instuments and financial
instruments classified as 4t fair valug through profit and loss. These are recorded using the effective interest rales of the
Sinancial assets or financla fishilites to which they relate in "Net Trading Revenues®.

%) Commisslons and faes

Fee revenue s racognisad when alf of the following criteria have been met: persuasive evidence of an sgreament exists,
services have been renderad, the price is fixed or determinable and collactability is reasonably assured. Commissions and
fees eamed for investment and portioic management, customer rading and custedy setvices are recognised at the fime
or over the period, respectively, thet the related service is provided. Revenues from underwiting and fees from mergers
and acquisitions and other comporate finance advisory services are recorded st the fime when the underlying transactions
are substantially completed, as long as there are no other conlingencies assoclated with the fees.

Incremental costs thal are directly attributable to securing investment managsment contracts, are recognised as an asset if
they can be identifiad separakely and measured reliably and if it is probable that they will be recovered, These asssts are
amortised as the entity recognises the related revenue. .

¥ Operating leases
: The leases entered into by the Group are exciusively operating leases. The fotal payments mads under cperating leases
. “are charged to the income statement on a siraight-line basis over the period of the lease, When an operaiing lease is

terminated before the Isase period has expired, any early termination payment required o be made 1o the iessor is
recognised as an expense in the pariod in which termnation takes place.
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3. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities. Estimatos and
judgements are cordinually evaluated and are based on histerical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.’

Fair vatuea

Ag is the nomnal practice in the industry, the values the Greup reports In the financial statements with respect to financial
instuments cwned and financial instruments soid but not yet purchased are in mosi cases based on fair valus, with
related unreafised and realised gains or losses included in the income statement. Fair vefus may be objective, as is the
case for exchenge-traded instrumants, for which quoted prices in price-efficient and liquid markets generally exist, or as is
the case where a financial instrument's fair value is derived from actively quoted prices or pricing parameters or aHemative
pricing sources with a reasonable level of price fransparency. For financial nstruments that trade infrequently and have
fitthe price transparsncy, fair value may be subjective and require varying degress of judgement depending on Nepsidity,
concentration, uncertainty of market factors, pricing assumptions and ather risks affecting the specific instrument,

Uncertainly of pricing assumptions and liquidity are features of both derivative and non-derivative transactions. These
features have been considered as past of the valuation process. As a result of these uncertainties, the Greup does not
recogiise a dealer profit or tnrealiscd gain at the inception of a derivative or non-derivative transaction unless the valuation
underlying the unrealised gain is evidenced by quoted market prices in an active market, cbservable prices of other current
market transactions or other observable data supporiing a valuation technigue in accardance with 1AS 88 *Finencial
Instruments Recognillon and Measurement’ AG 78. The piinciples of IAS 38" Financlal Instruments Recognition and
Measurament’ AG 76 have been applied o ransactions entered into on and afier 1 Janvary 2004,

Liﬁgaiion contingencles

A contingency is an existing condition that involves a degree of uncertaimty that will ultimately be resohved upon the
occurmence of future events, From Hime to time, the Groug Is involved in & variety of legal, regulatory and arhitration
matiers in connection with the conduct of #s businesses.

It is inherently difficult to predict the oulcoms of many of these matters, particularly those cases in which the matters are
brought on behalf of various classes of claimants, seek damages of unspecified or indeterminate amounts or involve novel
legel claims. In presenting the Group's financial statements, management makes estimates reganding the outcoms of
legel, regulatory and arbiiration matters and takes a charge to Income when losses with sespect to such matters are
probeble and can be raasonably esimated. Charges, other than those taken periodically for casts of defence, are rot
established for matters when losses cannot be reascnably estimated, Estimates, by their nature, are based on ludgement
and cunently available information and involve a variety of factors, inciuding but not limited fo the type and nature of the
ltigation, daim or procesding, ihe progress of the matler, the advice of legal counsel and other advisers, the Group’s
defences and its experience in similar casss or procsedings. According te IAS 37 'Provisions, Confingent Liabilites and

Lontngant Assets', a provision shall be recognised when (2} an entity has a present obligation (egal or constructive) as a

restit of a past event; (b} it Is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic bencits will be required to seitle
the obligation; and (c) a refiable estimate can be made of tha amaunt of the obligation,
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3. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies (continued)
Share-based payments

The Group uses the liabilty method to eccount for its share-based compensation plans, which requires the Group's
current obligation under these plans to be recorded at estimated fair value. The parameters the Group incorporates inte
the valugtion include hath internal expectations of future performance of the Credit Suisse group, which is based on:
management’s assessment of current market conditions, as wel as market expectations. In determining the final liability,
the Group also estimates the number of forfeitures over the life of the plan based on management's expectations for
future periods, which also considers past experience.

Retirement benefit costs

The following relates to the assumptions the Compary, as sponsor of the defined benefit plan, has made In annving at the
valugtions of the various cemponents of the defined benefit plan.

The calculation of the expense and liablity assoclated with the defined benefit pension plans requires the extensive use of
assumptions, which include the discount rate, expetcied retum on plan assets and rate of future compensation increases
23 determined by the Campany. Management determines these assumptions based upon cumently availeble market and
inciustry data and hisforical performance of the plans and their assels. Management alse consults with an independent
actuarial firm to asslst in selecting appropriste assumpfions and valuing its related liabilities. The actuarial assumptions
used by the Campany may differ materialy from actual results due to changing market and economic conditions, higher or
lower withdrawal rates or longer or sharter life spans of the pardicipanis. Any such differences could have a significant

" impact on the amount of pension expense recorded in future years,

Tha Company is required to estimate the expecied retum on plan assets, which is then used to compute pension cost
recarded in the income statement. Estimating future retums on plan assets is pariiculay subjective since the estimate
requirss an assessment of possible fulure market relums based on the plan asset mix and observed historical retums. In
calculating pension expense and in determining the expected rate of return, the Company uses the calculated value of
assafs.

The discount rate used in determining the bansfit obligation 1s based either upen high-quality corporate bond rates or
govemment bond rates plds a premilum in order to approximate high-qualify corporate bond rates. In estimating the
discount rate, the Company takes intc consideration the refationship between the corporate bonds and the fiming and
amount of the future cash outflows of its bensfit payments.

Allowances and provisions for loan losses

As d nomnal part of the Group's business, i is exposed to credit risks through its lending relationships, commitments and
lettars of credit and as a rasult of counterparty risk on derivatives, foreign exchange and other transactions, Credlt risk is
the sk that & borrower or counterparty is unable to meet its financial obligations. In the event of a default, the Group
generally incurs a loss equal to the amount owed by the counterparty, less a recovery amount resuliing from foreclosure,
liquidation of collateral or restructuring of the counterpariy’s obligation. The Group maintains allowances for loan losses,
which it considers adequate to absorb credit losses existing at the balance sheet date. These allowances are for probable
credit losses Inherent in existing exposures and” credit exposures specifically dentified as impaired, The inherent loss
allowance is for alt credit exposures not speciiically identified 85 impeired which, on a portfolio basis, are considered to
contain incurred inherent loss. The loan valuation allowance for inherent loss is established by analysing historical and
current default probabifities, historical recovery assumptions, and intemal risk ratings. The methodniogy for calculating
specific allowances involves judgements at many levels, such as early identification of deteriorating credits. Extensive
judgement is required in order to evaluate properly the various indicators of financial condition of a counterparty and
likglihood of repayment. .
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2006

3. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements In Applying Accounting Policies (continued)
Income taxes

Deferred tax valuation

Deferred tax assets and lablities are racognised fo reflect the estimated amounts of income tax recoverable ar payable in
future pereds in respect of temporary differences and unused carry forward of tax losses and credils, For temporary
differences, a defemed tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable Income will be available against
which the deductible temporary diffsrence can be utilised.. Simifarly, a deferred tax asset is recognised on unused carry
forward tax losses and credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
unused carry Torward {ex losses and credifs can be uiilised.

Periodically, management evaluates the probability that taxable profits will be avallable against which the deductible
temporary differences and unused carry forward tax losses and crediis can be utilised. Within this evaluation process,
management also considers tax planning sirategies. The evaluation process requires significant management judgement,
prirarily with respect to projecting fulure taxable profits.

Tax contingencles

Significant judgement is required in detemining the effective fax rate and In avaluating certain tax pesitions. The Group
accrues for tax contingencies despite the belief that positions taken in tax retums are always fully supportable. Tax
contingency accruals are adjusted due to chenging facis and circumstances, such as case law, progress of tax authority
audiis or when an event ocours requiring a change to the tax condingency accruals. Managsment reguiarly assesses the
appropriaieness of provisions for income taxes. Management believes that it has-appropriately acerued for any contingent
tex ligbilities.
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4. Interest Incomea and Interest Expense

Group Group
2006 2005
: US$M USEM
Interest income on cash, cash equivalents and loans 358 239
Secuiities purchased under resals agreements and sscurities bormwing
transactions 6,434 3,959
Cther interest income on cash collateral : 84 35
Total interest Incorne 6.876 4,293
Interest expense on deposits {43 2n
Securities sold under repurchase agreements and securities lending transactions {6,085} 3.218)
Interest expense on short-tenm barowings ' (2,708) (1,804)
Interest expeﬁse on long-termn debt ) : (1t (63
Other interest expense on cash collateral (180; (a5)
Total interest expense : . (8,107 {5,196
Net interest expense (1,231} (803)

Interest expense inciudes US$2M in 2006 relating to inslruments designated at fafr value (2005: US$2M income).

5. Nen-Interest Revenues and Total Operating Expenses

The following table sets forth the details of commissions and facs:

Group Group
2006 2006
USEM LISEM
Commissions from lending business:

Investment and portfolic management fees : _ ' 1 3
Commissions and fees from fiduciary activities;

Underwriting fees - ) 473 302

Brokerage fees : . ‘ 1,214 835 -
Merger and acquisition fees 364 955
Fees for other customer services ' 41 15
Commission and feg income 2,683 1.411
Commissions from lending business:

Investment and portfolio management fass ) @) Q)
Commissions and fees fram fiduciary aclivitias:

Brokerage fess (121 (36}
Fees for aother customer services ' ) )]
Commission and fee expense (130} i)
Het Commisslons and fees 1,963 1,372

Other charges of USH(105)M (2005: US$H(EHM) principally relate to amaunts charged o the Group from other Credit

Suisse group companies,
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%. Non-interest Revenues and Tatal Operating Expenses (continued)

The following table sets forth the details of cofnpensation and benefits:

Group Group

2006 2005

: _ USEM USSM

Salaries and honuses 2,104 1,936
Sacial security 258 231
Pension cost . 68 B8
Other 34 50
Compensation and benefits : 2,464 2,275

included in the above table are amounts relating to directors’ remuneration. Further details are disclosed in Note 26(d).

The following tabie sets forth the details of other expenses;

! ' Group Group
2005 2006
; USEM US$M
i QOccupancy expenses 168 151
: IT and machinery expenses . 140 182
Depreciation expenses .10 8

Provisions and losses ‘ 0] 44

Commission expenses 3 306

Travel and entertainment ' 92 82

Audit fees of the Company ' : 2 e

: Professional services 232 214

! Other 162 70

o Expenses receivable from other Credit Sulsss group companies ' (521) (344)

' Other expenses 665 665

The Group incurs expenses on behalf of other Credit Suisse group companies under cominon control. These are
| ) stbsequently rechatged 1o the relevant companies through 'Expenses receivabla from other Credit Suisse group
companizs’,




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2008

6. Trading Activities

The following table sels forth the details of trading-related revenues:

Group Group

2008 2005

USEM USEM

interest rate products 386 307
Equily/index-related products 874 600
Foreign exchange products : ' 212 a1
Other - @
Trading revenues 1472 9396
Dividend income on trading assets : 3,867 2,547
Dhvidend expensa on trading llabilities (2,687 {1,688
Net trading dividend income . 1,180 8494
Nef trading revenues 2,652 1,890

For the year ended 31 December 2006, the impact to the profit or loss relating te financial Instruments designated as
held at fair value through profit and foss was a loss of US$AM (2005: US$EM loss). Included in this total Is LS$nl
{2006: US$nil) of fair value changes of financial liabilities due to changes in the Group's own creditworthiness.,

Financial instruments at fair vaiue through profit or loss (incleding frading)

Group and Group and
. Company - Company
2006 2005
USEM US$M
Trading assets

Debi instruments
Treasury bills 206 614
Govermnment debi instruments : 17,832 10,985
Comorate debt instruments : 13,344 13,552
Equity instruments ) _ 27 131 23,155
Positive replacement values of derivative trading positlons 12,821 11,046
Total trading asssts 71,334 59,362

Trading assets and other financial assets include US$39,880M (2005: US$E30,366M) which are encumbered,

Group Group
g : 2006 2005
r ' . USEM US$M
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss :
Debt instruments
Struclured resale agreements : 1618 790
Life insurance contracts . &1 -
Lifs annuity contracts ) 378 -
Total financia! assets desighated at fair value through profit or loss 2,057 790

3
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8. Trading Activities (continued)

Company Cornpany

2006 2008

: USSM Us$
. Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss

Dbt instruments

i Structured resale agroements 1,618 790

Life insurance contracts ' 8 -

Life annuity contracts 270 -

Total financlal assets designated at falr value through profit or loss 1,888 790

i
E
i
!
|
'
|

For financial assels designated as at fair value, the maximum fair vaiue exposure fo credit risk as at 31 Depember
2006 Is US$2,057M (Group) and USH,898M. (Cormpany) (2006; US$700M (Group and Company)), US$1,618M
(Group and Company) of this value is fully collateralised (2005 US$790M (Group and Company)). This includes net
anly changes in falr values but also movement as a result of newly designated financial instruments, disposals and
maturifies during the year. The movement in fair values of the finansia) assets designated as at fair value during the
pedod endad 31 December 2008 was a USS5M (Group and Company) foss in the income statement [2005; US$5M
foss {Group and Company)). The changes in fale value ars maitly due o movernents in market sisk,

, Group and Group and
“ ' Caompany Compary
o 2008 2006
Trading liablfities ' US3$M US$M
Debt instruments _ (26,856) (24,019)
Equity Instruments : o {12,15Q) (8,547)
i MNegative replacement values of derivative trading positions {13,196) {13,763)
Total trading liabiiities : {82,181) {46,329
Group Group
| ‘ : Ussm USEM

- Financial llabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

Debt instruments

Structured repurchase agreements : {4,754} (284)
] Other ) -
'| Total financtal liabilies desfgnatad at fair value through profit or foss (4,780) (288)
Company Company
2006 2006
: USTM USEM

Finanaial liabllitles_ deskynated at fair value through profit or loss

Debi Instruments

Structured repurchase sgreements {4,754) (284)

Tatal financial liahiiitles designated at fair value through profit or foss {(4,754) (280
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2006

6, Trading Activities {continued)

For finaricial liabilities designated as at fair value, the maximum fair value exposure as at 31 December 2006 is
US$4,754M (2006: US$284M), which is fully collateralised. This includes net only changes in fair values but also
movemerds as & result of newly designated financial instruments, disposals and maturities dusing the year. The
mavement In fair values of the finencial liabilties designated as at fair value during the peried ended 31 December 2006
was a US$4M loss in the income statement (2006: US$3M gain). The changes in feir value are mainly due to
movernents in market risk,

The mark to market valuation was calculated using a yleld curve which reflected the Company's credit rating in the
matket and the sffect of collateral. This was achieved by adjusting the refevent yield curve at each point in the curve to
provide an own credit adjusted valuation.

The financiel instruments designated at fair value through the profit and loss were elected because they are menaged
on a fair value basis.

7. Income Tax Expense

Group Group
2006 K05
UsgM USEM
Current tax
Currant tex on profits of the period (156} (14
Adjustments in respect of previous periods 87 4
Total current tax (99) (10}
Deferred tax . ‘
Origination and reversal of temporay differences : 133 139
Adjusiments in respect of previous periods (&) 10
Tatal deferred tax 107 148
Income tax.credit . 8 138

Current tax of US$nil (2006: US$ni) and deferred tax of US$nil (2005: US$nil) were credied directly to equity. The
total deferred tax credited fo equity in 2005 of US$71M related to amounts on fransificn from UK GAAP fo IFRS.
US$H7OM arase on nan JAS 82/30 tterns and USH1M aross on 1AS 32/39 ilems.
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7. Income Tax Expense (continued)

Further information about deferred income tax is presented in Note 11, The following tahle is a reconcllation of taxes
computed at the UK statutary rats of 30% (2005: 30%) 1o the actual Income tax expense:

Group Group

2008 2005

USHM USSM

Incorne: tax credit computed at the statutory tax rate (485) 191
Increase/(decraase) In incame tax credit resulling from:

Cther non-deductible expenses ' i2 (58)

Unrelisvable foreign ax (12 4]

Adjusimerts to current tax in respect of previous periods B7 4

Adjustments to deferred {ax in respect of previous periods (08) 10

Tax effect of utilising tax Josses on which no deferred tax was previously recogniser 22 -

Income tax credit . 8 139

8. Securities purchased and sold under resale or repurchase agreemants and securfties borrowing
transactions

The feliowing fable sutnmarises the securities borrowed or purchased under agreements to resell, at their respective

carmying values: ‘

Group and Graup and

Corpany Company

2006 D005

: US$M LiSEM
Securities purchased under resale agresments and securities barrowing

: transactions : ' 112,321 93,876

| Deposits paid for securities borrowed 81,826 52,322

, Total _ 184,146 155,997

?1 OFf which due in more than 1 year - -

The maximum momth-end amount of securies purchased under agreemenis to reself was US$213,801M and
USH174,338M In 2008 and 2006 respectively, The average amount of sscurities purchased under agreements to
resell during the year was US$189,123M and USE167,084M in 2006 and 2005 respectively.

The following table summarises the securities lant or sold under agreements ic repurchase, at their respective camying

values: .
Group and Group and
Company Company
2006 2006
USHM US$SM

Securities solt under repurchase agreernents and securities lending

trarsaclions 112,302 103,843
Deposits received for securities lent 38,262 18,716
Total 150,554 122,558

OFf which due in more than 1 year - -
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8, Securities purchased and sold under resale agreements and securities barrowing transactions
{continuad)

Purchase and repurchase agraements represent colateralised financing transactions used to earn net interest incorne,
; increase liquidity or faciitate trading activity, These instruments are collateralised principally by govemment securities
i and monay market instruments and generally have terms ranging from overnight to payable on demand. The Group
; manitors the fair value of securities received or delivered. For securiles purchased under resale agresments, the Group
requests additional securities or the return af a pertien of the cash dishursed when appropriate in response to a deciine
i the market value of the securiies received. Similarly, the retum of excess securities or additional cash Is requested
when approptiate in response to an Increase in the market value of securities sold under repurchase agreements.

In the event of counterparly defavit, the financing agreement prevides the Group with the right to liquidate tha collateral
held. Inthe Group's nommal courss of business, a substantial portion of the coliateral received that may be sold or re-
pledged has been seid or re-pledged as et 31 December 2006 and 2005 respectively. Refer to Note 31.

Deposits paid for securities bormowed and deposits received for securites lent are recorded at the amount of cash
advanced or recelved and are collaleralised principally by cash or merketable securifies, Securties boirowing
transactions require the deposit of cash or sccutities collateral with the lender. For secuities lending transactions, the
Group raceives cash or secusilies collateral in an amount generally in excess of the market value of securities lent. The
Group menitors the market value of securities bomowed and securities lent on a daily basis end obtains additional
| collateral as necessary.

. Transferred Assets

The following financial assets have been seld or transferred but continue fo be recognised in fub or to the extent of the
Company's continuing involvement:

Group a'nd Company -Group and Company

E ‘ A0 : 2005
Nature of Asset Carying  Associaled Camying Associgied
amount of Liabilry amount of Liability
asset asset
_ USHEM UssM - . USSM USEM
! Securities lending agreemeants S ROTT (12,077 18,824 (18,217

The assets in the table above continue to be recognised o the extent shown due 1o transactions which da net qualify
for derecognition of the asssts from the balance sheel. The Company remains exposed to all the risks and rewards
associated with the relevant portions of the retained assets including market risk, setlerment risk, credit risk and country
risk.

The majority of the retained assets relate fo securities lending agreements and repurchase agresments. The resufiing
; credit exposures are controlled by daily monitoring and collateralisation of the posifions. Other collateralised secusities
irading includes transactions In which the Company has transferred assets but continues to have involvement in the
| transferred assets, for example through providing a guarantse, wiiting put oplions, acquiring call options, or entering into
a total refum swap or other type of swap lnked o the performance of the asset. If contrel is retained duo 1o these types
of assoclated transactions, the Company continues 1o recognise the fransferred msset in its entirety or to the extent of
its continuing involvement.

‘ ‘ 3
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NOTES TQ THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2006 '

9. Loanz

For both the Group and Company, loans recaveable from foreign, commercial corporations were US$nil (2005:
USH1BM due in more than 1 year). There wers no allowances made for loan losses in 2006 (2005: US$nil).

10. Other Invesiments

The following table summarises details of other investments:

Group and Group and

Company Company

2006 . 2008

o LISEM LssM

Non-marketable equity securities g )
Total other Investments 2] 9

This item Includes investmentis in non-marketable exchanges for which the Group has neither significant influence ner
control over the investee. The fair value of these investiments is disclosed in Note 30,

11. Deferred Taxes

Doforred taxes are calculated on af femporary differences under the ]lablhty method using an expected tax rate of 30%
{2005: 30%).

The movement on the deferred income tex account is as follows:

Group and Group and

Company Company

2006 2006

. USHM USHM

At 1 January 387 168
Arlsing on non IAS 32/39 ems - 70
Restated balance under IFRS (excluding 1AS 32/30) . . 387 238
Arising on |AS 82/39 items - credited fo equlty during the penod - 1
Restated opening balance under IFRS (including (AS 32/33) 387 939
Credit to income for the year 107 149
Exchange differences ) 2 (1)
At 31 December 496 g7

See Note 7 for further information on deferred tax charged directly to equily.
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‘ 11. Deferred Taxes (continued)

Deferrad income tax asssts and liabllities are attributable to the following items:

Deferred tax assets
Group and Graup and
! o . Company Company
2006 2005
US$M USSM
Pensions and other post retirement bensfits 50 57
Derivative financizl instruments : - 1
Share-based compensation 412 304
Other provisions 13 9
Cther short term temporary differences 30 27
f At end of year 505 398
%  Deferred tax liabilitios
Group and Group and
Company Cotmpany
2008 2006
, _ USSM USSM
Accelerated fax depreciation 1)) (11
At end of year ‘ ©) an

The deferred tex charge in the income statement comprises the fellowing temporary differences:

Group and Group and

Company Company

‘ 2006 2005
LS$M Us$M
' Penslens and other post-refirement bonefits 8 9
Decelerated tax depreciation 3 -

Share-hased compensation (108) (138

Other provisions g 4 ®

Cther short term temporary differencas o {19)

At end of year {on (149)

Deferred fax assets are recognised on deductible temporary differences, tax less cary and tax credits only to the
extertt that realisation of the relaled tax bensfit is probable. The Group has no tax losses (2005: US$B6M) to camy
forward against future fexable income,

Deferrad tax assets and liabilities are offset when thats is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
currert tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relates to the sama fiscal authority.

|
|

The extent to which deferred tax assels can be recognised Is dependent upon the avallability of future taxable profits at
the 1ime the existing deductible temporary differences reverse. The analysis of the deferrad tax assets is shown above.
The total amount of defarred tax assets is considered recoverable as the Group is expected 1o receive the benefit of
any reversal of the deductible femporary differances, either ageinst future taxable profits or by sumendedng tax losses
as group relief. The Group will receive full consideration for any graup relief surrendersd.
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12. Other Asseis

Group Group

Q008 2005

USHM USEM

Pasitive replacement values of derivative instruments (held for hedging purposes) 5 1
Brokerage receivables (Note 13) 35,615 28,879
inferast and Tees recalvable 2,123 1,343
OTC ¢ash collateral 2,822 1,805
Prepaid expenses : 45 a6
Other 907 107
Total ' 41,518, 30,271
Company Company

2006 2005

UsStM USSEM

Positive replacenment values of derivative inslruments (held for hedging purposes) 5 1
Brokerage receivables (Note 13) ) 35,615 926,979
Interest and fees receivable o 2,128 1,343
OTC cash collateral 2,822 1,805
Prepaid expensas 48 36
Other 208 107
Total - - 40,824 30,271

All Other Assets, aiher than 'Positive replacement values of derivalive instrumonts', are due within 1 year,

13. Erokerage Receivables and Brokerage Payables

The Group recegnises recelvables and payables from transactions in financial instruments purchased from and sold to
customers, banks, brokers and dealers. The Group is expussd to a risk of loss resulling from the inghilty of
counterparties to pay for or deliver financial instruments sold, In which case the Group would have fo sell or purchase,
respectively, these financial instruments at provalling market prices. To ihe extent that an exchange or clearing
organisation acts as a counterparly to a transaction, credit fsk |s generally considersd to be reduced. The Group
requires custamers fo maintain margin collateral in compliance with applicable regulatary and infernal guidefines.

Group and Group and

Company Company

2006 2005

ussm UStHM

Due from customers 18,682 13,478
Diye from banks, brokers and dealers 16,933 13,503
Total brokerage receivables 35,615 25,979
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13. Brokerage Recelvebles and Brokerage Payables {continued)
Group and Group and
Company Company
© 2006 2005
LiSSM USSM
Due to customers _ {10,2985) {6,801
Due to barks, brokers and dealers (13,946) (10,248)
Tolal brokerage payables (24,241) (16,849)
14. Investmient in subsidlary undertakings
: Company Company
2006 2005
USHM LS$M
Bagirning of the year ' : . - -
Investment in subsidiary undertekings 165 -
End of the year 155 w
Significant subsidiaries
81 Decamber 2008 Company name : Country of Cumency
% of aguity held incorporation
100 Credil Suisse First Boston Nominees Limited UK uUss
100 Credht Suisse First Boslon Trustees Limited UK s
100 Credit Suisse First Boston Private Funds Group Limited UK Uss
100 Sail Master Trust | Ireland Uss
100 Sail Master Trust I Ireland Us$

Trust Il were acquired during 2008,

l The business of all the subsidlardes IS‘CGMplefneﬂfaI}’ 10 the business of the Group. Sall Master Trust | and Sail Master

Coples of accounts of Credit Sulsse lnvestments (UK) and of the ultimate holding company, CSG, which are those of
the smallest and lergest groups in which the results of the Company ars consolidated, are available to the public and
may be obtalned from The Reglstrar of Companies, Companies House, Crown Way, Maindy, Cardiff and Credit Suisse

Group, Paradeplatz, F.O. Box 1, 8070 Zurich, respectively.

15. Goodwill

Group and
Company
2005
USHM

7

Gl

i Group and
Company

2006

: USEM

Opening hook ameunt &

Exchange differences 1

-Closing net book amount 7

6

All goadwill Is held by branches of ke Company and denominated in Euros. This Is transiated fo US$ at the balance

shieel date.
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15. Property, Plant and Equiprment

Group and Company
2006
Lang
Leaseheid
{.and and Leaschold  Computer Office
Buikdings Improvements  Equipment  Equipment Tetal
USEM USEM USHM LUSEM US$HM
Cost:
Cost as at 1 January 2006 B 46 10 8 114
Additions . - 29 } 6 36
Disposals - o @ Mm (19
Cther movements : - @ 3 - 1
Cost as gt 31 December 2006 : 52 &6 12 Ial 141
Depreciation:
Depreciation as at 1 January 2006 7 30 8 4 50
Charge for the period i 7 1 1 0
Disposals o - (€} @ M ©
Other mevements : - 2) 2 - -
Depreciation as at 81 December 2006 8 29 10 4 51
Net book value as at 31 December 2008 44 : a7 o 7 90
Net book value as at 31 December 2005 - 45 16 1 0 B4

Leasehold improvements relate to improvements to land and buildings occupisd by the Group and other Credit Suisse
group companles. ' ‘

No intenast has been capitalised whhin Property, Plant and Equipraent (2008:US$nil.
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
Group and Cornpeny
i 2005
i ] Long
| Leasehold
! Land and Leasehold  Computer Office
!I Buildings. tmpravements  Equipmeni Equipment Total
: US$EM USEM USEM US$M US$M
‘ ‘ Cost
i Cost as at 1 January 2006 52 46 9 8 115
! Additons - 3 1 1 5
: 1 Disposals - - - - -
i Other movements - @8 - 3 6
Cost as al 31 December 2000 52 48 .10 [ 114
Depreciation:
: Depreciation as at 1 January 2005 . 8 24 3 5 43
; Charge for the period 1 5 1 1 8
Disposals - - - - -
Other movements - 1 - 2 )
! Depreclation as at 31 December 2000 7 20 9 4 60
Net book value s at 31 December 2005 45 16 1 o . 64
|
" Net book value as at 81 December 2004 46 92 i 3 70
_; 17. Deposits
! :
Group and Group and
Company Company
2006 2005
LSEM Us$M
Non-Interest beering demand deposils . ‘ .
: from banks ' N " 414 13
i | fram custorners - 1
Interest-bearing demand deposits . '
from banks 202 47
from customers 147 141
Time deposits '
from banks ’ . 1,176 840
Totat deposits 1,939 - 1,042
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31 DECEMBER 2008

17. Deposits (continued)

As at 31 Decamber 2006, the remaining maturifies for time deposits were as follows:

Up to 1 monih

From 1 month to 3 months
From 3 months to | year
From 1 yearto 5 years
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Total fime deposits

Group and Group and
Cormpany Company
o006 2005
USEM USHM
B43 T41

- 54

318 -

15 45

1,176 840

Deposits for the Group and Company include US$702M (2005:US$268M) due o related parties under common

centrol,

18. Short Term Borrowings

Interest-bearing brokerage borrowings

Total short term borrowings

Group and Group and
Company Company
2008 2006
USEM USEM
66,868 55,393
66,868 55,393

As at 31 December 2008, the remaining maturtiles for short term borrowings of the Group and Company were as

follows:
Group and Group and
Cormpany Company
2006 2006
USHM USHM
Upta 1 menth €0,314 - 49,927
From 1 month to 3 months 35,564 5,464
From 3 months fo 1 year - 9
Total short term borrowings deposits 66,868 55,393

Short term borrowings for the Group and Company include US$66,858M (2008:LUS$E55,391M) due to related parties

undet common control.

The short term barrowings reported in the balance sheet of the consolidated SPEs (see note 28) were raceived from

another Group company and therefore liminate on consclidation.
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19. Long Term Debt

Group and Group and
Company Company
2006 2005 -
USEM US$m
Subordinated debt 2,992 1,674
Total long term dabt 2,282 1,674

At 31 December 2C06 subardinated debt comprises an amount of US$2,292M advancad hy Credit Sulsse First Boston
Finance B, a felow campany under comman control, under an agreement dated 20 March 1996, as amended by deed
of variation dated 2 July 2001. During the year the Company borrowed a further US$618M additional subordinated loan
capttal from Credit Suisse First Boston Finance BY (2005: US$150M).

Under the fems of the facility the Company may repay, in whale o in part, any amounts cutstanding upon giving prior
wiritien notice 1o the lender and FSA, The earliest date at which the lender can request repayment is Aprit 2021,

Interest is payable up to LIBOR plus 85 basls points par annum or at such other rate as may be agreed betwsen the
parties. Under the faciltty, the loan and any interest outstanding therson Is subcrdinated in right of repayment 1o afl other
indebtedness and Fabilitias of the Company, ’

20. Other Ligbilitias

Siroup and Graup and

Company Company

2008 - 2005

: USHM US$M
Negative replacement valuss of dervativa instruments (held for hedging

PUrposes) : : 1 23

Brckerage payables (Note 13} 24,241 16,849

interest and fees payable : 2,172 1,662

GTC cash collateral ' C ' 4,791 3,266

Compensation accnals : : 2,178 1,478

Other ' 244 166

Tota] Gther Liabihties 33,827 23,430

Alt Other Liabllifies, other than 'Negative repiacernent values ot dervative instruments’, aie due within 1 year.

43




1  (Case 0:04-cv-60573-FAM  Document 2045-3  Entered on FLSD Docket 03/24/2008 Page 82 of 115 |
CREDIT SUISSE SECURITIES (EUROPE) LIMITED GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2008

21. Provisions
Group and Company .
Total Total

! ' , Property  Litigatien 2006 2006
UssM Us$m USEM US$M

Balance at beginning of ysar 19 49 68 48

Increase in provisions 5 § 10 53

Relsased or utdised during lhe year @ (12) (16) (3%

Currency translation difference 2 - .2 (2)

Balance at the end of the vear 22 42 64 &8

OF which due in more than 1 year 8 - 8 g

A sigrificant portion of the property provision relaies to reinstatement: obligations that wilt be incurred when the leases
axpire. Approximately US$5M of this is expected to be utllised during 2007, A further US$10M relates to a provision for
‘expected losses on rental costs that will not be recovered from the sub-lessors. US$E.2m of this is expacied o be
utilised over the next 3 years.

USEH38M of the liligation provision relaies o the estimated liability exposure and legal fees for a case that the Company
is defending. It is expected this matter will be setifed In 2007, The legal fees have been ncurred and will be sefiled in
2007, ‘

22, Called-up Share Capital

Authorised:

Group and Group and
Coripany Company
2008 2005
. USsM USHM
~ Eguity

60,000,000 ordinary voling shares of US$1 each B0 50
Total authorised share capital 60 5

Allotted, called up.and fully paid: .
; Group and Group and
Campany Campany
20086 2005
: USSM USEM
E 27,300,000 ordinary voting shares of US$1 each ] a7 27
Capital contributien ’ 4,496 8,248

; Total called-up share capital 4,523 8,275

The holders of ordinary shares cany voting rights and the right to receive dividends.

a4




e N —

Gase 0:04-cv-60573-FAM--- Doecument-2045-3--- Entered on FLSD Docket-03/24/2008-- Page 83 of 145 - - |-

CREDIT SUISSE SECURITIES (EUROPE) LIMITED GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 DECEMBER 2008

23. Stock awards

The Company's share-based payments, which are an integral part of the Company's anmual remuneration process, ars
an important part of the overall compansation package Tor key employees and senior executives and are designad 1o
promete employee refention and align employee and shareholder interests. The majority of share-based payments are
granted as part of the annual perfermance incentive borus granted o employees subsequent to the financial year lo
which the parformance incentive bonus relates, Share-based payments are genorally subject to restrictive features such
as vesting, forfeiture and blocking rules,

The Company alsa awarded Performance Incentiva Plan unlts ['PIP's) as part of its long-term incentlve program in 2006
and 2005, based upon individuals' performance in 2006 and 2004, respectively, Each PIP unit entifles the holder to
recaive Credit Suissa Group shares at the ond of the five-year vesting period based upon the achievement of defined
financiel targets and performence relative fo a group of peers. Vesting is subject fo continued employment with the
Group, restrictive covenents and cancellation provisions. Compensation expense for PIPs is adjusted annually basad on
management's estimate of samings performance over the five year vesting petied.

In January 2007, as part of the 2006 remuneration procass, the @roup has streamlined its share-based payment
programs and will issue are common instrument, Incentive Share Units (SUs). Previously granted awards will continue
1o seitie under their original ferms and are not affected by the 1ISU award, The ISU award combines features of
traditional share grants with a leverage compoenent linked 1o the development of the Credit Suisse Group shars price.

Total compensation expense for stock awards payments recognised dusing 2008 and 2005 was USST22M and
US$751M respectively. The tolal siock award Guability recorded as at 31 December 2006 was US$1,321M (2005:
US$807M), of which the falr value of the liability consists solely of inlrinsic value. The fair valua used fa calculate the

" stock awand llabilfity was the closing Credit Suisse Group share price as at 31 December 2006 CHF85.45 (2005

CHFBY). The average weighted fair valus of awards granted In 2006 was CHF73.66 (2006: CHF40.08). Tha intrinsic

value of vested share based awards outstanding as at ysar end was US$S8M (2008: USH100M].

Maovements in the number of share awards and PIP units outstanding were as foflows:

Group and Group and
Company Company
2008 - 2005 .
millions millians
Stock excluding PIP units
As ak 1 January ' ' 8.03 8.48
Granted . 478 .. 477
Deiivered : : (2.79; (4.59)
Forfeited (0.63) (0.70)
As at 31 December o 8.239 8.03
PIP. Units ) .
As gt 1 January ‘ 2,08 -
Granted . 0.85 2.17
Delivered : ' - -
Forleited {0.05) (0.08)

As at 31 December ’ ) 2.89 2.08
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23. Stock awatds (continuad)

Share options

" Stack option awards granteci in or before January 2003 for sevice provided in prior years ware fully expensed duing
the year of service. These stock option awards have 2 service period of one 1o five years and expire from seven lo ten
years from the grant date.

Under the Credit Suisse Group Master Sheve Plan, as of January 2004, options over Credit Suisse Group Registered
Shares are only granted to employees located in ltaly. The exsrcise price is the higher of the market value of Credit
Suisse Group Reglstered Shares on date of grant cr the average: share price of Credit Sulsse Group Registered Shares
for one month prior o and including the date of grant. Options vest in three equal instalments commencing from the
first anniversary of the grant date and are exerciseble as they vest; the aplions have a contractual option term of ten
years. The Company has no legal ar constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the optiens in cash.

Movements in thé number of share aptions outstanding are as follows:

Group and Company Croup and Company
2006 o008

11 In units Weighted In units Weighted
! average awerage
: exerclas price exercise price
At 1 January ' ’ 81,272 CHF 47.98 20,000 CHF 47,75

Granted 16367 CHF73.06 62,274 CHF 48.0%

Exercised - CHF Q.00 : - CHF 0,00

; Forfeited ‘ - CHF 0.00 {1,002) CHF 47.75

é At 31 Decembelj 97,639 CHF 5218 81,272 CHF 47.98

' No share options were exercised during 2006. The intrinsic value of vested options outstending as at year end was

US$T. 1M (2006: USED. IM), .

Share options cutstanding at the end of the year were as follows:

Group and Groyp ard

7 _ Company Company
1 Exercise Price 2008 2006

‘ Jan 2004 Options ' CHF47.75 18,008 18,998
Jan 9006 Options : CHF48.05 62,274 62,974

Jan 2008 Options ' CHF73.068 16,367 -

97,639 81,272

The fair value of options granted during the poried dotermined using the Black-Scholes valuation model was US$9
(2006: US38). The significant inputs Into the model were share prices of US$54.98 {2006: US$30.82) at the grant

. date, exsrcise price shown above, standard deviation of expected share price returns of 24.8% (2005: 20%), option fife
disclosed above, and annual risk free interest rate of 2.4% (2005: 1.9%). The valatlily measured at the standard
devietion of expecied share price returns is based on statistical analysis of daily share prices over the fast three years.
The 2005 comparative relating 1o the number of shares outstanding and the Black-Scholes veluation model has been
madified te be consistent with the 2008 presentation methodology.
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24. Retirernent Benefit Obligations

! The Company has established a rumber of pension schemes covering substantially all employees. Soma of the pension
schemes are final salary defined banefit plans and are funded. The assets of the funded plans are hekd independently
of ihe Gompany's asscis in separaie tustee administered funds, A full actuarial valuation is completed by independent
actuasies, for these schemes, every three years using the projected unit credit method and updated for each balance
shest date, The Company does not contribute o any other post-retirement defined benefit plans,

The following disclosures contain the balances for the entire defined benefit plan sponsored by the Company, of which
the Company is one of many parficipants, who are all related parties under common control, The Company accounts for
the antire plan using defined banefil accounting and its share of the total plan is 76.78%.

Al expenses arising from retirement benefit obligations are recorded in the income statement under "Compensation and
benefifs". :

|

|

; Defired benefit pension and other past-retirement defined henefit plans
t ° .

I

Defined benefit pension plans

\ Group and Group and
; Company Cormpany
:1 2006 2006
: US$M USSM
Senvice costs on benefi obligation . & 3
Interest costs on benedit obligation 54 51
Expected retum on plan assets ‘ B3 &

Amorisation of:
prior service cost T - -
unrecagnised losses ) 1
Net periodic pension costs : } 11 g
Settlement gains - -
Curtailment losses/{gains) - -
Total pension costs : 11 9
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| 24, Retirement Benefit Obligations (continued)
3. The following teble shows the changes in the projected benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets during 2606
: and 2008, and the amounts included in the batance sheet for the Cornpany's defined banefit pension and other past-
retirement defined benefit plans as at 31 Decembear 2003 and 2005 respectively;
Defined benefit pension plans
Girowp and Group and
! Company Company
2005 2005
! US$M USEM
Projectes benefit obligation — beginning of the measurement period 1,072 985
Benefit obligation of countries added in current year - 5
Plan pariicipant contributions - -
Senice cost & 8
Interest cost : 64 B
Plan amendments . - -
Setilements - -
i Curtailments - -
‘ Actuadal losses 114 C 43
Benefit payments )] : (&
Exchange rale lossas/(galns) 165 11
Projected banefit obligation ~ end of the measurement period 1,395 1,072
Fair value of plan asssts - beginning of the measurement period 804 755
Assets of countries added in cusrent year - 3
Expecied retum on plan assets 63 B1
! Actuarial gains/losses on plan assefs . 30 80
Actual return on plan assets 83 131
Contributions 9 8
: _ Plan participant contributions - -
- Benefit payments : ® ®
: Exchange rate gains/{losses) 116 (85)
Fair value of plan assets ~ end of the measurement period 1,603 804
: Tatal armount recognised 31 December
Funded status of the plan (392) {268)
Unrecognised
Net trensition assat : ) - -
Prior sendce cost ' - -
Net actuarial fosses ' o982 167
Exchange rate gains/{Josses) 15 @
MNet amount recognised 31 December (125} {109}

In Q007 the Company expects to contribute US$B.9M fo the UK defined benefit pension plans. The Company is
currantly in discusslons with the Pension Fund Trustees in respect of the valGation and funding of the UK definsd
benefit pension plan. These discussions are expected io be finalised by 31 March 2007 in line with the requirements
set out by the UK Pensions Regulator. The Company has propossd fo fund = significant majority of the fund deficht by
2009, including & payment of GBP140M (LUS$273M) during 2007.
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24. Retirement Benefit Obligations (continued)

b ase.0:04-cv-60573-FAM.. Document 2045-3 __Entered on FLSD Docket 03/24/2008. Page 87 of 115 .

At 31, December 2006 and 2005 the pension fund plan assets hold no maleriat amounts of Credit Sulsse Group debt

and equity securities,

WMovement in the liability recognised in the balance sheet:

Group and Group and

Company Cornpany

2006 2005

LUS$M US$M

At 1 January (108) (120)

Exchange differencs (14) 12

Total expenses {as above) : N ©)

Contributions peid ‘ 2 8

At 31 December (125 (109)
Assumpfiions

the Internafional defined pension plans as of the measurement date were as follows:

" The welghted average assumptions used in the measuremant of the benefit chligation and net periodic pension cost for

Giroup and Group and
- Comparny Cormpary
31 December in % ‘ 2005 2005
Benefit obligations ’
Discount rate . 8.1 4.7
Salary increases 4.6 4.3
Net periodic pension cost
Discount rate ‘ 4.7 5.5
Selaty increases . 43 43
_Expected long-term rate of retum on plan assets 6.7 7.3

The assumplions for life expectancy in the 2006 benefit obligation calculations are based on.the mortality tables
FXAQ2C2006 for eurrent pensioners and PXAG2C2026 for ncn-pensioners with the “medium cohort” adjustment
apolied, The assumptions are {haf & member whe retires at age 80 will Ifve on average for a further 27 years after

retirement if they are male and for a {urther 30 years after retirement if fhey are female.

43




Eas_e__ 0:04-cv-60573-FAM_ __Document 2045-3  Entered on FLSD Docket 03/24/2008 _Page 88 of 115
CREDIT SUISSE SECURITIES (EUROPE) LIMITED GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2008

24, Retirement Benefit Obligations (continued)

Plan assets and investment strateqy -

Tha following table sets forth the weighted average asset allocation of the Group's international defined benefit pension
plan assets as at the measurement date:

Group and Group and

Company Compary

2006 2008

31 Dacember % %
Equity securifies ‘ . 68.3 67.7
Debt securities 17.0 18.5
Altemnative investments 137 13.3
Liguidity . - 0.8
Total : 100.0 100.0

The Company's defined pension plan employs a fotal retum Investment approach, wherehby a diverslfied mix of equities,
fixed income investments and alternative Investments is used to maximise the long ferm refurn of plan assets while
Incurring & prudent level of risk. The intention of this strategy is 1o outperiorm plan liabilitics over the long run in order to
I minimise plan expenses. Rigk tolerance is established through careful consideration of plan lisbilities, plan funded status
: and corporate financial condition, Furthermors, equily investments are diversified across UK and nori-UK stocks as well
as between growth, value and small and large capitalisation stocks. Gther assets such as hedge funds are used to
gnhance long term returns while improving portfolio diversification, Derivatives may be used to take market exposure,
but are rot used 1o leverage the portfolio bayond the market velue of the underlying invastments. Invastment risk is
measUred and monitored on an cngoing basis threugh annual lisbility measurements, petdodic asset/liability studies and
quarterly investment portiolio reviews. To limit investment risk, the Company's pension plans follow defined strategic
asset allocation guidelines. Depending on the market conditions, these guidslines are even more limited on a short-
_ tamm basis, :

The defined banefit plan weighted average larget asset alfocation as at the measurement date was:

Group and Group and

Company Company

) : _ 2006 2005

31 Dacember % . %
Equity securilies €8.7 65,7
Debt securities ' 18.0 19.6
Allermnative investments ] ) 13.3 14.7
Total 100.0 10C.0
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24. Retirsment Bepefit Obligations {continued)

Balances and amounts for the curcent and previous periods for which the Group prepared IFRS accounts are as follows:

. Group and Company
31 December 2008 2006 2004
Projacted benefit obligation . 1,395 1,072 585
Fair value of plan assets ‘ 1,003 804 755
Funded status, surplus/{deficit) (389) (©68) (230
Experience (gains)/losses on plan liabilites ¥ 48 {49) 15
Experieﬁce gains/{losses) on plan assets 30 an o4

" This item consists of (gains)/losses In respect of liability experience only and excludes any changes In liabiliiss in
respect of changes to the actuarial assumptions used.

Defined Cantribution Penslon Plans

The Company also contributes to varous defined contribution pensions primadly In the United Kingdom. The
cordributions in these plans during 2006 and 2008 were USHESM and US$4OM respeciively,

25. Related Parly Transactions

The Company is wholly owned by Credit Sulsse Irvestment Holdings (LK), Incorporated in the UK, The ultimate parent
of ihe Company Is Credit Sulsse Group, which is incorparated in Switzerland,

The Group is involved in significant financing and other transactions, and has significant related party balances, with

subsidiaries and affiiates of Credit Suisse group. The Group genesally enters into these transactions in the ordinary
course of business and these transactions are on market terms that could be obtained from untefated parties.
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25, Related Party Transactions {(continued)

a) Related party assels and liabilities

Group Group
2006 2006
USHM USEM

Fallow Credit Fellow Credit
Suisse group Suisse group

Compenies Companies

; Assets

Cash and cash equivalents ' -8 1,913

Interest-bearing deposifs with banks : - 652
: Securiies purchased under resale agreements and securities borrowing
transactions ' ' 76,343 55,986
! . Trading assets 4,445 5,122
| Cther assets 7,326 8,075
| Total assels . 88,921 69,748

Liabiites . ‘

Depasits : 702 283

Securitles sold under repurchase agreaments and securitles lending

fransactions 35,139 26,996
; Trading liablities : ‘ 4,995 5,309
?‘ Short term homowings ' 66,868 55,391
; Long ferm debt 2,202 1,674
§ Other liabiltties : : 3,674 3,161
!
|

Total liabilities : 112,961 92,864
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25, Related Party Transactions (continued)
~ Company Company Company Company
i : 2006 2008 G065 2005
f; US$M LSS LIS$M US$M
| Subsidiary Fellow Credit Total  Fellow Credit
: Compenies ~  Suisse group Suisse group
; Companles Companies
: Assets
Cash and cash squivaients . .- 807 807 1,918
: Interest-baaring deposits with banks 899 599 652
Securitics purchased under tesale
| agreements and securities barrowing - 76,343 76,343 55,086
F Trading assets . - 4,445 4,445 6,122
i Other assets 5 7,326 7,331 8,075
! Total assets ' 704 88,921 89,625 69,748
| Liabilities
! Deposits - 702 702 283
Securities sold under repurchase agreements - 35,139 35,139 26,986
and securifies lending transactions
Trading liabilities - 4098 4,296 5,398
Short term borrowings ~ 66,858 66,868 55,391
: Long term debt - 2,202 2,282 1,674
Other Fabilities : - 3,674 3,674 3,151
Total labilities - 112,961 112,981 T 82,864
i . .
_ b) Related party off balance sheet fransactions
Group and Group and
Company Company
i 2006 2005
g UsHM LUsSSM
Foflow Credit  Feliow Credt
? : Suisse group  Suisse group
! ’ N Comparies Companies
| Off halance sheet items ,
| Guaranises : 15,200 3,487
| Dervatives notional amounts ' 311,287 185,288
| Receivables for securities purchased under resale agreements and securities .
. borrowing transactions ' . 45,665 34,718
Ohligations to retum securities soid under resale agreements and securifies
: lending transactions . : (82,409 (66,558)
|

Total _ ' : 289,604 156,934
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25, Related Parly Transactions (continued)

¢) Related party revenues and expenses

Greup and Group and
| _ Company Company
! 2006 2005
US$M USENM

{ ‘ Faliow Credit Fellow Credit
Suisse group Suisse group

; Interest income ‘ ' 2512 1,562

: Interest expanse (4109 (2,560

: Net interest income ‘ 7 {1,580) 1,007)

Net commissions and fees - 79 132

| Net trading revenues - -
Other charges : - (108) (&6}
Totat nor-interest revenues (26) 76
Total operating expenses (624) {626)
d) Remuneration

The Credit Suisse Group Infemational Share Plan provides for the grant of equiy based awards to employees based on
CSG shares pursuant to which employees of the Group may be granted share or ather equity-based awards as
compensation for senices . performed.  See Note 23 for further information on the Company's share-based

compensailon,
: Rermuneration of Directors ‘
Group and Group and
Company Company
2006 2006
i US$M USEM
Emcluments 1 8
Share based payment compensation 13 o
Cornpensation for loss of office ' - 1
Cornpany contributions to money purchase pension schemes 1 1
b1 19
Under [FRS the aggregate value of compsnsation provided in the accounts for 2006 for directors was US$08,054,855

(2006: USH47,085,783). '

Inclucied in the share based payment compensation for directors is US$430,620 (2005 US$1,240,028) relafing to
cash schemes,

The aggregate of emoluments and amounts receivable under shere basad payment compensaticn of the highest paid
diractor was US$E,469,104 (2006 US$3,439,851). He was a member of a money purchase penslon scheme and the
contribution paid during the year for the money purchase pension scheme was US$15,367 (2004: US$B50).
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| 95. Related Party Transactions {confinued}

Group and Group and
Company Company
; . Number of Number of
Directors Directors
: 2006 2005
| Retirement benefits are accruing to the follawing number of directors Lnder:
g Money purchase schemaes 4 7
; Cefined benafit schemes 3 1
; Bolh money purchase and defined benefit 1 4
} Total 8 12
The numbsr of directers who exercised share aptions 1 1
Diractors In respect of whom servicas were received or receivable under long term
‘. incentive schemes . . 9 13
% Remuneration of Key Management Personnel
i ' Group and Group and
Company Company
!i 2006 2005
F . : USEM USEM
' Emoluments - ar 17
| Amounts receivable under long temm incentive schermas - 262 131
Compensation for loss of office ' 2 -
: 291 148
Group contribulions to meney purchase pension schemes 1 4
R ) 292 152

Key Management Personnel include Executive Directors, the Europe, Middle East and Africa Investment Banking
Committec (EMEA') of Credit Sulsse group and slgnsﬂcant management responsible for Designated Investment
Business,

Where directars and key management personngt perform services for a number of companies within the Credit Sulsse
i group, the total emoluments payable to each director and key management employees have been apportioned to the
respective entities.

ey Loans arid advances to Directors and Key Management Personnet

There were no loans or advances made fo directors or key management personnel during the period (2005; $nif).

f) Liabilities due to pension funds

Liabilities due to own pension funds as at 31 December 2005 and 2005 of US$19,6M and US$15 4M respectively are
refiected in various liabilty accounts in the Group’s balance sheet.
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26. Employees

i The average number of persons employed during the year was as follows!

Group and Group and
Company Company
2006 2005
Nurmbar Number

Front office : 1,787 1,635
Back otfice 3,202 3,180
' 4,989 4815

| The Graup recelves a range of administrative services from related companies, The headcount related to these services
! cannol be accurately ascertained and Is not thersfare included in the above numbers,
|

27. Derivetives and Hedging Activities

Dervatives are generally either privately negotialed OTC contracts or standard contracts transacted through regulated
sxchanges. The Group’s most frequenty used freestanding derivative products, entered into for trading and sk
management purposes, include Imerest rate, cross cutrency and credit default swaps, interest rate and foreign currency
options, foreign exchange forward cortracts, equity swaps and foreign currency and interest rate futures.

The Group enters into dervative contracts that fall into one of the following categories:

* Trading activilies;
» A risk management transaction that does not qualify as & hedge under acceunting standards (referred to as
" an economic hedga);
+ A hedge of the Tair value of 2 recagnised asset or Sabiliy;
*» A hadge of The variability of cash flows to be received or paid related 1o a recognised asset or liability or a
forecasted trangaction; or
» A hadge of a net invastment In 2 foreign operation.

Trading Actiuitia;

The Group is active in most of the principal frading markels and iransacts in many popular trading and hedging
products. As noted above, this includes the use of swaps, futures, options and structured products (custom transactions
using combinations of derivatives) in connection with its sales and trading activities. Trading activifies include market-
maling, positioning and arbitrage activities. The majority of the Group's derivatives heid as at 31 December 2008 were
used for trading activilies, :

J
|
>
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27. Derivatives and Hedging Activities {continued)

Cash Flow Hedgas

The Group uses dervatives to hedge the cash flows associated with forecasied transactions. The maximum length of
time over which the Group hedges its exposure fo the varizbility in future cash flows for forecasted fransaétions is 16
monihs, with the excaption of those forecasted transactions refated to the payment of variakle nferest on existing
financial Instruments. The following table sets forth details of cash flow hedges:

Group and Group and

Carnparny Company

2006 2005

LISEM USEM

Fair value of open derivative transactions used as cash flow hedges 2 (18

Net Investment Hedges

The Group typically uses forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge selected net investments In fereign operations.
The objective of these hedging lransactions Is to protect against adverse movemnents in foreign exchange rates.

The fair value of open derivative transactions used as net Investment hedges for the Group and Company as at 31
Drecember 2008 was an assel of USE2M (2005: USHEM liability).
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27. Derivatives and Hedging Acti\_aities. (continued)
The following table sets forth details of trading and hedging derivatives instruments:
Group and Company Group and Company
31 Decamber 2006 Trading . Hedging
Notional Positive Negative * Nofional Positive Nagative
amount replacement replacement amount replacerment replacement
vake value _ value value
LUS$M USSM USEM USEM USEM USHM
Forward rale agreements 4,200 b5 34 - - -
Swaps . 301,777 3,609 3510 - - -
Options bought and soid {OTC) 80,344 649 401 - - -
Futures 104,187 - - - - -
Gptions bought and sold (iraded) 808,249 134 285 - - -
Interest rate products 1,307,766 4,447 4,330 . - - w
Forward rale agreements 182,348 3,080 2,725 511 5 1
Swaps ‘ 22124 1,046 511 - -
Futures ’ 1,037 - -
Options bought and sald (OTC} 45,820 635 616 - - -
Foreign Exchange Products 252,326 4,761 3,852 511 5 1
Fonward rate agreements 1,263 20 1 - - -
Optiens houghit and sold {OTC) 19,646 24 1,224 C- - -
Swaps ' 80,212 2916 3,486 - - -
Fulures 5,720 - - - - -
Qptions beught and seld {raded) 1,823 564 - - - -
Equity/indexed-related 88,8670 3,524 4,711 . i - - -
products . _ - '
Credit Swaps 13,946 89 132 - - -
Qther praducts 13,246 ag 132 “ - -
1

Total derivative instruments 1,662,708 12,821 13,125 511 35
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47, Derivatives and Hedging Activities {continued)

The fallowing table sets forth details of trading and hedging darivatives instruments:

Group and Company Group and Company

31 December 2005 Trading Hadging
Noticnal Positive Negative Netional Positive Negative
amount replacement  replacement amount replacement replacement
value value value value
US$M USHM US$HM UssM 1 US$M USHM
Forward rate agreements 2,194 i2 23 - - -
Swaps 142,966 3,303 2,662 - - -
Options bought and sold (CTC) 10,705 25 19 - - -
Futures 54,335 - - - - _
Optiens bought and sold (fradad) 367,680 73 89 - - -
Imterest rate products 577,170 3413 2,773 - . -
Forward rate agreemanis 83,587 2,850 2,747 323 1 o3
Swaps 18,632 2,097 1,810 - - -
Qpiions bought and sold (OTC) 104,399 847 802 - -
Foreign Exchange Products 212,618 5,794 5,459 323 23
Forward rate agreements 524 3 3 - - -
Options baught and sold (OTC) 237,197 . 4 769 - - -
Swaps 41,209 1,768 4,708 - - -
Futures 3,604 - - - - -
Options bought and sold (iraded) 615 - 1 - - -
Equity/indexed-related 233,239 1,765 5,479 - - -

products '

Cradit Swaps 10,412 T4 52 - - -
Other products 10,412 74 52 - - .
Total derlvative instruments 1,083.438 11,046 13,763 323 1 23

Group and Company

2008

Positive Nagative
replacement replacement

value value

USEM {JSsM

Replacement values {trading) before netting - 12,821 13,125
Replacemeni values {trading} after netting . 12,821 13,125
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Group and Company

2005

Positive Negative
replacemend replacement
valus value
USHv USEM

11,046 13,763
11,048 13,763
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27. Derivatives and Hedging Activities (continued)

The following tables set forth detalls of trading and hedging detivative corttracts according to maturity:

Gross posilive replacement value Group and

Company
Remaining fife 2008 |
<lyear 1-Byears >bEyecars Total
. USHM USEM US$M US$M
interest rate instruments 916 " 1,415 2,116 2,447
Foreign exchange 2,547 1,470 749 4,766
i Equities/indices . 2,698 775 51 3,524
} " Other o 5 71 13 89
' Total 8,168 3,731 2,829 12,896

] : : Gross negative replacerment value Group and

i Company
Remaining lite : 2006

<lysar  1-Byears  »5yoars Total

Usm US$M USEM UsHM

Intevest rate instruments : 766 1,786 2,978 4,330

Foralgn exchange 2,395 1,122 436 - 3,053

Eguities/indices - 3,388 1.291 52 4,71

Qther : 47 72 13 - 132

Total 6,578 3,771 2779 13,126

Gross positive replacement valug Greup and

Company

“ Remaining life 2005

i . . <tyear 1-5years >Bysas Total

*‘ UsEM US$M US$ US5M

; Interest rate insfruments ' 2i8 1,180 2,017 2,413

1 Foreign exchange _ 2,829 2,536 430 5,795
: Equittes/indices - : 143 1,601 21 1,763

{ Ofher ' - 74 - 74

| Total ] 3,188 5,391 2,488 11,047

I

Gross negative replacement value  Group ang

Carnpany
i Remaining life - 2005
" <lyear = {-Byears >Byears Total
| US$M USPM . USBM __ USIM

Interest rate Instrurnents 175 1,040 1,688 2,773

Forelgn exchange ) | ‘ 2,733 2,200 549 5,482

Equities/indices 3,487 1,968 24 5,479

Other ' 52 - - 52

Total : 6,447 5,208 2,13 13,786
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28. Guarantees and Cornmitments

* The following tables set forth detatts of contingent liabilities associated with guaraniees:

Group and Company
31 Decemnber 2006 Maturity  Maturiyy  Matuily  Maturity Totalgross  Tolelnet  Collateral  Canying
<iyear 1-3ycars J-Byears >Dyears  amount  amounto received value
US$M USEM USEM US3M USEM Us$m USHM USHm
Total guarantees 12,176 22,281 2,509 4,893 41,858 41,858 - 41,858

Group and Compariy
31 Decernber 2005 Matuity  Maturity  Maturty  Matudty Total gross Totalnet  Collateral  Carrying

<lyear t-3ysars 3-Byears >Dyears  mmount  amountm received value
USgM  Us$M  LSSM  USEM  USSM Ussm USHM USIM

Total guarantees 8,423 540 - 30 8,983 8,993 - 8,993

(1) fotal net amount relates to gross ameunt fees any sub-pericpalions.

All of the above nolionals relate to derivalives disclosed as guamntees, These are issued in the orglnary course of business,
generally In the form of wiitien put options and credit default swaps. For derivative contracts executed with counterparties
which generally act as financial intermediarics, such as investment banks, hedge funds and security dealsrs, the Group has
concluded that there is no basis on which to assume that these counterparties hald the underlying instruments related 1o
the derivative contracts, and therefore does not report such contracts as guarantees.

The Group manages its exposure to these derivatives by engaging In varlous hedging strategies. For some contracts, such
as wiitten interest rate caps or forsign exchange optiohs, the maximunm payout is not determinable, as interest rates or
exchange rates could theoretlcally rise without limit. For these contracts, notionatl amounits are disclosed in the table above
in order {6 provide an indicadion of the underying exposure. In addition, the Group carries &ll desivatives at fair value in the
balance sheet. :

Commitments

In the ordinary course of business, the Group and Company enter into contraclual commitments involving financial
instruments with off balance sheet dsk. These financial instruments include financial guarantses, interest rate swaps,
Interest rate caps and floors written, forwards and futures contracts, options contracts writtsn, currency swaps and cumency
options. .

The Company has granted to Morgan Gharaniy Trust Company of New York a fixed charge over all American Dapasitory
Receipts ('ADR's) held by that company on behalf of the Company, and over all righis, cleims and interests in the relevant
underlying securilles. At 31 December 2006 the Company held ADRs to the value of USE1,612.6M (2005: USHT03.9M).

The Company has granted to Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New York, as operator of the Euroclear System, a
charge over cash and securiiies held in the account of the Company at Euroclear. At 31 December 2006 the Company had
open trades of US$774.3M with Euroclear (R006: US$1,876.4M).

The Compary has granted to Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New York a first fixed charge over all sums standing to
the cradit of ihe collateral accounts in the name of the Company together with all rights actual or contingent in respect
thereof. At 31 Decamber 2008 the Company held no uncollateralisad positiens with Euraclear (2005: US$nil).

The Company has granted to HSBC Bank Pic a first fixed charge over all sums recelvable by the Company in respect of any
transfer or debit of stock or other secuiities and a first floating charge over the tile and interest In the stock and securities
in connection with the provision of CGC Setflement Bank facilities. At 31 December 2006 the Company had no open
{rades with HSBC Bank Fl; (2005: US$15.7M).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2006

28. Guarantees and Commitments {cantinued)

The Company has granted a pledge of securities and claims to 4 syndicale of banks whose fead bank is Citibank. This
pledge Is for all present and future securities, bonds, notes, certificates of deposits, Instruments or rights representing
property rights or claims as well as &l other debentures which may be plecged in the same form as securities, according to
Luxsmbourg Law. At 31 December 2006 the Company had open trades of US$3,193.9M with Citibank {(2005:
US$H2,293.4M).

The Gompany has granted a first fixed charge to HSBC Bank Plc as Settlement Bank over certain receivables in respect of
the Company’s membership of OREST, and & first floating charge over all eligible stock and other sums due to the
Company against failure of the Company to meet its abligations under the Settlement Bank Facility agresment with ES8C
Bank Plc. At 31 Decamber 2008 the Company had apen trades of USH1,114.90 with CREST (2005; US$E15.8M),

The Company has granted to The Bank of New York a charge over all sscurifies held, in the Company's account with Bank
of New York, s security for payment and dischargs of secured obiigations. At 31 December 2006 the Company had no
llabilities payable to Bank of New York (2005: US$nil).

The Company has granted o Emerging Maskels Clearing Corporation Assets (EMCC) a charge over all assets and properly
including all securities and cash on deposit with EMCC as security over any and all chligations and liabilites of the Company
to the chargee. No open irades were held by the Company with EMCC at 31 December 2006 (2005: US$nil).

The Company had underwiiting commilments of US$2,635M at 31 Decembar 2006 (2008: US$2,371M).

Lease Commitments

The fallowing table sets forth details of future minimum operating lease commitments under nor-canceliable operating

leases:
: Group and Group and
Company Company
A6 2005

USEM - LSEM
Upte 1 year 40 a4
From 1 vearts 2 years 40 ‘ as
From 2 years to 3 years ‘ . 38 37
From 3 years fo 4 years , 35 33
" From & years and over : 1,918 1,689
Future operating lease commitmsnts : 2,070 1,806
Less minimum non-cancellable sublease rantals B3 (88)
Total net future minimum lease commitments 1,977 1,718
" The following table sets forth detalls of rental expenses for alt operating leases: )

Group and Group and
Company Company
2006 2005
: US$HM USSM
Minimum rentals- 46 41
Sublease rantal income (18} {12
Total net rantal expenses ' 28 29
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2006

28. Guarantzes and Commitments (continued)

Other Commitments

The following table seis forth dotails of other commitments:

Group and Group and
Company Company
006 2006
UsSsM USEM

Forward reverse repurchase agreements: ‘
Maturity <1 year 2,288 2,096
Total other commitments . 2,788 2,096

Collateral received

Farward reverse repurchase agreements reprasent fransactions in which the initial cash oxchange of tha reverse repurchase
transaction takes place an a specified future date,

29, Securitisations and Special Purpose Entities

The Group s involved in the formation of SPEs primanly for the purpose of providing clients with structured Invesiment
opportunities, asset securitisation transactions and for buying or sefling credit protecion. The Group only consolidates
SPEs when the substance of the relationship between the Group and the SPE indicates that the SPE is conirolled by the
Group. Consideration Is given to the Group's ability fo control the activities of the SPE and the Group's exposure to the
risks and benefits of the SPE.

The aggregate balance sheet value In refation to consolidaled SPEs is shown below.

2008 2006
US$M USHM
Assets '
| Cash and due from banks 10 -
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss ‘ 158 -
Qlherassets . : 599 -
Total assets . 868 -
Liabliities ) i
Short term borrowings . 695 -
Financial lizbifities designated at fair value through profit or loss &
Qther liabilities . 5 -
" Total llabllities 710 -
Shareholders’ equity
Called-up shate capital : 155 -
Retained earnings 3
Total shareholders’ equity ' 158 - -
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ' 868 -

The short term borrowings relate to funds received from the Company. The Company's depostt Is reporied in ‘Interest-
‘bearing deposits with banks'. '
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30. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following table details the fair value of financial instruments for which it is practicable 1o estimate that value, whether ar
not this is reported in the Group's financial statements. All non-financial instruments such as lease transacticns, fixed
assets and pension and benedlt obligations are excluded.

Quoted market prices, when available, are used as the measure of fair valise. In cases where qucted market prices are not
available, fair values are defermined using present value estimates or ofher valuation techniques, for example, the present
valug of estimated expacted future cash flows using discount ratss commensurate with the risks involved, option-pricing
models, matrix pricing, option-adjusted spread medels, and fundamerrtal analysis. Fair velue sstimation technigues nomally
incorporate assumptions that merket paricipants would use in their estimales of values, future revenues, and future
expenses, including assumptions about interest rates, default, prepayment and volalilly, Because assumptlons are
inherently subjective In nature, e estimated fair valuss cannot be substartiated by comparison to independent market
‘ guotes and, in many cases, the esti mated Tair values would not necessarly be realised in an immediate sale or setflement of
5 the instrument,

For cash and other liquid asscts and money market pepers maturing within three monlhs, the fair value Is assumed to
approximate to hook value, given tha shor term nature of these instruments. For those items with a stated maturity
. exceeding three months, falr value is calculated using a discounted cash flow analysis.

Fer non-impaired loans where quoted market prices are avaliable, the fair value is based on such prices. For variable rale
' loans which are repriced within three months, the book value is used as a reasonable estimate of fair value. For other non-
| Impaired loans, tha fair value Is estimated by discounting contractusl cash flows using the market interest rates for loans .
] ! with similar characteristics, For impaired loans, the book value, net of valuation adjustments,. approximates 1o fair value,
i The securities trading portfalio is carled on the balance shest at fair value.

!

|

|

|

1

|

1

The fair values of positive replacement velues of derivative instumenls, negative replacement velues of derivative
instruments and financial investments from the banking business are based on quated market prices. Where these are not
available, fair values are based on the quoted market prices of comparable nstruments, or are estimated by discounting
estimated future cash flows or using other valuation techniques.

For deposit instrumertts with no stated maturity and thoss with original matusities of less than three months, the bock value
iss assurned to approximate falr value due 1o the short term nature of these liabliiiles. For deposit instrumenis with a slated
miturtty exceoding three months, fair value Js calculated using a discounted cash flow analysis.

i For medium term notes and bonds, fair values are estimated using quoted market pricas or by discounling the mmaining
contractual cash flows using a rate at which the Group could issue debt with a similar remeining maturity as at the balance
‘ sheet dale.
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NOTES 7O THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED

Group Group
2006 2008
Book vaiug  Fair value Baaok Value  Fair Vaiue
US$M USEM US$M US$HM
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalenis 4,737 4,737 3897 3,807
Interest-bearing deposits with banks 20 20 €85 455
Securities purchased under resale agresments and )
securities borrowing transacllons 104,146 194,133 195,997 156,023
Trading assets 71,334 - 71,334 59,262 59,362
Financial assels held at fair value through profit and loss 2,067 2,057 790 790
Loans . - - 15 15
Other investments g g g 9
Total assets D7R2,803 272,280 220,725 220,751
Linhilities
Deposits 1,838 1,839 1,042 1,042
Securities sald under rapurchase agreements and ' .
securitles lending transactions 160,554 150,699 122.68G 122,583
Trading lizbilities 62,181 B52,131 45,329 46,329
Financial fiabiities held at fair valus through profit and foss 4,760 4,760 284 284
Shoit term borrowings 66,868 66,868 56,393 £5,393
Long bem debt 2,200 2,202 " 1,674 1,674
Total liahilities 278,544 278519 207,281 297,305
Company Compary
) 2006 ) 2005
Book value  Fair valug Book Value  Falr Value
USHM - USHM . US3M USSM
Firancial Assets .
Cash and cash equivalents 4,727 4,727 3,807 3,807
Intarest-bearing deposlis with banks 719 718. 655 685
Securittes purchased under resale agresments and 194,146 194,133 1560887 166,023
Trading assets 71,884 71,334 50,362 59,362
Financiat assets held at fair value through profit and loss 1,508 1,808 780 700
{_oans ' - - 6 16
Oiher investments 9 9 g g
Total assets oro.00a  2T2E20 220,736 220,791
Liabliities
Deposits ’ 1,830 1,939 1,042 1,042
Seacuriies sold under repurchase agreements and 150,654 180,609 ‘ 122,659 122,683
Trading liabifities 52,181 52,131 46,908 46,329
Financial liabilities held at fair value through profit and loss 4,754 4,754 284 234
Shart term borrowlngs 66,866 66,865 55,393 55,393
Long term debt 2,200 2,292 1,674 1,674
Total iiabilites ToTepas gregid OB T A

For the year ended 31 December 2006, the ameunt recognised in the Group and Company profit or loss for financial
instrumenis estimated using a valuation technique and entity specific inputs was a loss of US$14M (2008: US$34M gain).
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31. Assets Pledged or Assigned

: The following table sets forth detalls of assets pledged or assigned:

: Group and Group and
: Company Compaty
2008 2008
: USEM USs
l‘ Book value of agsets pledged and assigned as coliateral 39,889 30,366
' of which assets provided with the right to sell or repledge 35,785 95,460

Fair value of collateral received with the right to ssll or repledge 266,004 208,720

of which sold or repledged . 240,319 184,081

As at 31 Dacember 2006 and 2008, collateral was received In conngclion with resale agreements, secutities borrowings
and loans, dervative transactions and margined broker loans, As at these dates, a substantlal portion of the coffatersl
received by the Group had been sold or repledged in connection with repurchase agreements, securities sold, not yet
purchased, securities borowings and loans, pledges fo clearing organisations, segregation requirement under securities
laws and regulations, derivative transactions and bank loans.

UK banking cash reserves, consisting of client maney, held by the Group and Company were US$1,898M as at 81
December 2006 {2008: US$H1,191M). This cash is not reflectsd on the Balance Sheet of the Group and Company.

i
1
I
I
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2006

32. Financiat Instruments Risk Position

a, Ovenview

The Credit Sulsse group, of which the Company is a part, manages its risks under globa! pelicies. The Credit Suisse group
risk rmanagement process is designed to cnsure that there are sufficient controls fo measure, manitor and control risks in
accordance with Credit Sulsse group's control framework and in consideration of industry best practices. The primary
responsibility for risk management lies with Credit Suisse group's senior business line managers. They are held
accountable for all risks associated with their businesses, including counterparty risk, market dsk, liquidity risk, operational
risk, Yegal risk and reputational risk.

Risk management principles

The prudent taking of risk is fundamental to ihe business of the Credit Suisse group. The primary abjectives of rsk
management are o pratect the financial strangth and the replsation of the group, while looking o ensure that capital is well
deployed 1o maximise income and shareholder value. The Credit Suisse group's risk management framework is based on

_ the following principles, which apply universally across all busingsses and risk iypes.

* Protection of financial strength: Credit Suisse group contrals sk in order to mit the Impact of patentially adverse
svents on Credit Sulsse group's capital and income. The Credit Suisse group's risk appetite is fo ba consistent with its
financial resowrces,

«  Protection of reputation: The value af ihe Crecit Suisse group franchise depencs on the reputation, Protecting a strong
reputation is both fundamental and an ovemiding concem for all staff members.

» Risk ransparency: Risk transparency is essenfial so that risks are well undarstood by serior management and

members of the CSG Board of Directors and can be balanced against business gosls.

e Managemeni accountabilty: The Group is organised into business segments that own the camprchensive risks
assumed through their eperafions. Management for sach segment is responsible for the ongoing management of their
respective risk exposures and earning a sufficient long term return for the risks taken.

¢ Independent oversight: Risk management is a structured process 1o identify, measure, monttar and report risk. The risk
menagement and legal and vompliancs functions operats independently of the front office to ensure the Integrity of the
Group's cormtrof processes, The risk management furictions are respanstble for implemanting all relevant risk policies,
developing tools to assist senior management fo determine risk appetite and assessing the overall risk profile of the
Group.
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32. Financial Instruments Risk Position (continued)

Risk management oversight

Risk management oversight is performed at seversl Ie\rels of the organisation. Key responsibliities lie with the followlng
management bodies and committess.

Risk management gversight at the Credit Suisse group rmanagement level

Credit Suisse Executive Management (Chief Fxecutive Officer and Executive Boards): Responsible for implementing
the strategy and actively managing its portfolio of businesses and its risk profile to ensure that risk and retum are
balanced and appropriate for current market conditions.

Cradit Suisse Chief Risk Officer (CRO): Responsible for establishing en organisaficnal basis to manage al risk
management matiers of Credit Suisse Group through the four primary risk functions Independent from the front office
(SRM, RMM, CRM, BORQ), as defined below,

Strategic Risk Managament ('SRM%: SRM is responsible for assessing the overall risk profile both on a Credit Suisse
group-wide, portfolio lave! and for individual businesses, and recommending corrective action where necassary.

Risk Measursment and Management ('RMM"): RMM is responstble for the measurement and reporting of cradit risk,
market risk, operalional rlsk end economic risk capital data, managing sk Jimits, and establishing poiicies on market
risk and sconomic risk capital.

Credit Risk Management (\CRM"): CRM is headed. by the Chief Credit Officer (‘CCO"} with responsibillty for approving
credit limits, menitoring and managing individual exposures and assessing and managing the quality of the segment
and business area's credit portfolics and allowances.

Bank Operational Risk Oversight (BORO"): BORO s responssb[e for oversight of the Credit Suisse group's operational
fisk, including governanca and policy aspecis, development and reporting of key risk indicators as well as operational
risk capital management and allocation.

Cradit Suisse risk management commilless

Capltal Allocation and Risk Management Cammittes (CARMC') is responsible for supenising and directing the Credit
Suisse group risk profile on a consolidated basis, recommending risk limits to the CSE Board of Directors and s Risk
Committee and far establishing ard allocating risk mits within Credit Suisse group. CARMC meetings focus on the
following three topics on a rotaling basis: Asset and Liabllty Management, Posttion Risk for Market and Credit Risk,
and Operationa! Risk,
Risk Processes and Standards Committee ('RPSC') is responsible for establishing and approving standards regarding
risk management and risk measurament, including methodology and parameters.
Credit Portfolio & Provisions Review Committes s responsible for reviewing the quality of the credit portfolio, with &
focus on the developmant of impaired assets and the assessment of refated provisions and valuation afiowances.
Reputational Risk Review Commiftee is responshble for seffing the golicy and reviewing processes regarding
reputational risks within Credit Suisse group.
Divisional Risk Management Committees ('RMC'y: Within the invastment bankmg, private banking and asset
management segments of Credit Suisse group, the respective divisional RMCs are established to manage rigk on
divisional basis. :
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32, Financial Instruments Rigk Position (continued)

Risk Hmits

A sound system of sk limils is fundamental to efficient contro! of the range of risks inherent in the business activities. The
size of the limils reflects Credft Sulsse group's risk appelite given the market envirenmant, the business strategy and the
financial respurces auallable to absorb losses.

Credit Suisse group uses an Economic Risk Capital (ERCY) fimit structure to limit overall posiion risk~taking, The level of
risk incurred by the segments 's further restricted by a varisty of specific limits. For example, there are consolidated controls

" over trading exposures {Value at Risk or 'VaR'"), the mismatch of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing labifities,
nrivate equity and sesd money investments, and emerging market country exposures. Risk fimits are allocated to lower
organisational levels within the businesses. Numerous other limits are established. to control specific risks, including a
system of individual counterparty credit limits that is used fo control concentratien risks,

b. Economic risk capiial

Economic risk capital reprasents cument market best practice for measuring and reporiing all quantifiable risks. It is called
"gconomic” risk capital because it measures risk in terms of economic realities rather than regulatery or actounting rues.
Credit Suisse group uses ERC as a consistent and comprehensive risk management tocl for risk managemend, capltal
menagement and planning and performance measurement.

ERC is calculated separately for pesiiion risk, operational risk and expense risk, These three tisk categorles measure very

different fypes of risk! : :

® Position risk ERC - the leved of unexpacted lass in economic valus on tha portfolio of postiions cver a ane-year horizon
that is exceeded with a given, small probability (1% for risk management purpases; 0.03% for capital management
purposes). .

. e Operational hsk ERC - the leve! of loss resulting from inadequate or falled Internal processes, people and systems or
: from external events over a one-year horizen that is exceedad with a smalt probabliity {0.08%). Estimating this type of
. ERC is 'nherently mare subjective, and reflects bath guentitative tools as well as senior management judgement,

e Expense risk ERC - the difference beiween expanses and revenues In a severs market event, exclusive of the
elements captured by position risk ERC and operational rsk ERC,

. Market risk

Overview

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, equity prices,
commadity prices and other relevant market parameters, such as market volatilllies. The Credit Suisse group defines its
market sisk zs potential’ changes in fair values of financial instruments in response to market movements. A fypical
transaction may be exposed to a number of different market risks, .

Credit Suisse group devotes considerable resources to ensuring that market risk is comprehensively captured, accurately
redelted and reported, and effectively managed. Trading and non-trading portfolios are managed at various organisational
levels, from Credit Suisse group down to specific business areas, Credit Suissa group uses market risk measurement and
‘management methods designed to mest or exceed industry standards. These include both general fools capable of
calculating comparable exposures across Credit Suisse group's many activities a5 well as focused tools that can specifically
model unique characteristics of certain business areas’ functions. The iocls are used for intemnal rarket risk management,
internal market risk reporting and extemal disclosure purposes. The principal measursment melhodolegies are VaR and
scenario enalysis. Addiionally, the market risk exposures are also reflected In Cradit Suisse group's ERC calculations
desaribed above in the section enfitled Economic Risk Capital. The risk management techniques and policies are regularly
reviewed to ensure that they remain appropriate.
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32, Financig! Instrurnents Risk Position (continued)

Value-atRisk

VaR measures the potential loss in terms of fair value changes over a given time interval under nomal market conditions at
a given cenfidence level. VaR as a concept is applicable for all financial risk types with valid reqular price histories. Positions
are aggregated by risk type raiher than by product. For example, interest rato risk includes risk arising from money market
and swap transactions, bonds, and interest rate, foreign exchange, equity and commodity aptions, The use of VaR allows
tha comparison of risk in different businessas, such as fixed income and equity, and also provides a means of aggregating
and netting a varety of positions within a porifolic to reflect actual corrslations and offsets betwaen different assets,

Mistorical financial market rates and prices sewe as & basis for the statistical VaR model underlying the potential loss
estimation, Credit Sulsse group uses a ten-day holding pericd and a confidence level of 88% calculated using, in general, a
roling bwo-year history of market data to modal the risk In fts frading porifolios. These assumptions are in agreement with
the standards published by the Basel Committes en Banking Supenvision and other related intemational standards for
market risk management. For some purposes, such as backtesting, disclosure and benchmarking with competitors, the
restlfing VaR figures are scafsd down or calcutated using one-tay holding period values,

The Company has approval from the Financial Senvices Authority to use its VaR model in the calculation of trading book

cepital requirements. The Company continues o recalva. regulafory approval for ongoing enhancements to the
methodology, and the model is subject 1o regular reviews by regufators.

Assumotions

Credit Suisse group uses a historical simulation modsl for the majerity of risk types and businesses within s trading
portfolios. Where insufficient data Is available for such an approach, an exirems move methedology Is Used. The model is
based on the profit and loss distribulion resulting from the historical changes of market rates applicd to evaluate the
portfolio Using, in general, a rolling two-year history. This methodelogy also avoids any explicit assumptions on cemelation

* between risk faclors. The VaR medel uses assumptions and estimates that Credit Suisse group believes are reasonable,

but different assumptions or estimates could resulf in difierent estimates of VaR,
Limitafions

VaR as a risk measure quantifies the potential Joss on a portfolio under normal market conditions only. It is not intended to
cover losses associated wilh unustally severe market movements {these are intended o be covered by scenario analysis).
VaR also assurmes that the price data from the recent past can be used to pradict future svents. If futtre markst conditions
differ substantially from past markst conditions, than the risk predicted by VaR may be oo conservative or too liberal.

Scenario analysis

Credit Suisse group regularly performs scenarfo analysis for all of its business areas exposed to market risk to esilmate the
potential econamic loss that could arise from extrerne, but plausible, stress events, The scenario analysis calculations
pariormad are specifically tallored towards their respective risk profile, In addition, to identify areas of risk concentration and
potential vulnerabilify to stress cvents across Credit Suisse group, it has developed a set of scenaros, which are
consistently applied across all business argas. Key scenarios include significant movements in interest vates, equity prices
and exchange rates, as well as adverse changes in counterparty defauft rates. The scenario analysis framework also
considers the fmpact of various scenarios on key capital adequacy measures such as regulatory capital and economic
capital ratios. The CSG Board of Directors and senior managsment are regulary provided with scenaria analysis estimates,
scenario analysis trend information and supporting explanations te create transparancy on key risk exposures and to support
senior management in managing risk.
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32, Financlal Instruments Risk Position (continued)

] Assurnptions

' Scenario analysis estimates the impact that could arise from extreme, but plausible, stress events by applying predefined
scenarios o e relevant portialios. Scenarios are typically defined in light of past economic or financial market stress
pariods, but statistical analysls is also used to define the less severs scenarios in the framewaork,

imitations

Scenario analysis estimates the loss that could asise If specific events in the ecenomy or in financial markets were fo occur,
Past svents seldom repeat themselves In exaclly the same way. Therefore, it is necessary to use business expefience to
chovse a set of meaningfut scenarios and o assess the scenario results in light of cument economic and market conditions,

Trading porifolios '

; Risk a) ement

| - For the purposes of this disclosure, VaR is uscd for the trading portfelio, which includes these financial instrumenis treated
: as part of the “trading bool for Bank for Intemational Sctiiernents regulatory capital purposes. This classification of assets
as trading is done for the purpese of analysing our market risk expasure, not for financial statement purposes.

ment of radin fisk:

The table below shows the trading-related market risk exposure for the Compary, as meesured by scaled one-day, 99%

VaR, VaR estimates are compuled separalely for sach dsk iype and Jor the whole portfolio using the historical simulation

! methodology. Diversification benefit reflects the net difference between the sum of the 93th percentile loss for each
. indivicual risk type and for the total portfolio.

i The Company's me-day, 89% VaR at 31 December 2006 was US$H4S milion, compared to US$3S milion at 24
1 Decembar 2008, ' , :

Market Risk in Credit Sulsse Securifies {Eurape) Ltd Company Trading Partolios {1-day, 39% Velue at Risl) R

In US$M Min.  Max. Average 20.12.2008 Mire. Max. Average 30.12.2005
Inmerest rate & credit spread M3 3.7 18.0 18.4 92 238 16.0 12,1
Foreign exchange 2.2 DbB5 8.0 8.9 16 11.7 6.2 2.7
Equity o 16.7 466 26.8 32,8 50 218 10.9 215
Cormmodity - 3.8 1.5 0.5 - 14 - 02 -
Diversification Benefit A T (119 {13.7) 2 2 (104 . (78
Tatal 264 866 41.4 44.9 125 368 21.9 38.5

: 1) . All figures ebove represent ten-day VaR scaled to a ans-day kolding petlod.
; 2)  Asihe miimum and madmum occur on different days for different risk types, it is not moaningful ko caleulate a porlfolio diversification benefit.
1 .
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392. Financial Instruments Risk Position (continued)

~ VMaR results and distribution of treding revenues

Various techniques are used to assess the accuracy of the VaR model used for its trading parlfolios, including backiesting,
Backtesting of the trading porifolio is performed at various organisational levels, from Credit Sulsse group overall down to
more specific business areas. The backiesting process compares dally backiesting profit and loss 1o VaR calculated using
a one-day helding period. Backtesting profit and loss is 2 subset of actual trading revenue and includes only the profit and
loss effects due to financial market variables such as interast rates, equity prices, foreign exchange rates and commodity
prices on the previous night's positions. it sxcludes such items as fees, commissions, certain provisions and any trading
subsequent to the previous night's positions. It is appropriate to compare this measure with VaR for backlesting purposes,
since VaR assesses only the potential change in position value due to overnight movements in financial market variables.
An accurate one-day, 99% VaR model should have no mors than four backlesting exceplions per year. A backiesting
exception occurs when the daly loss exceeds the daily VaR estimate, The Company had thres backtesting exceptions in
2008.

Non-trading portfolios

Risk m: I

The market risks associated with the non-trading portfolios are measured, monitored and limited using several tools,
including ERC, scenario analysis, sensitivity analysis and VaR. For the purpose of this disclosure the aggregated market
risks associated with the non-irading portfolios of the Company are measured using sensitvity analysis, The sensitivity
analysis for the non-trading activities measures the amount of potential change i economic value, It is not a measure for
the potential impact on reported earnings, since the non-lrading activities gererally are not marked fo market through
earnings, Foreign exchange translation risks are nof included in the following analysis.

Development o Aradi jsks

Interest rate risk on non-trading positions is measured using sensitivity analysis that estimaies the palentiel changs in value
resuiting from a 50 basls point decrease in the interest rates of developed natlons znd a 200 basis point decrease in the
interest rates of emerging market natfons, The estimated impact for the Company would be an increase of approximately
US$4 mifiion a5 at 31 December 2006, This impact was immatedal as at 31 December 2006.

Fareign exchange risk on non-trading positions is measured using senstivity analysis that estimates the potential changs in
value resulling from a 10% strenglhening of the US dollar against developed nation curencies and a 20% strengthening of
the US dollar against emerging market nation currencies. The estimated Impact {or the Company would be a decrease of
approximately US$16 milion at 31 December 2006 compared to a decrease in the value of the non-trading portfolio of
approximately US$13 millon at 31 December 2005.

The Company does not have material equity or commodity risk in its non-trading portfolio,
4. Currency Risk
Currancy risk is the risk of loss resuliing fram changes Ih exchange rates.

Tradin

The Company takes on exposure 1o the effects of fluctuations in the prevalling foreign currency exchange rates on its
financial positforr and cash flows.

The Compary manages its cumency risk arising from their trading acliviiles with the Value at Risk (VaR) mathodology, a
discussion of which is comtained in section ¢} of this Note.
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32, Financial Instruments Risk Position {contirued)

DNon-Trading

The Group's reporting currency is US Dellars but s assets, liabilities, income and expenses are denominated in many
currencies. Reported profits or losses are exchanged monthly into US Dollars, reducing volaiility in the Group's earnings
from subsequent changes in exchange rates.

At 81 December 2006, the largest non-trading currency exposures against the US Dollar were m EUR (ong US$83M) and
GBP (shorl US$152M). At 31 Decamber 2005, |he largest expesures were in EUR (long US$29M) and GBP (short
US3427M).

e. Credit Risk

CRM is an independent function headed by the Chisf Credit Officer with respansibility for approving credit limits, monitoring
and managing individual exposures and assessing and managing the quality of the divisional and business areas’ credit
porlfolios. CRM repoits to the Chisl Risl Offlicer of the Credit Suisse group.

i} Definition of Cradit Risk

Credit dsk is the possibility of ioss incurred as a result of a borrower or counterparty failing to meet its financlal obligations.
fn the event of a default, a bank generally incurs a loss equal to the amount owed by the debtor, less any recoveries
resulting from foreclosure, liquidation of collateral or the restructuring of the debtor company.

Credit risk axists within lending products, commitments and letters of credit, and resulls from counterparly exposure arising
from darvativa, foreign exchange and other transactions.

i) Credit Risk Maragement Approach

Effective credit risk managementi is a structured process to assess, quantify, price, monitor and manage risk on a
consistent basis. This requires a carsful considaration of praposed extensions of credtt, the setting of specific kmits, dlligent
ongeing monitoring during the life of the exposure, active use of credit mitigation tools and = disciplined approach to
recognising credit Inmpalment.

This credit risk management framework is regularly refined and covers all banking business areas that are exposed o credit
tisk, The framework Is designed 1o cover all of the credit exposures in the bankidg business and comprises seven core
components;

an Individual counterparty and country rating system;

a transaction raling system; .

a counterparly cradit limit system;

country and regional concentration limits;

a risk-based pricing methadclogy;

active credit portfolic managemsni; and

a credit risk provisioning methodelogy.

*» & 5 & 0 a0

Credit committees and senior credit managers make credit decisions on a transaction-by-transaction basis, determined by
levels appropriste to the amoun! and complexity of the ransactions, and based on the overall exposures to counterparties
and their related enlilizs, These approval authonity levels are set out within the goveming princlples of the Credit Suisse

group.
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23. Financial Instruments Risk Positian (continued)

A system of individual credit limits is used to manage individual counterparty credit risk. Cther limits are also establishad lo
address concentration issues in the portfolio, including a comprehensive set of country and regional fimits and limits for
cartain products. Credit exposures fo Individual counterparties or industry segments or product groupings and adherence to
the related limits are monitored by credit officers, industry analysts and other relevant specialists, In addition, credt risk is
requiarly supswvised by credit and risk managemest commitiees taking current market conditions and trends analysis into
consideration. The Credit Sulsse group regulary analyses its Industry diversification and concentration in selected areas.

A rigorous credit quality review process has been established to provide an early identification of possible changes in the
creditworthiness of clients and includes regular asset and collateral quality reviews, business and financial statement
analysis and relevant sconomic and industry studies. Other key factors considered in the review process include current and
ptojected business and econormic conditions, historical experience, regulatory requiremonts and concentrations of credit
volume by industry, country, product and counterparty rating. Regularly updated walch-lists and review meetings are used
ior the Identifications of counterparties where adverse changes in crecibworthiness could eccur due o events such as
announced mergers, eamings weakriess and lawsults,

The review process culminates in a quarlerly determination of the appropriateness of allowances for credit losses. A
systematic provisloning methodelogy is used to identify potential credit risk refaled losses. [mpaired transactions are
classified as potential problem exposure, non-performing exposure, or non-interest earning exposure and the exposures are
generally managed within credit recovery units. The risk management and credit committess of the Credit Suisse group
delemmine the adequacy of allowances, taking info consideration whether the levels are sufficient for credit losses and
whether allowances can ke released or if they should he increased.

Credit Suisse Securlties (Eurape) Lid Unsecured Exposure by Counterparty Raling

Group and Company Group and Company
2008 2006 ‘
US$M % ‘ US$M %
AAA 2,686 36.4 2,464 350
Abct To AA- : 2,606 344 2,615 37.1
At to A- 2,045 27.0 1,208 18.4
BBB+ to BBB- ‘ 140 1.8 395 5.6
BB and balow+ to BB~ : 105 1.4 270 38"
7.682 7,043

The above fable includes all unsecured commiments, derivatives, sacurities purchased and sold under resale and
repurchase agreements, and short_term cash frades.

fiiy Risk mitigation

The Group actively manages fts credit exposure utifising credit hedges, cash and marketable securities for risk mitigation.
“Credit hedges” represent the notional exposurs that has been fransfemmad to other market counterparties, generally through
the use of credit default swaps. :
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23, Financial Instruments Risk Position (continued)

f. Cperational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulfing from inadequate or failed inlemal processes, people and systems or from
extomal events. Credit Suisse group's prmary aim is the eady identification, recording, assessment, monitoring, prevention
and mitigation of operational risks, as well as timely and meaningful management reporting. Where appropriate, Credit
Suisse group transfers aperational risks to third-party insurance companies.

Operational risk is inherent in most aspects of the Credit Suisse group’s acthvities and comgprises a farge number of
disparate risks, While market and credt risk are cften chesen for the prospect of gain, operational risk is normalfy accepied
as a necessary consequenca of doing business. In comparison fo market or credit risk, the sources of operational risk are
difficult to identity comprehensively and the amourt of risk is also Intrinsically difficult to measure. Credit Sulsse group
therefore manages operational risk differently from market and credit risk. The Credit Suisse group believes that effective
manegement of aperational risks requires & common bank-wide framawork with ownership rasiding with the management
tespansible for the relevant business process, In onder to accompiish this, the Credit Suisse group has established a
central team within the Chief Risk Officer division that focuses on the coordination of consistent policy, fools and practices
ihroughout Crecit Suisse group for the management, measurement, monitoring and reporting of relevant operational risks.
This team is also rasponsible for the overall operafional risk framework, meesurement methodology and capital
calculaflons, Knowledge and experience are sharad throughout the Credit Suisse group to maintsin a coordinated
appreach,

Within the Credit Suisse group, each individual business area and management lavel takes responsibility for #ts own
operational risks and provides adequate rescurces and procedures for the management of those risks. In addition, each
division takes responsibllity for its own operational risks and has a dedicated operaflonal risk function. Cperational risk Is
thus controlled through a network of cantrols, procedures, reparts and responsibilities. In addition to the quarterly firm-level
GARMC maetings covering operational risk, regular risk commitlees mest at the divisional level, where operational risk

exposures are discussed, with represerration from senior staff in all the relevant functions, Credit Suisse group ulilises a

number of firm-wide tools for the ranagement, measurement, manitoring and reporting of operational rigk. Thess include:
seff-assessments; the collection, reporiing and analysis of intemal and extemal loss data; and key risk indicator reporling,

Credit Suisse group has employed the same methodology fo calculate ERC for aperational risk since 2000, and plans fo
use a similar methodology for the Advanced Measurement Approach under the Base! It Accord. This methodology is based
upon the identification of a number of key risk scenarios that desaribe all of the major operational risks that the Credit
Suisse group Taces, Groups of senior staff redew each scenario and discuss the likelihood of occurmence and the potential
soverlty of logs. internal and external loss data, along with certain business envisonment and iniernal control factors (for
axample, self-assessment results, key risk indicatars} are considered as part of this process. Basad on the outpul from
these mestings, the Credit Suisse group enters the scenario probabilities and severities info an event model that generates
2 loss distribution. Insurance miligation Is included in the capital assessment where appropriate, by considering the level of
insurance coverage for each scenario, incorporating hairculs as appropriate, Based on the loss distribution, the level of
capital required to cover operational risk can then be calculated,
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37, Financial Instruments Risk Position (continuad)

g. Couniry Risk

Country risk is the risk of a substantial, systemic loss of value in the financial assets of a country ar graup of countries,
which may be caused by dislocations in the credit, equity, and/or currency markets. Credit Suisse’s major aperating

. divisions all assume courtry risk in a variety of ways. The setting of limits for this risk is the responsibility of CARMC based

on recommendations of CRM, SRM and Credit Suisse Group’s economists.

Country limits for emerging markets are approved annually by the Board of Directors of CSG, following recommendations
from CARMC. The meastirement of exposures against country fimits is undertaken by RMM with weekly reports to senior
management and monthly reports 1o CARMC. For trading pesitions, country fisk is a function of the mark-to-market
exposure and currancy of the position, while for leans and related facilities country risk is a function of the amount and
cumency that Credit Suisse group has lent or committed fo lend. The day-fo-cay management of courtdry expesure is
assigned to each of tho core businesses in accordance with its business authorizations and fimit allocations, RMM and
CRM provide independent oversight to ensure that the core businesses operate within their imils. CRM Is responsible for
periadically adjusting these limits o reflect changing credit fundamentals and business volumes.

h. Settlement Risk

Setllement risk arises whenever the seftlement of a trensaction results in fiming differences between the dishursement of
cash or securities and the receipt of countervalus from the counterparty, This sisk arises whenever transactions setile on a
“ree of payment’ basis and is especially relevant when aperating across ime zones,

Int those instances where market convention and/or products praciude a value-fer-valite exchange, the Group manages its
risk through confirmation and affimation of transaction details with counterparties. In addtion, it also proactively saeks to
manage the timing of settlement instructions o fts agents and the reconcitiation of incoming payments in order to reduce
the window of exposure; CRM considers thess factors in deciding counterparty risk limits.

i. Legal Risk

The Group faces significant legal risks In lis businesses. Legal risks include, amang other things, disputes over the terms
of #ades and other transactions in which the Group acls es principel; the unenforceabilily or inadequacy of the
documentation used to give effect to transactions in which the Group participates; ivestment sufabilily concesms;
compliance with 1he aws and regulations {including change in laws or regulations} ¢f the many countries in which the
Group does business; and disputes with fts employees. Sorme of these transactions or disputes result in potential or actual
ltigation that the Group must incur legal expenses to defend.”

The Group Is subject to extensive regutation in the conduct of its investment business. A failure to comply with appicable
regulations could result in regulatory invesligations, fines and restrictions on some of the Grolp's business activilles or
other sanctions. The Group sesks to minimise legal risk through the adoption of compliance and other policies and
procedures, continuing to refine controls over business practices and behaviour, employee tréining sessions, the use of
appropriate legal documentation, and the Involvement of the Legal and Complience department and outside legal counsel.
in addition, the Group is an active participant in 1SDA and olher professional derivative market forums, with specific facus
on Improving levels of derivalive markst and product standardisation, legal definition and protocol.
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jo Reputational Risk

Credit Suisse group's policy is tc aveid any aclian or transaction that brings with it a potentially unaccepiable level of risk fo
fts reputation. Reputational risk may arise from a variely of sousces, Including the nature or purpese of a proposed
fransaction, the identity or nature of a patential cllent, the regulatary or political climete in which the business will be
yransacted or significant public attertion sumounding the fransaction itself. Where the presence of these or other factors
gives fiss to potential reputational risk for Credit Suisse group, the relevant business proposal is required to be submitted to
Credit Suisse group's Reputational Risk Review Process. This invelves a vetting of the proposal by senior business
management, and ite subsequent referral 1o one of the Credit Suisse group's Reputational Risk Approvers, each of whom
Is independent of the business divisions and has authorify to approve, refect, or impose conditions on Credtt Suisse group's
participation, '

k. Liquidity Risk

The Global Treasury dspartment at Credit Suissa group manages the day-to-day liquidity position of Credii Suisse group.
Tha Group Is managed within the framework below.

Liguidity #s managed centrally to ensure that sufficlent funds are either on-hand of readily available at short notice in the
event that it experiences any Impalment of its ability to berrow in the unsscured debt markets. This ensures that, even in
the event of a liquidity dislocation, Credit Suisse group has sufficient funds to repay maturing llabilities without requiring any
balance sheet reduction, Credit Suisse group's liquidity discipfnes are segrepated inte two maln funding franchises:

1 Those funds reised ditectly by Credit Suisse and its branches, with access to stable deposit-based care funds and the
interbank markets, The Group has direct access to Credit Suisse group’s bank sourced funding-and therefore constitutes
part of ﬂ'ns ‘Bank Fundlng Franchise',

2 Those funds raised by fellow subsidiasies, particularly Credit Suisse (USA) Ine, the SEC registered US he[dmg company =
the ‘Non-Bank Funding Franchise’.

Secondary sources of liquidily ensure avallabillly of attemative funding te meet business plans and commercial
commitments. Both funding franchises have access to different forms of secondary liquidity through iheir ability to access
secured funding via repurchase and other secured financing markets. These markets have been shown to ba rellable even
in high stress conditions,

The Global Treasury department also oversees cosporate polley with respect to interest rate and foreign. exchange
exposure, as well as a mange of other important policy areas Including debt maturity profile, intermal and exiernal
capitalisation: and infercompany funding. Credit Suisse group manages interest rate and foreign currency expasures from a
corporate perspective. Trading divisions are authorised to take such risks as part of their business strategies, within limits
set by CARMC.

L Cash flow and Fair Value Interest Rate Risk

Cash flow intorest rata risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial Instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. Fair valug interest rate risk 1s the risk that the value of a financial instrzment will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates, The Credit Suisse group takes on exposure fo the effacis of fiuctuations in the
prevaiiing leveks of market inferest rates on both & fair value and cash flow rsks. Interest margins may increzse as a vesult
“of such changes but may reduce or create losses in the event that unexpected movemenis arise. The CSG Board sets
lirnits on the level of mismalch of interest rate repricing that may be undertaken, which Is monitored dally.

A4 discussion of the Value at Risk (VaR) methodelogy used by the Credit Suisse group for managing interest rafe risk is
provided in section ¢) of 1his Note,
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Bid Degosit Portfolio #3 - Conforming Bid) éPortfolios #1, 2,3 and 4 - Non-Conforming... Pagelof2
-cv-60573-FAM  Document 2045-6

Raicht, Geoffrey T.

From: DAVID ROSENDORF [DLR@kttlaw.com]
Sent:  Tussday, June 26, 2007 11:18 AM
To: Kurt Gearhart

Cc: Galeb Pitters: David Goldman; Matthew Vandenack; Peter Shin; Tim Moy; Akhavan, Eli; Raicht,
Geoffrey T.; Edwards, Tamre F.

Subject: Re: Bid Deposit (Portfolio #3 - Conforming Bid) (Portfolios #1, 2, 3 and 4 - Non-Conforming Bid)
Kurt -
I've confirmed this morning that we've received an $385,000 deposit from Credit Suisse, and have also received
an additional $825,000 deposit from Silver Point, which together with the initial deposits already made by each
af Silver Point and Credit Suisse would equal 10% of their combined non-conforming bid of $16,100,000 for all
four portfolios. Thank you.

- DLR

David L. Rosendorf
drosendorf@kitlaw.com

Kozyak Tropin & Throckmorton, P.A,
2525 Ponce de Leon, Sth Floor
Miami, Florida 33134

Phone: 305.372.1800

Fax: 305.372.3508

This transmission is intended to be deliverad only to the named addressee(s) and may contain information that
is confidential, proprietary, attorney work-product or attorney-client privileged.

If this information is received by anyone cther than the named addressee(s), the recipient should immediately
notify the sender by e-mail and by telephone (305) 372-1800 and obtain instructions as to the disposal of the
transmitted material.

In no event shall this material be read, used, copied, reproduced, stored or retained by anyone other than the
named addressee(s), except with the express consent of the sender or the named addressee(s).
Thank you. ‘

>>> "Gearhart, Kurt” <kurt.gearhart@credit-suisse.com> 6/25/2007 5:21 PM >>>

David,

On June 18, 2007, Credit Suisse wired a $100,000 deposit (the "Initial Deposit") into the account maintained by
Kozyak Tropin for the MBC receivership (the "Account”). Today, Credit Suisse wired an additional $385,000 (the
"Second Deposit”™) into the Account. The fed reference number for the wire of the Second Deposit is 7948.

As you are aware, Credit Suisse had the highest conforming bid for Portfolio #3 following last Friday's auction at
$4,600,000 {the "Conforming Successful Bid"). According to the bid procedures, Credit Suisse is obligated to
deposit an aggregate amount of 10% of the Conforming Successful Bid {$460,000) into the Account loday, The
Second Deposit, together with Credit Suisse's initial deposit of $100,000 (the "Initial Deposit") exceeds the
amount required to be submitted by Credit Suisse,

In addition, Credit Suisse, together with Silver Point had the highest non-conforming bid for Portfolios #1, 2, 3

3/19/2008
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and 4 at $16,100,000 (the "Non-Conforming Successful Bid"). According to your instructions, Sitver Peint and
Credit Suisse are depositing 10% of the Non-Conforming Successful Bid {$1,160,000) into the Account. We
understand that Silver Point previously deposited $300,000 into the Account for Portfollo's #1, 2 and 4 and today
deposited an additional $825,000 into the Account for an aggregate deposit of 1,125,000 (the "Silver Point

Deposit"). The Siiver Point Deposit, together with Credit Sulsse’s Initial Deposit and Second Deposit equals
$1.610,000, or 10% of the Non-Conforming Successful Bid.

Accordingly, we believe that Credit Suisse has deposited sufficient funds for the Conforming Successful Bid and
that Gredit Suisse and Silver Point have together deposited sufficient funds for the Non-Conforming Successful
Bid.

Please confirm that you have received the funds detailed above and that Credit Suisse (with respect to the

Gonforming Successful Bid) and Credit Suisse and Silver Point (with respect to the Neon-Conforming Successful
Bid) have made the required deposits to date,

We look forward to closing the sales of the Portfolios as soon as possible,

Regards,
Kurt

Kurt Gearhart

Director

Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC
Eleven Madison Avenue, 5th Floor
New York, New York 10010

Tel: (212)538-5437 (NY)

Tek (312) 750-2834 (CHI)

Cell: (773)623-9782

Fax: (212)743-4163
Email: kurt.gearhart@credit-suisse.com

This material has been prepared by individual sales and/or frading personnel and does not constitute investment
research. Please follow the attached hyperlink to an important disclaimer: http://www.credit-
suisse.com/americas/legal/salestrading

Please access the attached hyperlink for an important electronic communications diac

http://www.credit-suisse.com/legal/en/disclaimer_email ib.html

3/19/2008
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Raicht, Geoffrey T.

From: DAVID ROSENDORF [dIr@kttlaw.com]

Sent: Woednesday, June 27, 2007 9:19 PM

To: Caleb Pitters: Kurt Gearhart; Peter Shin; Tim Moy; Raicht, Geoffrey T.
Cc: Roberto Martinez; Curt Miner; Julie Kane; Stephen Fernstrom; Tim Peres
Subject: Mutual Benefits - Auction Resulls

Caleb, et al. -

First, I want to thank you for Credit Suisse's participation in the
auction of the portfolios held by the Receiver. The report of auction
was previously provided. To xecap, the highest bids submitted in
accordance with the Bidding Procedures were as follows:

Group #1 - High Bid: $3.75MM from Silverpoint
Backup: $3.5MM from Fidelity (Gulati)

Group #2 - High Bid: $5.75MM from Silverpoint
Backup: $5.5MM from Castle Bay

Group #3 - High Bid: $4.6MM from Credit Suisse
Backup: $4.5MM from Gross Foundation

Group #4 - High Bid: $1.5MM from Silverpoint
Backup: $1.4MM from Fidelity (Gulati)

In addition, the highest non-conforming bid was submitted by
silverpoint/Craedit Suisse in the amount of $16,100,000 for all 4
portfolios.

The Receiver has determined that he will seek approval of the bids
submitted on Groups #1, 2, and 4 as described above. Consistent with
the Bidding Procedures, which explained that the Receiver reserved the
right to reject any bid that is inadequate or insufficient, not in
conformity with the Bidding Proceduxes, or contrary to the best
interests of the Seller, the Receiver is currently rejecting all other
bids submitted at the auction.

We would welcome further discussion of proposals for the purchase of
Group #3 that are higher and better than the offers received at auction.
Further information om the formal re-solicitation of additional bids on
Group #3 will be made available at the time the Receliver makes the
determination of how such further bidding will proceed.

In light of the foregoing, the deposit Ffunds received from Credit
cuisse will be returned. Please provide appropriate wire instructions.

Thank you.

- David

David L. Rosendorf
drosendorfe@kttlaw. com

¥ozyak Tropin & Throckmoxton, P.A.
2525 Ponce de Leon, 9th Floor
Miami, Florida 33134

Phone: 305.372.1800

Fax: 305.372.3508B

www.kttlaw.com

This tranemission ie intended to be delivered only to the named
addressee (s) and way contain information that is confidential,

1
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proprietary., attorney work=product or attorney-client privileged.

If this information is received by anycne other than the named

addressee (s}, the recipient should immediately notify the sender by
e-mail and by telepheone (305) 372-1800 and obtain instructiong ag to the
disposal of the transmitted material.

In no event shall this material be read, used, copied, reproduced,
stored or retained by anyone other than the named addressees(s), except
with the exprese consent of the gender or the named addressee(s) .

Thank you.

Page 30f3
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Raicht, Geoffrey T.

From: Raicht, Geoffrey T.
Sent:  Tuesday, July 10, 2007 4:58 PM

To:

Caleb Pitters {caleb.pitters@credit-suisse.com); Kurt Gearhart (kurt.gearhart@credit-suisse.com);
tim.moy@credit-suisse.com

Subject: FW: MBC

From: DAVID ROSENDORF [mailto:DLR@kttlaw.com]
Sent: Tuesday, July 10, 2007 4.57 PM

To: Raicht, Geoffrey T,

Subject: Re: MBC

Geoffrey -

Again, I appreciate your patience. Right now I do not anticipate that the Receiver will be making any
decision on sale or remarketing of Portfolio #3 for the next 2-3 weeks. We appreciate Credit Suisse's
continued interest and I will follow up with you further as I have more information on how we intend to
proceed. Thanks.

- David

David L. Rosendorf

Kozyak Tropin & Throckmorton, P.A.
2525 Ponice de Leon, 9th Floor
Miami, Florida 33134

Phone: 305.372.1800

Fax: 305.372.3508

This transmission is intended to be delivered only to the named addressee(s) and may contain
information that is confidential, proprietary, attorney work-product or attorney-client privileged.

If this Information is received by anyone other than the named addressee(s), the recipient should
immediately notify the sender by e-mail and by telephone (305) 372-1800 and obtain instructions as to
the disposal of the transmitted material.

In no event shall this material be read, used, copied, reproduced, stored or retained by anyone other
than the named addressee(s), except with the express consent of the sender or the named addressee(s).
Thank you,

»>> "Raicht, Geoffrey T." <GRaicht@Sidley.com> 7/10/2007 12:00 PM >>>
David:

As we discussed last week, you are scheduled to meet with the Receiver today to discuss, among other
things, how to proceed with Portfolio # 3. As we also discussed last week, my client has travel plans that
will take him out of the country tomorrow. | would appreciate if you could call me at the conclusion of your

3/15/2008
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meeting to advise of the results and what, if anything, needs to get done in the days ahead. As V'm sure
you can understand, my client believes it has exercised enormous patience with this process and, given
its time crunch, would appreciate this effort in return on behalf of the Receiver.

Please confirm.
Many thanks in advance.

Geoffrey T. Raicht, Esq.
Sidley Austin LLP

787 Seventh Avenue

New York, New York 10019
Tel. (212) 839-5448

Fax (212} 839-5599

e-mail graicht@sidiey.com

Sidley Austin LLP mail server made the following annotations on 07/10/07, 10:5¢&
IRS cireular 230 Disclosure: To comply with certain U.S. Treasury regulations,
that, unless expressly stated otherwise, any U.S. federal tax advice contained
communication, including attachments, was not intended or written to be used, @
used, by any taxpayer for the purpose of avoiding any penalties that may be img
taxpayer by the Internal Revenue Service. 1In addition, if any such tax advice
to by other parties in promoting, marketing or recommending any partnership or
investment plan or arrangement, then (i) the advice should be construed as writ
with the promotion or marketing by others of the transaction{s) or matter(s) ac
communication and (ii) the taxpayer should seek advice based on the taxpayer's
circumstances from an independent tax advisor.

**************i***************************************************************1

This e-mail is sent by a law fixrm and may contain information that is privilege
If you are not the intended recipient, please delete the e-mail and any attachn
immediately.

***************##*************************************************************i

3/19/2008
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Raioht, Geoffrey T. e _ e

From: Raicht, Geoffrey T.

Sent: Monday, July 23, 2007 12;12 PM
To: DLR@kttlaw.com

Subject: MBC

David:

Can you give me an update on Credit Suisse's $4.5 million bid for the $50 million insurance policy? What is the next
step{s) in the process?

Thanks.

Geoffrey T. Raicht, Esq.
Sidiey Austin LLP

787 Seventh Avenuc

New York, New York 10019
Tel. (212} 839-5448

Fax (212) 839-5599

e~-mail graicht@sidley.com
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SIOLEY AUBTIN 1L SELHNG . 108 ANGELES
EY AUSTIN LL 747 SEVENTH AVENUE BRUSSELS NEW YORK
) e F ] HEWY YORK, NY 10819 CHICABD SAN FHANGIECO i
S I D L EY {212) 839 6300 DALLAE BHANGHAI
: * {212} 630 S50 FAX FRANXFURY BINGAPORE
GENEVA EYONEY
HONG KOHG TOKYD
LONDON WATHINGTON, D.C.
ghiichiimlding. s
{242) Bi0-5L 48 FOUNDED 1858
July 27, 2007
David L. Rosendorf, Esq.
Counsel to Roberto Martines,
Court-Appointed Receiver
Kozyak Tropin & Throckmorton, P.A.
2545 Ponce De Leon, 9tk Floor
Coral Gables, FL 33134

Tel: (305)372-1800
Fax: (305) 372-3508
Email: drosendosfi@ktlaw.com

Re:  Mutual Benefits Corp., Viatical Services, Inc. and Viatieal Benéfuctors, LLC,
in Receivership Proceedings Under Case No. 04-60573-CIV-MORENO-
SIMONTON (S Fli.):

Dear Mr, Rosendotf

As you know, we are counsel to Crodit Suisse Securities (Exrope) Limited (“Credit

Suigse™). As you also know, Credit Suisse was the highest bidder at the June 22, 2007, auction .
(wn:h a fully sonforming bid of $4.6 million) for the Universal Lifs and Texm Plans of Insurance
identified a8 Portfolic #3 (“Portflin #3”) in your solicitation of bids letter, dated May 21, 2007.

By an e-mail dated Fune 27, 2007, the Receiver detenmnod 1ot to seek approval of Credit
Suisse’s highest bid for Portfolio #3. Rather, your June 27 e-mail stated:

We would welcome further discussion of proposals for the purchase of
Group #3 [i.c., Portfolio #3] that are higher and better thati the offars

received at aucﬁon Further information on the formal re-solicitation of
additional bids on Group #3 [ie., Portfolio #3] will be made available at
the time the Receiver makes the detenmination of how such further
bidding will proceed,

oy A LLF W & RV Mttty purimruinls praciicing T neamn Wity biker Sidey Austin parineveivos
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David L. Rosendorf
Yaly 27, 2007

Page 2

By an ¢-mail dated July 10, 2007, you advised that the Receiver would not make aoy
“degision on sale of remarketing of portfolio #3 for the next 2-3 weeks.” In your ¢-mail, you
also agteed to “follow up with [me] further as {you] have more information on'how [the
Rexeiver] intends to procesd.”

Having not heard from you, on July 19, 2007, I telephoned you for an-update when you
advised for the first titne that the Receiver was scocpting offers on individual pelicies in
Portfolio #3, and that Credit Suisse should promptly make an offer.

Although both surprised and deeply disappointed that you failed to (8). make information
available when the Receiver determined how to proceed; and (b) follow up with me when you
had more inférmsticn on what the Receiver intended, Credit Suisse nevertheless made an all-
cash bid of $4.5 million for the $50 million New York-Life Insurence policy contained in
Portfolio #3 (the “Policy™).

Since that time T have atterapted several times to reach you both by telephone and by e-
mail.to inquire about the status of Credit Sulsse’s bid, but you have not responded.

Credit Suisse remainy interested in purchasing the Policy, but requests that you
immediately advise: (8) whether théReceiver is in receipt of bids for the Policy higher or betier
than Gredit Suisse’s $4.5 million bid; (b) what efforts, if any, the"Receiver has undertaken to
market the Policy; (c) what is the expected time frame that the Receiver will decide on accepting
bids; and (d) what procedure will the Receiver undertaketo seek approval of any bid on the
Policy or on any of the other policies in Portfolio #3.

Needless to'say, Credit Sulsse welcomes the opportunity to considar submitting -
competing bid for any offers on the Policy that exceod its current bid and also expects to receive
advance written notice of ahy request by the Receiver to seek approval of any bid for the Policy
2ot made by Credit Suisse.

Sinca a timely sale would be in the best interests of all the parties involved, we urge you
to provide us with an sdequate update as promptly as you can. We look forward to workipg with
you on this transaction. "You can contact me or Credit Suisse at!

Entered on FLSD Docket 03/24/2008 Page 3 of 4
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Daavid L. Rosendorf
July 27, 2007
Page 3

Credit Suisse Securities (USA), LLC
Galeb Pitters, Jr.

Vice-President, Life Finance Group
Fleven Madison Avenue, 5% Floor
New York, NY 10010

Telephone: (212) 325-2343

Email: caleb. pitiers@credit-suigse.com

Entered on FLSD Docket 03/24/2008

Sidley Afiatin LLP
Geoffrey T, Raicht, Esq.
787 Seventh Avepue

New York, NY 10019
Telephone: (212) §39-5448
Fagsimile: (212) 839-5599
Email graicht@sidley.com
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Raicht, Geoffrey T.

From: DAVID ROSENDORF [DLR@kitlaw.com)
Sent: Friday, October 19, 2007 6:05 PM

To: Raicht, Geoffrey T.

Subject: RE: MBC

Since we concluded the auction and turned down the highest auction bid, I've made clear to all participants (as
well as others) that they should make their best offer on any and all of the policies in Portfolio 3, that the
Receiver would consider all bona fide offers, and if an offer was sufficient and was the highest and best offer
the Receiver expected to receive, then he would seek approval of that offer (and would also give notice to other
participants so they would have the opportunity to be heard).

I'm asking your client to make me their best offer. If they do not make me an offer than they can't complain
that I elect to proceed with another,

- Pavid

>>> "Raicht, Geoffrey T." <GRaicht@Sidley.com> 10/18/2007 4:19 PM >>>

I'm guessing that you are going to go back to your current bidder and see if they will top any bid by Credit
Suisse. If they are, you will come back to me and we will continue this non-conforming bid process. if they are
unwilling to top CS's bid, the market will have spoken. It seems to me that we can do it the way | suggest or go
through a lot of cost by both CS and the Receiver by having to respond to court filings which will ultimatety get
us to the same place.

What say you?

From: DAVID ROSENDORF [mailto:DLR@kttlaw.com]
Sent: Thursday, October 18, 2007 4:14 PM

To: Raicht, Geoffrey T.

Subject: RE: MBC

Yes, but what if you were willing to pay significantly more than my highest bid?

>>> "Raicht, Geoffrey T." <GRaicht@Sidley.com> 10/18/2007 4:10 PM >>>
David-

I'm not sure how you are selling yourseif short? If you fell me the amount of the current bid, CS will either
exceed it or not make a bid.

From: DAVID ROSENDORF [mailto:DLR@ktHaw.com]
Sent: Thursday, October 18, 2007 4:08 PM

To: Raicht, Geoffrey T,

Subject: RE: MBC

Geoffrey -

1 don't want to sell myself short. Please give me your best numbers on policies your client is
interested in and I will tell you if thay are In the ballpark. I think I've previously given you the
range we were expecting to get on these policies.

- David

3/19/2008
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>>> "Raicht, Geoffrey T." <GRaicht@Sidley.com> 10/17/2007 10:59 AM >>>
David:

Please let me know what the cumrent bids are so Credii Suisse can give you a bid.

Thanks.

From: Raicht, Geoffrey T.

Sent: Wednesday, October 17, 2007 10:43 AM
To: DAVID ROSENDORF

Subject: RE: MBC

yas, we would like the oppertunity to bid. thanks.

From: DAVID ROSENDORF [maiito:DLR@kttlaw.com]
Sent: Wednesday, October 17, 2007 10:41 AM

To: Raicht, Geoffrey T.

Subject: RE: MBC

I understand VSI sent you and your client the updated information on the Portfolio 3
policies. We are close to finalizing a contract: for several of these policies (including
the $50MM one) but have not quite nailed it down yet, Before we do so does your
dient want to give me new numbers for all or any of those policies?

- David

»>> "Raicht, Geoffrey T." <GRaicht@Sidley.com> 10/15/2007 10:57 AM >>>
Any updaie?

From: DAVID ROSENDORF [mailto:DLR@kttlaw.com]
Sent: Tuesday, October 02, 2007 3:20 PM

To: Raicht, Geoffrey T.

Subject: Re: MBC

Geoffray -
To whom should we direct any new information we have on the Portfolio 3
policies? To you directly or is there someone at your client that should receive

it?

- David

David L. Rosendorf
drosendorf@kttdaw.com

Kozyak Tropin & Throckmorton, P.A.
2525 Ponce de Leon, 9th Floor
Miami, Florida 33134

Phone: 305.372.1800

Fax: 305.372.3508
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www.kitlaw.com

This transmission is intended to be delivered only to the named addressee(s)
and may contain information that is confidential, proprietary, attorney work-
product or attorney-client privileged.

If this information is received by anyone other than the named addressee(s),
the recipient should immediately notify the sender by e-mail and by telephone
(305) 372-1800 and obtain instructions as to the disposal of the transmitted
material.

In no event shall this material be read, used, copied, repraduced, stored or
retained by anyone other than the named addressee(s), except with the
express consent of the sender or the named addressee(s).
Thank yau.

>>> "Raicht, Geoffrey T." <GRaicht@Sidley.com> 9/18/2007 10:57 AM >>>
David:

I left you a voice mail earlier today. Can you please give me an update on
your efforts with regard to the $50 miltion policy In portfolio #37 Also, I'd like
to be included in any notice you give on the sale of any of the "Keep Policies."
In that regard, I'd ke to get a little more detail on what Thursday's hearing is
about.

Many thanks.

Geoffrey T. Raicht, Esq.
Sidley Austin LLP

787 Seventh Avenue

New York, New York 10019
Tel. (212) 839-5448

Fax (212) 839-5599

e-mail graicht@sidley.com

Sidley Austin LLP mail server made the following annotatior
IRS Circular 230 Disclosure: To comply with cerxtain U.S. Ti
that, unless expressly stated otherwise, any U.8. federal t
communication, including attachments, was not intended or v
used, by any taxpayer for the purpose of avoiding any penal
taxpayer by the Internal Revenue Service. Im addition, if
to by other parties in promoting, marketing or recommending
investment plan or arrangement, then (i) the advice should
with the promotion or marketing by others of the transactic
communication and (ii) the taxpayer should seek advice hase
circumstances from an independent tax advisor.

'k*****‘k*******'k*******************************************i

This e-mail is sent by a law firm and may contain informati
If you are not the intended recipient, please delete the e-
immediately.

*******1\'*****************************t********************1

Sidley Austin LLP mail server made the fellowing annotationg on

3/19/2008




MBC Pa%g 4of5
Case 0:04-cv-60573-FAM  Document 2045-10  Entered on FLSD Docket 03/24/2008 age 5 of 6

IRS Circular 230 Disclosure: To comply with certain U.S5. Treasw
that, unless expressly stated otherwise, any U.5. federal tax ac
communication, including attachments, was not intended or writte
used, by any taxpayer for the purpose of avoiding any penalties
taxpayer by the Internal Revenue Service. In addition, if any ¢
to by other parties in promoting, marketing or recommending any
investment plan or arrangement, then (i) the advice should be cc
with the promotion or marketing by others of the transaction (s}
communication and {(ii) the taxpayer should seek advice based on
cirvcumstances from an independent tax advisor.

*******i*******************************************************1
This e-mail is sent by a law firm and may contain information tl
If you are not the intended recipient, please delete the e-mail
immediately.

****************************************************************

gidley Austin LLP mail server made the following annoctaticns on 10/17/07,
IRS Circular 230 Disclosure: To comply with certain U.S. Treasury regulati
that, unless expressly stated otherwise, any U.8. federal tax advice conts:
communication, inecluding attachments, was not intended or written to be ut
used, by any taxpayer for the purpese of avoiding any penalties that may I
taxpayer by the Internal Revenue Service. In addition, if any such tax ac
to by other parties in promoting, marketing or recommending any partnershi
investment plan or arrangement, them (i) the advice should be construed ag
with the promotion or marketing by others of the transaction(s) or matter
communication and (ii) the taxpayer should seek advice based on the taxpay
circumstances from an independent tax advisor.

R e e T E R R T T e T EE ST LR LIS LR ES AL L L L LR AR R L

This e-mail is sent by a law firm and may contain information that is pris
If you are not the intended recipient, please delete the e-mail and any at
immediately.

A RA K ERAERAARRRETEEALEERREER AR RAARARR AR TN TRAAR KRN TN A A X R R T AR T IR AL LW

sidley Austin LLP mail server made the following annctations on 10/318/07, 15:0°
IRS Circular 230 Disclosure: To comply with eertain U.S. Treasury regulations,
that, unless expressly stated otherwise, any U.S. federal tax advice contained
comnunication, including attachments, was not intended or written to be used, ¢
used, by any taxpayer for the purpose of avoiding any penalties that may be img
taxpayer by the Internal Revenue Service. In addition, if any such tax advice
to by other parties in promoting, marketing or recommending any partnership oxr
invegtment plan or arrangement, then (i) the advice should be construed as writ
with the promotion or marketing by others of the transacticn(s} or matter{s) ac
communlcation and {(ii) the taxpayer should seek advice based on the taxpayer's
circumstances from an independent tax advigor.

A AR EE R IR ARRR KRR ERTRKRKRKEERI b ARKEEERRE R RX AR AR IR AL EEXERRER AR R K ke kv h k]

~ This e-wail is sent by a law firm and may contain information that is privilegs

If you are not the intended recipient, please delete the e-mail and any attachm
immediately.

Py e s L L 2 R 22 X2 R LR R EEE R AL LSS LSRR A ARl Rl bl

Sidley Austin LLP mail server made the following annotations on 10/18/07, 15:19:03:

3/19/2008
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IRS Circular 230 Disclosure: To comply with certain U.S. Treasury regulations, we it
that, unless expressly stated otherwise, any U.5. federal tax advice contained in tl
communication, including attachments, was not intended or written to be used, and ct
used, by any taxpayer for the purpose of avoiding any pemalties that may be imposed
taxpayer by the Internal Revenue Service. In addition, if any such tax advice is ut
to by other parties in promoting, marketing or recommending any partnership or othe:
investment plan or arrangement, then (i) the advice should be construed as written !
with the promotion or marketing by others of the transaction(s) or matter(s) addres:
communication and (ii) the taxpayer should seek advice based on the taxpayer's part:
circumstances from an independent tax advisor.

***********************************************************i***********************i

This e-mail is sent by a law firm and may contain information that is privileged or
If you are mot the intended recipient, please delete the e-mail and any attachments
immediately.

***********************************************************************************i

3/19/2008
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SIDLEY AUSTIN e BERING LOS ANGELES
SICLEY AUSTIN LLP 787 BEVENTH AVENUE BRUSSELS NEW YORK
‘ MEW YORK, NY 10018 CHICAGO SAN FRANCISGO
SIDLEY! e

(2124 530 5509 FAX FRANKFURT SINGAPORE
GENEVA SYDNEY
HONG KONG TOKYO
LONDON WASHINGTON, D.C.

graichi@sidiey.com

{212} 839-5448 FOUNDED 1866

October 22, 2007

V1A ELECTRONIC MAIL

David L. Rosendorf, Esq.

Counsel to Roberto Martinez,
Court-Appointed Receiver

Kozyak Tropin & Throckmorton, P.A.

2525 Ponce De Leon, 9th Floor

Coral Gables, FL 33134

Re: Moutual Benefits Corp., Viatical Sexvices, Inc. and
Viatical Benefactors, LLC, in Receivership Proceedings
Under Case No. §4-60573-CLY-MORENO-SIMONTON (S.D. Fia.)

Dear Mr. Rosendorf?

As you know, ave are counsel to Credit Suisse Securities (Europe) Limited
(“Credit Suisge”). Pursuant to our ¢-mail exchanges of last week, we understand that the
Receiver plans on making an application to seek court approval of a bid or bids from parties
other than Credit Sufsge for either the totality of the Universal Life and Term Plans of Insurance
identified as Portfolio #3 in your solicitation of bids letter, dated May 21, 2007 (“Rortfolio #3”),
or parts thereof in the near future. As.described in detail below, the purpose of this letter is to
ensure that.the Receiver is given adequate notice that Credit Suisse plans to make a formal
objection to his application because Credit Suisse (2) has not Been provided with x fair
opportunity to submit a competing bid and (b} is ready, willing and able to fully make all cash
offers in a competitiVé bidding process. ‘

By way of brfef background, as you are wellaware, Credit Suisse was the highest
bidder at the June 22, 2007, anction with 2 fully conforming bid of $4.6 million for Portfolio #3.!
In an e-mail dated,June-27, 2007, the Receiver determined not to seek approval of Credit
Suisse’s hi‘ghast bid for Portfolio #3, Rather, vour June 27th e-mail stated:

o

4 (redit Suisse was also the highest non-conforming bidder for Portfolio #3 (as part of a joint bid with

Silverpoint Capital) which was made after the bidding on Portfoljo #3 was closed for several hours but you
nonetheless determined to cntertain additionid] hids.

Sudley Austin (LR 5 3 iviled Rablily parieeship practiving in-affiation wilh other Sithey Austin panrerships

WY1 63768934
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We would welcome further discussion of proposals for the
purchase of Group #3 [i.e., Portfolio#3] that are higher and better
than the offers received at auction, Further information on the
formal re-solicitation of additional bids on Group #3 [L.e.,
Portfolio #3] will be made available at the time the Receiver
makes the determination of how such further bidding will proceed.
{emphasis added)

However, we have not received notfce of a formal re-solicitation for the assets in
Portfolio #3. On.or about July 19, 2007, you advised by telephone that the Receiver was
accepting offers on individual policies in Portfolio #3 and that Credit Suisse should promptly
make an offer. That same day, in good faith Credit Suisse made an all-cash bid of $4.5 million
for the most valuable asset in Portfolio##3 — the $50 million New York Life Insurance policy (the

“Policy”.

Betweenr Wednesday October 17th and Friday October 15th, you afid I exchafiged
several e-mails whereby you advised that the Receiver was preparing to accept 4 bid on scveral
of the policies in Portfolio #3 and asked that Credit Suisse confitm its interest in making
competing bids. In response,I affirmed Credit Suisse’s willingness to make a bid(s) and asked
to Be advised of the current bid on the assets so.that Credit Suisse could make a counter offer.
However, you declined. to provide anylinformation and instead asked Credit Suisse to “make its
hest offer.” Since:-three months have elapsed since Credit Suisse made its last offer ($4.5 million
for the Polity), I felt its was reasonabl¢ for'Credif Suisse to ask for basic information about the
current bidding posture (i.e., what is the combination of assets that are subject to bids? what axe
the current bids?, etc) As I advised, [ Hisagreed-with your justification for such a position — that
you may be “selling yourself short™ ~ as I would assume that the Receiver would share Credit
Suisse’s connter offer with the current bidder(s) until the highest bid was established. Iremain
concemed that without this basic information being provided te Credit Suisse, fitigation will
ensue-costing needless additional expense-fo both Credit Suisse and the creditors of these

redeivership proceedings. I%

I refierate both that Credit Suisse is ready, willing and able to make all cash bid(s)
for some or all of the assets in Portfolio #3 and my request for the basic infonmation described
above that can reasonably inform Credit Suisse so that a counter offer can be made and avoid
unnecessary cost and expense to these cases. Credit Suisse does not believe that the Court
should be burdened with fielding objcc;tions to the sales of these assets for the reasons that are set
forth herein, However, if the Receiveriis urtivilling to do so, Credit Suisse teserves all of its
rights to oppose the Receiver’s applications, seek discovery (if necessary) and make one or more
all cash bids for some or all of the assefs in Portfolio #3.

NY 6376893v.4
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GIR

cCl

If you would like to reconsider your position, please call me at (212) 839-5448.

Very tmly 5,
i

Ge ‘ T. Raicht

Roberto Martinez, Court Appointed Receiver
Tim Moy, Esq.

Kurt Gearhart, Bsqg.

Caleb Pitters

NY1 §376§93v4
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From: Raicht, Geoffrey T.

Sent: Monday, October 29, 2007 9:19 PM

To: ‘dir@kttlaw.com’

Ce: ‘caleb.pitters@credit-suisse.com’; "kurt.gearhart@credit-suisse.com’, 'tim.moy@credit-
suisse.com’

Subject: MBC

David-

In follow-up to my lettexr of October 22nd, this e-mail shall confirm the voicemail that I
left for you this afternoon requesting that you advise whether the Receiver intends to
either (a) go forward with an application to zeek approval of a bid from a party other
than Credit Suisse for some or all of the policies identified as Portfolio # 3 in your
solicitation of bids, dated May 21, 2007 or (b) as requested, provide Credit Suisse with
the basic information about the current bidding posture (i.e. what 1s the combination of
assets that are subject to bids? What are the current bids on such combinations?) sc that
Credit Suisse can wmake an offer.

As I have repeatedly advised, Credit Suisse remains interested in purchasing some or all
of the policies in Portfolio # 3, is ready, willing and able to make a bid and seeks an
cpportunity to do so.

A response to this request would be greatly appreciated.

geoffrey T. Raicht, Esg.
Sidley Austin LLP

187 Seventh Avenue

New York, New York 10019
Tel. (212} 839-5448

FPax (212) 839-5599
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ANDWEW B, EIELLINGER
Ahellingex@h-plegal.com

CoraLir G PaNABAD
Cpenabad@h-plegal.com

MuLissa 5. CHANNING
Mehanningdh-plegal.com

November 27, 2007

VIA EMAIL

David Rosendorf, Esq

Kozyak Tropin Throckmorton, PA
25235 Ponce de Leon Blvd., 9" Floor
Coral Gables, Florida 33134

Re:  Mutual Benefits Corp., Viatical Services, Inc. and Viatical Benefactors, LLC in
Receivership Proceedings
Under Case No.: 04-60573-CIV-MORENO-SIMONTON (S8.D. Fla.)
Our File No.: 6000-1

Dear David:

This letter is in follow-up to our telephone conversation last week regarding the above-captioned
matter, As I explained, we are acting as local counsel to Credit Suisse Securities (Europe) Limited
(“Credit Suisse”) in connection with the above referenced receivership proceedings. Reference is
made to the Sidley Austin (counsel to Credit Suisse) letter to you dated October 22, 2007. A copy
of Sidley Austin’s Qctober 22™ letter is anncxed hereto.'

During our telephone conversation, you indicated that notwithstanding Credit Suisse’s prior winning
bids for Portfolio # 3 at the June 22" auction and subsequent $4,500,000 bid for the $50,000,000 New
York Life policy within Portfolio # 3 (the “Jumbo Policy™), the Receiver has decided to conduct a
private sale of Portfolio # 3, either in whole or in parts, and is actively negotiating with several
interested buyers. In addition, on behalf of the Receiver, you invited Credit Suissc to make another
offer for Portfolio # 3, either in whole or in part, and again without disclosing the current structure
of the bids or the amounts you have received.

While Credit Suisse maintains its objection to the Receiver’s private sale process (discussed further
below), as a demonstration of its continued interest in Portfolio # 3, Credit Suisse hereby submits an
improved bid of $5,000,000 for the Jumbo Policy in Portfolio # 3.> We request that you promptly
advise us in writing whether or not this bid is the highest and best for the asset and, if not, what

! During our conversation, you expressed that your view of the facts are consistent with those deseribed
in Sidley Austin’s October 22™ letter.

2 By submitting this improved bid, Credit Suisse does not waive any objection it may have with respect to
the private salc process or any proposed bid that the Receiver sccks Court approval.

233 Altara Avenme
Coral Gables, Florida 33146

Telephone: (305) 567-2869 » Facsimile: {305) 447-2294

Client Files\600046600-2Y00027535 WPD
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M. Rosendorf
November 27, 2007
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amount it will require for the Receiver to deem Credit Suisse to have submitted the current highest
and best offer.

In addition, Credit Suisse again requests that the Receiver conduct an open auction process with
respect to Portfolio # 3. Credit Suisse believes that is reasonable to disclose the bids you have
received, particularly where a motion must be filed to approve the sale; at which time other bidders
can ohject to both the bid amount and the procedure. The Receiver’s use of his reasonable business
judgment to scll the assets for the highest and best price will certainly be the subject of that motion
and therefore the facts of the bids and the bid procedure will be disclosed. In short, and as we have
stated previously, we do not belicve that selecting a buyer through an undisclosed bid or private
auction is going to achieve the highest and best result for the creditors of theses entities.

Ilook forward to discussing this matter with you further.

Very truly yours,

Ardrew B. Hellinger
Andrew B. Hellinger, Esq.
ABH|vag

cc:  Credit Suisse Securities (Europe) Limited
Geoffrey T. Raicht, Sidley Austin, LLP

235 Altara Avenue
Coral Gables, Florida 33146
Telephone: (305) 5672869 * Facsimile: (308) 447-2294

Client Files\6C00N6000-2400027535.WFD




